
 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 4/3/2024 - Page 1 

 

 

 

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor 

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1 

Anne Weir, Place 2 

Maria Amezcua, Place 3 

Sonia Wallace, Place 4 

Aaron Moreno, Place 5 

Deja Hill, Place 6 
 

City Council Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, April 03, 2024 at 7:00 PM 

Manor City Hall, Council Chambers, 105 E. Eggleston St. 

AGENDA 

This meeting will be live-streamed on Manor's YouTube Channel 
You can access the meeting at https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams 

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT 

INVOCATION 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PROCLAMATIONS 

A. Declaring Saturday, April 22, 2024, as “Earth Day" 

EVENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. Community Shred Day Event, April 13, 2024, at Manor City Hall  
Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

B. Keep Manor Beautiful Downtown Cleanup, April 20, 2024  
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Non-Agenda Item Public Comments (white card): Comments will be taken from the audience on non-

agenda related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three (3) minutes per person. 

 

Agenda Item Public Comments (yellow card): Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda 

and agenda items combined for a length of time, not to exceed five (5) minutes total per person on all 

items, except for Public Hearings. Comments on Public Hearing items must be made when the item 

comes before the Council and, not to exceed two (2) minutes per person. No Action or Discussion May 

be Taken by the City Council during Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items. 

To address the City Council, please complete the white or yellow card and present it to the City 

Secretary, or designee prior to the meeting. 

1

https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams


 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 4/3/2024 - Page 2 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be 

enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by the Mayor or a 

Council Member; in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 

1. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of 

the March 20, 2024, Regular Meeting. 
Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Purchase Agreement with Cube 

HHF Limited Partnership for a waterline easement and temporary construction 

easement for Parcel No. 5. 
Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager 

3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Purchase Agreement with Tuan V. 

Nguyen and Nhieu T. Nguyen for a wastewater easement and temporary construction 

easement for Parcel No. 1. 
Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager 

REGULAR AGENDA 

4. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Specific Use Permit 

for Medical Offices in Manor Crossing allowing 15,000 sq. ft. of medical office and/or 

medical clinic tenant space, one (1) lot on 18.1 acres, more or less, and being located at 

the intersection of Shadowglen Blvd and US Hwy 290, Manor, Texas.  
Applicant: Retail Connections  

Owner: Retail Connections 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

5. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance amending Ordinance 698 to modify the Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

Site Plan for the New Haven Final Planned Unit Development rezoning from Planned 

Unit Development to Planned Unit Development and being located near the corner of 

Gregg Ln and FM 973, Manor, Texas.   
Applicant: Quiddity Engineering  

Owner: Gregg Lane Dev., LLC 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Development Agreement 

establishing development standards for Exxon Price Sign. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

  

2



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 4/3/2024 - Page 3 

 

7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Ordinance of the City of Manor, 

Texas amending Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 13 Utilities by amending the 

chapter title, amending definitions, declaring stormwater drainage to be a public 

utility, establishing a municipal stormwater utility system, providing for the 

establishment and calculations of stormwater drainage utility charges and credits, 

providing for penalties and appeals, providing a severability clause, providing savings, 

effective date, and open meetings clauses, and providing for related matters.  
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution accepting the petition 

for voluntary annexation of 1.273 acres, more or less, being located in Travis County, 

Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits, providing for open meeting, and 

other related matters. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

9. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Assignment of Easement Rights 

with the Texas Department of Transportation for a drainage easement. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on reimbursement of project 

management fees and services for the Bell Farms and Carriage Hills Lift Station. 
Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council will now Convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 

Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in: 

-   Section 551.074 Personnel Matters to discuss duties of the City Manager; 

-  Sections 551.071 and 551.072, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel and to deliberate the purchase of real 

property;  

- Sections 551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding EntradaGlen PID; 

-  Sections 551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding ShadowGlen development; 

-  Sections 551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding legislation related to 

daycares;  

-  Sections 551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding Mustang Valley PID; and   

3



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 4/3/2024 - Page 4 

 

- Sections 551.071 Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 

Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the Dalfen annexation. 

 

OPEN SESSION 

The City Council will now reconvene into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas 

Government Code and take action, if any, on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session. 

11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution of the City of Manor, 

Texas approving and authorizing the Mustang Valley Public Improvement District 

Reimbursement Agreement. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
In addition to any executive session already listed above, the City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time 

during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Section §551.071 

(Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), 

§551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and §551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic 

Development Negotiations). 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

In accordance with Section 12.04 (Conflict of Interest) of the City Charter, “No elected or appointed officer or employee of the city shall 

participate in the deliberation or decision on any issue, subject or matter before the council or any board or commission, if the officer or 

employee has a personal financial or property interest, direct or indirect, in the issue, subject or matter that is different from that of the 

public at large. An interest arising from job duties, compensation or benefits payable by the city shall not constitute a personal financial 

interest.” 

Further, in accordance with Chapter 171, Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 171), no City Council member and no City officer may 

vote or participate in discussion of a matter involving a business entity or real property in which the City Council member or City officer has 

a substantial interest (as defined by Chapter 171) and action on the matter will have a special economic effect on the business entity or real 

property that is distinguishable from the effect on the general public. An affidavit disclosing the conflict of interest must be filled out and 

filed with the City Secretary before the matter is discussed. 

POSTING CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board, at the City Hall of the City of 

Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted on the following date 

and time: Thursday, March 28, 2024, by 5:00 PM and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of 

said meeting. 

 

  

/s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 

City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas 

 

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall and the Council Chambers are 

wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services must be made 10 

days prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at 512.215.8285 or e-mail lalmaraz@manortx.gov 

4

mailto:lalmaraz@manortx.gov


                                                                                
 

PROCLAMATION 
WHEREAS, the first Earth Day was proclaimed in 1970 to educate people on 

responsible environmental stewardship, protect the environment, and conserve 
resources; and 

 
WHEREAS, the global theme for Earth Day 2024 is “Planet vs Plastics”, which 

calls to advocate for widespread awareness of the health risks of plastics, rapidly 
phase out all single-use plastics, urgently push for a strong UN Treaty on Plastic 
Pollution, and demand an end to fast fashion; and 

 
WHEREAS, this annual celebration is a reminder of the constant need for 

environmental activism, stewardship commitments, and sustainability efforts for 
current and future generations; and  

 
WHEREAS, everyone must step forward and take action to create a positive 

environmental change to combat the global challenges; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city celebrates and supports Earth Day by implementing a 

variety of activities to engage our community’s awareness and participation to 
restore our planet. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, I, Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, 
and on behalf of the Manor City Council, do hereby proclaim Saturday, April 22, 
2024, as: 
 

“Earth Day” 
 

in the City of Manor, Texas, and invite and encourage our community and businesses 
to use this day to celebrate the Earth and to commit to creating a cleaner and 
healthier environment for a better quality of life for current and future generations 
by planting trees, gardening, picking up litter, recycling, and conserving energy and 
water.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City 
of Manor to be affixed this 3rd day of April 2024.   

 
 
 
                                                      
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor 

       City of Manor 

5

Item A.



Let’s Go Green! 

 
 

FREE COMMUNITY SHRED DAY! 
 

 
 

SHRED FOR A CAUSE 
Pet food donations will be accepted for  

Manor PD Animal Control 
 

Saturday, April 13, 2024       
9am – 1pm 

 
 

Manor City Hall  
105 E. Eggleston St.  

Manor, TX 78653 
This is a FREE event for residents in the city limits of Manor, TX., No 
commercial/business shredding or electronic recycling will be accepted. 
Please bring your most current city utility bill for verification purposes 
and photo I.D. Residents are invited to safely dispose of personal 
documents and records such as old tax returns, processed checks, loan 
applications, financial records, medical records, and other confidential 
paper documents.      

Thank you!! 

BENEFITS OF SHREDDING 

Protect Against Identity Theft & 
Fraud 

Securely Destroying Documents 

Saves Time 

Eliminate Clutter & Fire Hazards 

Protect the Public Health & 
Environment 

WHAT TO BRING: 

Current City Utility Bill & I.D. 

Pet Food Donations   
(not required) 

Paper Documents Only 

Please limit to 4 standard file boxes 
per vehicle. Do not tape boxes 
closed. Only dry loose paper packed 
in boxes will be accepted. 

WHAT NOT TO BRING: 

No electronic media, hard drives, 
CDs, toner cartridges, 3-ring 
binders, binder clips, glass, or 
plastic. 

All paper documents will be 
shredded on-site by: 

DATA ARMOR 

We're taking measures to offer safe, 
no-contact service at Community 
Shred Day. Attendees are asked to 
bring documents in their vehicle's 
trunk or cargo area, remain in their 
vehicle at all times, and enjoy the 
free, full-service event. 

For more information, please 
contact the City Secretary’s Office 

at (512) 215-8285 

 

 

 
 

6

Item A.



KMB’s  
Downtown Cleanup

Help make downtown a more beautiful place! 
Check-in begins at 8:30am at City Hall  

– 105 East Eggleston Street.

Breakfast pastries and coffee! 
All supplies provided by KMB.

Saturday, April 20, 2024 
9:00am – 12:00pm

7

Item B.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of the March 20, 2024, Regular 
Meeting. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• March 20, 2024, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The city staff recommends that the City Council approve the City Council Meeting minutes as presented.  

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

8

Item 1.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES 

MARCH 20, 2024 
 

City of Manor  Page 1 
 
 
 
 
 

This meeting was live-streamed on Manor's YouTube Channel  
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 
Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1 (Absent) 
Anne Weir, Place 2  
Maria Amezcua, Place 3  
Sonia Wallace, Place 4   
Aaron Moreno, Place 5  
Deja Hill, Place 6  
 
CITY STAFF: 
 
Scott Moore, City Manager 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 
Denver Collins, Assistant Chief of Police 
Robbie Barrera, Emergency Management Coordinator 
Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
Scott Jones, Economic Development Director 
Matthew Woodard, Public Works Director  
Tracey Vasquez, HR Director 
Sofi Duran, Court Administrator 
Yalondra Valderrama Santana, Heritage & Tourism Manager 
Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
Gregory Miller, Bond Counsel 
 
REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 P.M.  
 
 With a quorum of the Council Members present, the regular session of the Manor City Council 
was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 7:01 p.m. on Wednesday, March 20, 2024, in the Council 
Chambers of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.  

9

Item 1.

https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams


 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 

INVOCATION 
 

Mayor Harvey gave the invocation.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Mayor Harvey led the Pledge of Allegiance.   

EVENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
A. Easter Egg-Heli-Drop Event, March 30, 2024, at 15317 US Hwy 290 E.  
 

Yalondra V. Santana Heritage & Tourism Manager invited the community to attend the 
Easter Egg-Heli Drop Event.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS      
 
 HR Director Vasquez introduced the new Court Administrator Sofi Duran.  
 

No one else appeared at this time.  

REPORTS 

Reports about items of community interest on which no action will be taken. 
 
A. FY2024 Community Project Funding Award – Gregg Manor Water Pump Station 

Expansion. 
 
  City Manager Moore discussed the FY2024 Community Project Funding Award for the 

Gregg Manor Water Pump Station.  He stated that on April 2nd Congressman Greg Casar would 
be presenting the grant award to the city for an amount of $850,000.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance disannexing a 5.45 acre tract, located within 
Travis County, Texas; making findings of fact; disannexing certain property; providing 
a repealing clause; providing a severability clause; providing an open meetings clause 
and establishing an effective date. 
  
 The city staff recommended that the City Council conduct the public hearing. 
 
 Mayor Harvey opened the Public Hearing.   
 
 Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and 
expressed his concerns regarding the proposed disannexation request.  

10

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 

 Patsy Graham, 1296 Johnson Road, Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and spoke in 
regard to her request.  She would like to be disannexed from the city to be able to complete her 
structure without city regulations.   

 
 Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the city code building regulations and 
the proposed diannexation request.  
 
 A discussion was held regarding future development in the area.  
 
 A discussion was held regarding the process through the Board of Adjustment. 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Amezcua and seconded by Council Member 

Moreno to close the public hearing.    
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 6-0     

2. Conduct a public hearing on a Specific Use Permit for Medical Offices in Manor Crossing 
allowing 15,000 sq. ft. of medical office and/or medical clinic tenant space, one (1) lot on 
18.1 acres, more or less, and being located at the intersection of Shadowglen Blvd and US 
Hwy 290, Manor, Texas. Applicant: Retail Connections; Owner: Retail Connections  
  
 The city staff recommended that the City Council conduct the public hearing. 
 
 Mayor Harvey opened the Public Hearing.   
 
 Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and 
expressed his concerns regarding the proposed request. He suggested a plaza to be included in 
the development.  

 
 Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the Special Use Permit for Medical 
Offices in Manor Crossing.  
 
 A discussion was held regarding the request for 15,000 sq.ft. use for Medical offices.  

 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member 

Weir to close the public hearing.    
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 6-0     
  

11

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance amending Ordinance 698 to modify the 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) Site Plan for the New Haven Final Planned Unit 
Development rezoning from Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit Development, 
and being located near the corner of Gregg Ln and FM 973, Manor, Texas.   
Applicant: Quiddity Engineering; Owner: Gregg Lane Dev., LLC  
  
 The city staff recommended that the City Council conduct the public hearing. 
 
 Mayor Harvey opened the Public Hearing.   
 
 Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and 
expressed his concerns regarding the proposed site plan request.  

 
 Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the PUD site plan request.  

 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Wallace to close the public hearing.    
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to close carried 6-0     
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of 
March 4, 2024, City Council Special Session. 
 

5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the February 2024 
Departmental Reports.    
 

      •  Finance – Scott Moore, City Manager  
      •  Police – Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 
      •  Travis County ESD No. 12 – Ryan Smith, Fire Chief 
      •  Economic Development – Scott Jones, Economic Development Director 
      •  Development Services – Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
      •  Community Development – Yalondra Valderrama Santana,  
            Heritage & Tourism Manager 
      •  Municipal Court – Sarah Friberg, Court Administrator 
      •  Public Works – Matt Woodard, Director of Public Works 
      •  Manor Cemetery – Nora Sanchez, MC Manager 
      •  Human Resources – Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
     •  IT – Phil Green, IT Director 
      •  Administration – Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

12

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 

6. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the February 2024 City 
Council Monthly Reports.    
 

7. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Purchase Contract with Manor Plaza, 
LLC for a waterline easement and temporary construction easement for Parcel No. 6. 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Amezcua and seconded by Council Member 

Weir to accept and approve the Consent Agenda.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
8. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance 

disannexing a 5.45 acre tract, located within Travis County, Texas; making findings of 
fact; disannexing certain property; providing a repealing clause; providing a severability 
clause; providing an open meetings clause and establishing an effective date. 

  
  The city staff recommended that the City Council consider the first of an ordinance 

disannexing a 5.45 acre tract, located within Travis County, Texas.  
 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed request.  

 Mayor Harvey adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive Session 
at 7:46 p.m. on Wednesday, March 20, 2024, in accordance with the requirements of the Open 
Meetings Law.     
  
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 The Manor City Council convened into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in Sections 551.071 and 
551.072, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct to consult with legal counsel on Item No. 8 at 7:46 p.m. on Wednesday, March 20, 2024.    

 The Executive Session was adjourned at 8:26 p.m. on Wednesday, March 20, 2024.  
 
OPEN SESSION   
 

The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 
Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during the Closed Executive Session 
at 8:26 p.m. on Wednesday, March 20, 2024.   

 
  

13

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 6 
 
 
 
 
 

8. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance 
disannexing a 5.45 acre tract, located within Travis County, Texas; making findings of 
fact; disannexing certain property; providing a repealing clause; providing a severability 
clause; providing an open meetings clause and establishing an effective date. 

 
 A discussion was held regarding the process the applicant would need to take if the request 
was denied.  

 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member 

Amezcua to deny an ordinance disannexing a 5.45 acre tract, located within Travis 
County, Texas. 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve denial carried 6-0 
 
9. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Specific Use Permit 

for Medical Offices in Manor Crossing allowing 15,000 sq. ft. of medical office and/or 
medical clinic tenant space, one (1) lot on 18.1 acres, more or less, and being located at 
the intersection of Shadowglen Blvd and US Hwy 290, Manor, Texas.  

 Applicant: Retail Connections; Owner: Retail Connections 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the first reading of a Specific 

Use Permit for Medical Offices in Manor Crossing allowing 15,000 sq. ft. of medical office 
and/or medical clinic tenant space, one (1) lot on 18.1 acres, more or less, and being located at 
the intersection of Shadowglen Blvd and US Hwy 290, Manor, Texas.  

 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed request and the P&Z 

Commission recommendation.   
 
  A discussion was held regarding the clarification that the P&Z Commission only discusses 

zoning cases and not Economic Development agreements.  
 
  A discussion was held regarding the clarification that the request is from the property 

owner, Retail Connections, and not the developer.  
 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member 

Wallace to postpone the item to the April 3, 2024, Regular Council Meeting to gather 
additional information. 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to postpone carried 5-1 (Council Member Amezcua voted against) 
  

14

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 7 
 
 
 
 
 

 
10. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance amending 

Ordinance 698 to modify the Planned Unit Development (PUD) Site Plan for the New 
Haven Final Planned Unit Development rezoning from Planned Unit Development to 
Planned Unit Development, and being located near the corner of Gregg Ln and FM 973, 
Manor, Texas.  Applicant: Quiddity Engineering; Owner: Gregg Lane Dev., LLC 

 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the first reading of an ordinance 

amending Ordinance 698 to modify the Planned Unit Development (PUD) Site Plan for the 
New Haven Final Planned Unit Development rezoning from Planned Unit Development to 
Planned Unit Development and being located near the corner of Gregg Ln and FM 973, Manor, 
Texas with P&Z Commission conditions.  

 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed PUD site plan and the 

recommendation for approval by the P&Z Commission with conditions.  
 
  Brad Carabajal with Quiddity Engineering submitted a speaker card; however, he did not 

wish to speak but was available to address any questions posed by the City Council.  
 
  Ordinance: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Amending Ordinance 698 to 

Modify the Planned Unit Development Site Plan for the New Haven Final Planned Unit 
Development; Rezoning From Planned Unit Development (PUD) to Planned Unit 
Development (PUD); Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related Matters.   

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member 

Amezcua to approve the first reading of an ordinance amending Ordinance 698 to 
modify the Planned Unit Development (PUD) Site Plan for the New Haven Final 
Planned Unit Development rezoning from Planned Unit Development to Planned 
Unit Development, and being located near the corner of Gregg Ln. and FM 973, 
Manor, Texas with the P&Z Commission conditions. 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0 
 
11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution of the City of Manor, Texas 

directing the City’s Municipal Advisor to initiate the negotiated sale of the City of Manor 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2024. 

 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2024-06 of the 

City of Manor, Texas directing the City’s Municipal Advisor to initiate the negotiated sale of 
the City of Manor General Obligation Bonds, Series 2024.   

 
  Gregory Miller, Bond Counsel discussed the proposed resolution.  
 

15

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 8 
 
 
 
 
 

  Resolution No., 2024-06: Resolution of the City of Manor, Texas Directing the City’s 
Municipal Advisor to Initiate the Negotiated Sale of the City of Manor General Obligation 
Bonds Series 2024. 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Weir to approve Resolution No. 2024-06 of the City of Manor, Texas directing the 
City’s Municipal Advisor to initiate the negotiated sale of the City of Manor General 
Obligation Bonds, Series 2024.   

  
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0   
 
12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance continuing a Disaster 

Declaration Declared on March 14, 2024, for the April 8, 2024, Solar Eclipse. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 735 continuing 

a Disaster Declaration Declared on March 14, 2024, for the April 8, 2024, Solar Eclipse.  
 
  Emergency Management Coordinator Barrera discussed the proposed ordinance.  
 
  The attached Solar Eclipse handout was given to the City Council.  
 
  Ordinance No. 735: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Continuing a Disaster 

Declaration Declared on March 14, 2024, for the April 8, 2024, Solar Eclipse Providing for an 
Effective Date, and Providing for Related Matters. 

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Amezcua to approve Ordinance No. 735 continuing a Disaster Declaration Declared 
on March 14, 2024, for the April 8, 2024, Solar Eclipse. 

  
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0  
 
13. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an agreement between the City of 

Manor and HUB International for Benefits Consulting Services. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the agreement between the City 

of Manor and HUB International for Benefits Consulting Services and authorize the City 
Manager to execute the agreement.  

 
  HR Director Vasquez discussed the proposed agreement for benefit consulting services. 
  

16

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 9 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  Brett Bowers, MBA – Public Sector Employee Benefits Specialist with HUB introduced 

himself and presented the attached PowerPoint Presentation.  
 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Amezcua to approve the agreement between the City of Manor and HUB 
International for Benefits Consulting Services and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the agreement. 

  
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0  
 
14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Swagit Services Agreement between 

the City of Manor and Granicus. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the Swagit Services Agreement 

between the City of Manor and Granicus.  
 
  IT Director Green discussed the proposed agreement.  
 
  A discussion was held regarding the online services Granicus would provide.  
 
  A discussion was held regarding the streaming of special meetings. 
 
  A discussion was held regarding other municipalities that use swagit services.  
 
  A discussion was held regarding the process Granicus will take when the council goes into 

unexpected executive sessions.   
 
  A discussion was held regarding the concern of not having full control of monitors.   
 
  A discussion was held regarding Granicus attending a meeting to present the product.  
 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member  

Amezcua to postpone the item until April 3, 2024, Regular Council meeting to have 
all council’s questions answered.  

 
  Mayor Harvey asked if all council questions could be answered before the April 3rd 

meeting and if the agreement could be signed and approved.  
 

  Assistant City Attorney Rivera suggested that a substitute motion could be made with the 
condition that if all questions were answered before the next meeting, the Mayor or City 
Manager could sign the agreement.  She recommended sending an email with all the questions 
addressed to either the mayor or city manager.   

 

17

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 10 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION:  Upon an amended motion by motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded 
by Council Member Amezcua to approve the Swagit Services Agreement between 
the City of Manor and Granicus with the condition that if all questions were answered 
before the next meeting, the Mayor or City Manager could sign the agreement.  She 
recommended sending an email with all the questions addressed to either the mayor 
or city manager.    

  
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 5-1 (Council Member Deja Hill voted against)  
 
15. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the camera system upgrade for the City 

of Manor from Technik. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the camera system upgrade for 

the City of Manor from Technik Enterprise LLC in an amount not to exceed $44,400.  
 
  IT Director Green discussed the camera system upgrade.    
 
  A discussion was held regarding the replacement of all security cameras.  
 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Amezcua to approve the camera system upgrade for the City of Manor from Technik 
Enterprise LLC in an amount not to exceed $44,400. 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0  
 
16. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance amending Chapter 1 

General Provisions, Article 1.02 Administration, of the Manor Code of Ordinances, to 
Include Section 1.02.004 Official City Logo, Repealing Prior Municipal Logos, adopting 
a new Municipal Logo. 

 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 736 amending 

Chapter 1 General Provisions, Article 1.02 Administration, of the Manor Code of Ordinances, 
to Include Section 1.02.004 Official City Logo, Repealing Prior Municipal Logos, adopting a 
new Municipal Logo. 

 
  Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed ordinance adopting the new city 

logo with guidelines.  
  

18

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 11 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  A discussion was held regarding the assurance that the city’s logo copyright process is 

completed.  
 
  Ordinance No. 736: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Amending Chapter 1 

General Provisions, Article 1.02 Administration, of the Manor Code of Ordinances, to Include 
Section 1.02.004 Official City Logo, Repealing Prior Municipal Logos, Adopting a New 
Municipal Logo, Providing for Approved and Prohibited Uses, Providing for an Effective Date, 
and Providing for Related Matters.  

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member 

Weir to approve Ordinance No. 736 amending Chapter 1 General Provisions, Article 
1.02 Administration, of the Manor Code of Ordinances, to Include Section 1.02.004 
Official City Logo, Repealing Prior Municipal Logos, adopting a new Municipal 
Logo. 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0  
 
17. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on establishing regulations for naming 

city-owned properties and facilities.   
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council give direction to establish a process and 

procedures for the naming of city-owned properties and facilities.   
 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the regulations for naming street names.  
 
  A discussion was held regarding other cities’ regulations.  
 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member 

Moreno to give staff direction to establish a process and procedures for the naming 
of city-owned properties and facilities.   

 
  A discussion was held regarding the clarification of the process and procedures that would 

be presented to the council for approval.   
 
MOTION:  Upon an amended motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by 

Council Member Moreno to give staff direction to establish a process and procedures 
for the naming of city-owned properties and facilities and provide a draft to the 
council on April 17th.  

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0  

19

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 12 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Harvey adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive Session 
at 10.03 p.m. on Wednesday, March 20, 2024, in accordance with the requirements of the Open 
Meetings Law.     
  
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 The Manor City Council convened into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in Sections 551.071 and 
551.072, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct to consult with legal counsel and to deliberate the purchase of real property; Sections 
551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 
Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding ShadowGlen development; Sections 
551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 
Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding EntradaGlen PID; Sections 
551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 
Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding legislation related to daycares; and 
Section 551.074 Personnel Matters to discuss duties of the City Manager at 10.:03 p.m. on 
Wednesday, March 20, 2024.    

 The Executive Session was adjourned at 12:07 a.m. on Thursday, March 21, 2024.  
 
OPEN SESSION   
 

The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 
Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during the Closed Executive Session 
at 12:07 a.m. on Thursday, March 20, 2024.   

 
18. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution of the City of Manor, Texas 

approving and authorizing the execution of the EntradaGlen Public Improvement 
District-IA#1 Reimbursement Agreement.  

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Deja Hill to postpone the item to the April 3, 2024 or April 17, 2024 Regular Council 
meeting.    

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to postpone carried 6-0  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Regular Session of the Manor City Council was Adjourned at 12:09 a.m. on Thursday, 
March 21, 2024. 
  

20

Item 1.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
March 20, 2024 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 13 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 These minutes were approved by the Manor City Council on April 3, 2024. 
 
 

 
APPROVED:  
 
________________________________ 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

21

Item 1.



22

Item 1.



23

Item 1.



24

Item 1.



25

Item 1.



26

Item 1.



27

Item 1.



28

Item 1.



29

Item 1.



30

Item 1.



31

Item 1.



32

Item 1.



33

Item 1.



34

Item 1.



35

Item 1.



36

Item 1.



37

Item 1.



38

Item 1.



39

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.1 © 2020 HUB International Limited.1

Advocacy. Tailored Insurance Solutions. Peace of Mind

City of Manor
2024 Informal Plan Review

Brett Bowers, MBA – Public Sector Employee Benefits Specialist

March 3, 2024

40

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.2

HUB International

HUB International is pleased to provide analysis and recommendations for the 

City of Manor’s health and welfare benefits plans. The primary purpose of this 

undertaking is to review current coverages compared to public sector 

benchmarks with a focus on lowering the City’s cost/risk, reducing employees’ 

costs, and promoting consumerism and engagement by offering diversity in 

the coverages offered.   

Our approach to employee benefits is different than the insurance purchasing 

pattern used by most brokers as HUB does not merely operate year to year 

but rather develops a 2–3-year strategy.   

Our knowledge and understanding will help the City of Manor to maximize 

quality and manage costs effectively and will help drive value as we assist to 

create the best protection for your city, help to provide the best employee 

experience when it comes to your benefit plans and support growth into the 

future.

We serve over 500 public-sector clients across the state, including 

municipalities, school districts, counties, water authorities, health districts and 

state government agencies.  Our client retention rate is 98%.   Regarding 

employee benefit plans, there are a unique set of rules and culture that apply 

to public entities. With that in mind, it’s important to partner with a consulting 

team who has significant experience working with public sector employers and 

employees, and there are few, if any, consultants nationally who can match the 

experience of HUB International.

41

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.3

Public Sector Experience

42

Item 1.

http://www.brazos.org/
http://www.brazos.org/
http://www.brazos.org/


© 2020 HUB International Limited.4

Medical Plan   

❑ Network:  BCBS of Texas

43

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.5

City of Manor Medical Plans compared to Benchmark

95% of mid-sized 

cities offer a HDHP

❑ Compared to the Public Benchmark, 

the City’s deductible and OOP Max is 

better.

❑ Recommend the City offer another 

Medical Plan.  A “Buy-down” HDHP 

plan with a Health Savings Account.  

• Employees electing to “buy-

down” into the HDHP would 

receive money into their H.S.A. 

to help offset out of pocket 

costs.  *An HDHP is typically 

attractive to healthier people 

who don’t expect to need 

health care except in the event 

of an unforeseen health 

emergency.  

The average participation in 

the HDHP plan is 28%

44

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.6

City of Manor rates/contributions compared to Benchmark

❑ The City of Manor’s cost for employees to enroll their dependents is much higher than the Public Sector Benchmark.

❑ On average, Texas cities cover 54%of the dependent costs whereas the City of Manor pays 0%.  

❑ Offering a “buy-down” HDHP plan will help employees reduce the costs of enrolling their dependents. A direct correlation 

exists between the overall cost of the plans and the cost of enrolling dependents.   

❑ Typically, the contribution strategy will be set up to incentivize employees into the lowest cost plan which is designed to 

transform the way heath care is delivered and purchased.  The goal is to make employees engaged consumers of their 

health care.  

❑ Many municipalities offer rate differentials to employees who get their annual physical or are tobacco-free.

45

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.7

Medical Premium – Texas Health

❑ Should the City move forward to issue an RFP for 6/1/24 benefits, HUB recommends the City establish a benefit 

trust to eliminate the premium tax / reduce rates by 1.75% (in the event another medical carrier is selected).

▪ Approximately $19,000 annual savings  

46

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.8

Medical Plans  

Most Expensive- Base P.P.O.

Least Expensive- Buy Down H.D.H.P

Depending on an employee’s financial situation 
and healthcare needs, they will enroll in the plan 
that best meets their needs with consideration 
to the monthly premiums, the plan's provider 
network and expected out-of-pocket costs. 
These will all factor into determining which plan 
will best fit an individual’s needs and budget.

47

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.9

Dental Plan

❑ Recommend adding a 2nd dental plan: a DHMO 

or a Low Plan that does not cover Orthodontia

48

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.10

Vision Plan

❑ HUB did not have the SBC for the vision plan 

and needs to get this from the City.

❑ Network is VSP

❑ Recommendation is move from a 3-tier rate to a 

4-tier rate.   Doing so will lower the cost for 

employees choosing to enroll their children.  A 

bonus is standardized deductions.

49

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.11

Basic Life & AD&D

❑ The Basic Life benefits are below public sector 

benchmarks.

❑ Recommend increasing the basic life amount to 

$25,000.

❑ Recommend removing age reduction schedule on 

Basic Life Benefit.  Typically, carriers can do this 

with minimum rate impact.

50

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.12

Voluntary Life & AD&D

❑ HUB did not have the details of the voluntary life benefits 

for the employees and needs to get this from the City.

❑ Recommendation to discontinue the Dependent Life 

benefit.   This is an outdated benefit and the $10k / $2k 

amounts are inadequate.

❑ Recommend offering Voluntary Life coverage for 

dependents.  The voluntary life benefit is ideal for 

employees; however, additional coverage options should 

be available for Spouse and Children. 51

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.13

A process-driven, consultative service model

52

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.14

Benefits Broker Benefits Consultant

Reach out to you ahead of your plan renewal with the new 

rates of your carriers and will likely come into the office to 

provide a one-hour presentation to staff covering the highlights 

of the plan and allowing for a question-and-answer session.

Meet quarterly to discuss emerging market trends, review 

utilization, strategize on ways to improve the employee’s 

appreciation, understanding and engagement in the benefit 

plan.

Negotiate new rates with your existing carriers and will 

proactively shop your plan with alternative plan designs giving 

you the confidence that you are moving forward with the most 

cost-effective but impactful plan available to your employees.

Provide limited means to control underlying costs.  Advocate 

cost shifting in the form of increased deductibles and copays to 

control costs.

Return control over costs to the City.  Provide detailed data 

driven analysis and actionable insight to help control costs.

Believe costs are dependent on the best offer of the insurance 

carrier.

Understand improving benefits is the only way to lower costs.

Do not consider the needs and wants of the employee

population when creating a benefits plan.

Make benefits a real attraction and retention tool. Most 

importantly, help you show the investment you make in your 

employees by delivering the value of the plan to your 

employees. 

Give limited information on where the money is going.  Do not 

talk about their compensation and hidden commission.  This 

means more income for them if the rates go up.

Bring transparency to where money is going.  Are paid on a 

fixed fee basis and are willing to tie compensation to 

performance.  No hidden compensation is accepted from the 

insurance carriers.  All coverages are offered net of 

commission and savings go straight to the bottom line.  

Offer basic benefit guides and minimal education and support 

at open enrollment (and throughout the year).

Help employees recognize that their total compensation is far 

greater than their annual salary. Offer custom benefit guides, 

focus on education versus benefits, utilize cell phone 

technology, promote wellness, facilitate all carrier interaction 

and handle all service issues on an ongoing basis.

53

Item 1.



© 2020 HUB International Limited.15

Thank You!

54

Item 1.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Administration  

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Purchase Contract with Cube HH Limited Partnership for a 
waterline easement and temporary construction easement for Parcel No. 5. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

In 2021, the City Council approved funding through certificates of obligation proceeds to expand the city’s water 
and sewer infrastructure systems to adequately meet the growth demand for these services.  The US290 & FM973 
waterline project was identified by city staff and George Butler & Associates engineering consultant as a priority 
infrastructure project that needed to be included in the 2021 Certificate of Obligation bond issuance.  

Since January 2023, the GBA’s land acquisition team has assisted the city in acquiring the necessary number of 
temporary and permanent utility easements for both future water and sewer projects.  The owner of the Cube 
storage unit tract accepted the city’s offer to acquire a 20’ permanent water utility easement and 25’ temporary 
construction easement along their property on the south side of the US290 frontage east of FM973.  The city has 
been successful in acquiring the required utility easement from the landowners and has established a good line 
of communication to help secure their support for these public improvements.  This has allowed the GBA team to 
prepare plans for the proposed waterline extension to be extended eastbound south of US290.  Several economic 
development projects are planned for this section of the community and are scheduled to be open in 2024.  The 
registered appraiser completed their fieldwork and comparable analysis and provided the City of Manor with a 
monetary compensation analysis for the easements for parcel 5. 
LEGAL REVIEW:     Yes, Paige Saenz, City Attorney 
FISCAL IMPACT:     No 
PRESENTATION:    No 
ATTACHMENTS:    Yes 

• Purchase Contract – Parcel 5 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The city staff recommends that the City Council approve the purchase contract with Cube HH Limited Partnership 
for a waterline easement and temporary construction easement in an amount not to exceed $19,695. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 
55

Item 2.



56

Item 2.



57

Item 2.



58

Item 2.



59

Item 2.



60

Item 2.



61

Item 2.



62

Item 2.



63

Item 2.



64

Item 2.



65

Item 2.



66

Item 2.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Administration  

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Purchase Contract with Tuan V. Nguyen and Nhieu T. Ngueyn 
for a wastewater easement with a temporary construction easement. 

 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

In 2022, the City of Manor engaged George Butler & Associates to secure a total of 13 different temporary and 
permanent utility easements along the Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Project route.  This project 
was scheduled to have been completed in the fall of 2023 but encountered a few delays in acquiring easements 
from the different property owners.  The Nguyen family has reached an agreement with the city to secure a 25’ 
permanent wastewater utility easement and 25’ temporary construction easement along the designated route 
for the future wastewater line to be installed.  The Right of Way consultants were about to reach a final offer to 
avoid condemnation procedures. The registered appraiser completed their fieldwork and comparable analysis 
and provided the City of Manor with a monetary compensation analysis for the easement for tract 1 at $20,000. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW:     Yes, Kent A. Sick, Attorney 
FISCAL IMPACT:     No 
PRESENTATION:    No 
ATTACHMENTS:    Yes 

• Purchase Contract – Parcel 1 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The city staff recommends that the City Council approve the purchase contract with Tuan V. Nguyen and Nhieu T. 
Ngueyn for a wastewater easement with a temporary construction easement in an amount not to exceed $20,000. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

67

Item 3.



68

Item 3.



69

Item 3.



70

Item 3.



71

Item 3.



72

Item 3.



73

Item 3.



74

Item 3.



75

Item 3.



76

Item 3.



77

Item 3.



78

Item 3.



79

Item 3.



80

Item 3.



81

Item 3.



82

Item 3.



Page 1 of 2 
 

  AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
First reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Specific Use Permit for Medical Offices in Manor 
Crossing allowing 15,000 sq. ft. of medical office and/or medical clinic tenant space, one (1) lot on 18.1 acres, 
more or less, and being located at the intersection of Shadowglen Blvd and US Hwy 290, Manor, Tx 
Applicant: Retail Connections  
Owner: Retail Connections 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This SUP request is on the property for the multi-tenant portion of the larger Manor Crossing development that 
is planned to have an HEB, Home Depot, and 11 pad sites. The multi-tenant property will have approximately 
150,000 sf of commercial space. This SUP is requesting up to 15,000 sf of that be used for medical offices or 
medical clinics. Those uses would include dentists, eye doctors, and clinics.  

P&Z voted 6-1 to approve but reduced the maximum allowable area to 10,000 sf. The Commission wanted to 
maximize the amount of retail and restaurant space in the shopping center. 

The City Council postponed action on this item at the March 20th meeting so the applicant can provide more 
information about the intended uses and their impacts on the 380-tax incentive agreement. 

 
The applicant provided they’re in negotiations with Pacific Dental for 3,200 sf and had inquiries from 
chiropractors, optometrists, physical therapy, massage therapy (Hand & Stone) private practitioners and H-E-B 
has a tenant they call H-E-B Wellness. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Letter of Intent 
• Building layout 
• Proposed tenants 

• Notice 
• Mailing labels 

  

83

Item 4.



Page 2 of 2 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The City Staff recommends that the City Council approve the first reading of a Specific Use Permit for Medical 
Offices in Manor Crossing allowing 15,000 sq. ft. of medical office and/or medical clinic tenant space, one (1) lot 
on 18.1 acres, more or less, and being located at the intersection of Shadowglen Blvd and US Hwy 290, Manor, 
Tx. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval 
X- Reduced to 10,000 sf 

 Disapproval  None 

 

84

Item 4.



 

 
The Retail Connection 

2525 McKinnon Street, Suite 700 
Dallas, TX 75201 

 

March 8, 2024 

 

City of Manor – Planning & Zoning 

105 E Eggleston St, 

Manor, TX 78653 

ATTN: Scott Dunlop, Michael Burrell  Via email: sdunlop@manortx.gov , mburrell@manortx.gov  

 

RE: Letter of Intent regarding applicant’s intent to obtain an SUP in relation to “Medical Office(s)” & 

“Medical Clinic(s)” at Manor Crossing Shopping Center in Manor, Texas. 

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

This Letter of Intent (“LOI”) shall formally represent applicant’s intent to obtain a Special Use Permit 

(“SUP”) for the right to operate one or multiple Medical Office(s) and/or Medical Clinic(s) (as defined in Sec. 

14.01.008 in the city’s ordinance and shown below) up to 15,000 square feet in the zone as shown on Exhibit A 

labeled as “Shopping Center”.  

 

Any and all Medical Office(s) and/or Medical Clinic(s) or replacements thereof, will be of the type and 

quality typically found in Class A shopping centers in Texas. 

 

Medical Office Definition: 

“Office, medical means the use of the site for the consultation, diagnosis, therapeutic, preventative, or corrective 

personal treatment by doctors, dentists, or similar practitioners of medical and healing arts for humans, medical 

or dental laboratories. These facilities can be differentiated from a medical clinic in that such facilities primarily 

operate on an appointment basis, are generally not open to the general walk-in public, and offer specialized services 

or attention.” 

 

Medical Clinic Definition: 

“Medical clinic means the use of the site for the provision of medical, psychiatric, or surgical services on an 

outpatient basis. These facilities can be differentiated from a medical office in that such facilities would be primarily 

open to and operated for the general, walk-in public, and would not normally require an appointment. This use 

includes ambulatory surgical centers (ASC); end-stage renal disease facility (dialysis); outpatient services; and 

freestanding emergency medical care facility.” 

 

               Let us know if there’s further questions. 

 

 

 

      Sincerely, 

 

      CONNECTED ACQUISITION SERVICES, LLC, 

 

 

By:  

Name: Matt Wilson 

 

85

Item 4.

mailto:sdunlop@manortx.gov
mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov


  

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

 

86

Item 4.



S1

S2

R5

R9

R7

R3

S3

R1

U

S

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

2

9

0

 

E

MA
NO

R 
CR

OS
SI

NG
 B

LV
D

no
rth

Manor Crossing
Manor, TX    February 15, 2024

Parking (145,817sf):

Code Maximum = 730 spaces (1:200)

Provided = 660 spaces

Minimum = 418 spaces (1:350 per Dev Agreement)

Retail: 110,817sf @ 1:350= 317

Restaurant: 20,000sf @1:350= 58

Medical Office: 15,000sf @ 1:350 = 43

Shopping Center:

87

Item 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
This site plan is presented solely for the purpose of identifying the approximate location and size of the buildings presently contemplated by the Owner.  Building sizes, site dimensions, access and parking areas, existing tenant locations and identities are subject to change at the Owner's discretion, except as otherwise expressly restricted herein.



88

Item 4.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 
 

 

2/28/2024 
 

City of Manor Development Services 
 

Notification for a Specific Use Permit Application 
 
Project Name: Medical Office SUP - Manor Crossing 
Case Number: 2024-P-1618-CU 
Case Manager: Michael Burrell 
Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov – 512-215-8158 
  
The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a 
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon a Specific Use Permit 
for Medical Offices in Manor Crossing allowing 15,000 sq. ft. of medical office and/or medical 
clinic tenant space and being located at the intersection of Shadowglen Blvd and US Hwy 290, 
Manor, Tx. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 
 
Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Specific Use Permit for Medical Offices in 
Manor Crossing allowing 15,000 sq. ft. of medical office and/or medical clinic tenant space, 
one (1) lot on 18.1 acres, more or less, and being located at the intersection of Shadowglen 
Blvd and US Hwy 290, Manor, Tx 
 
Applicant: Retail Connections  
Owner: Retail Connections 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on March 13, 2024 at 105 East 
Eggleston Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.   
 
Th City of Manor City Council will meet at 7:00PM on March 20, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston 
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.  
 
You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this 
Subdivision Short Form Final Plat Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the 
email address or phone number above. Any communications received will be made available to 
the Commissioners during the discussion of this item.  
 

89

Item 4.

mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov


Manor Crossing - SUP Notices Addresses (300')
Parcel ID Address
710219 14008 Shadowglen Blvd, 78653
568065 12801 Lexington St, 78653
697020 13720 Shadowglade Pl., 78653
697021 13724 Shadowglade Pl., 78653
697022 13728 Shadowglade Pl., 78653
697023 13725 Shadowglade Pl., 78653
697024 13721 Shadowglade Pl., 78653
697025 13717 Shadowglade Pl., 78653
697054 11708 Pillion Pl., 78653
697055 11705 Gold Run CV., 78653
697056 11716 Pillion Pl., 78653
697057 11720 Pillion Pl., 78653
697026 11709 Pillion Pl., 78653
697027 11713 Pillion Pl., 78653
697028 11717 Pillion Pl., 78653
697029 11721 Pillion Pl., 78653
697030 11725 Pillion Pl., 78653
697031 11729 Pillion Pl., 78653
697032 11733 Pillion Pl., 78653
697033 11737 Pillion Pl., 78653
697034 13745 Shady Ridge Ln., 78653
700577 13816 Field Spar Dr., 78653
700578 13820 Field Spar Dr., 78653
700579 13824 Field Spar Dr., 78653
700580 13828 Field Spar Dr., 78653
700581 13832 Field Spar Dr., 78653
700582 11501 Sun Glass Dr., 78653
700616 11505 Sun Glass Dr., 78653
700648 11509 Sun Glass Dr., 78653
700621 11513 Sun Glass Dr., 78653
700590 13821 Field Spar Dr., 78653
700591 13817 Field Spar Dr., 78653
700670 13820 Tercel Trce., 78653
700671 13824 Tercel Trce., 78653
236853 13407 N. FM Rd 973, 78653
236854 E. U.S. HY 290,78653

90

Item 4.



Page 1 of 2 
 

  AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
Second and Final: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance amending Ordinance 698 to 
modify the Planned Unit Development (PUD) Site Plan for the New Haven Final Planned Unit Development 
rezoning from Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit Development, and being located near the corner of 
Gregg Ln and FM 973, Manor, TX  
Applicant: Quiddity Engineering  
Owner: Gregg Lane Dev., LLC 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The New Haven PUD was first approved on April 19th, 2023. The current PUD contains:  

• 190 50’ residential lots 
• 81 60’ residential lots  

o 271 total 
• 1 commercial lot 
• 1 public utility lot (water storage tanks) 
• 21.6 acres of open space and parks, which contain: 

o 8’ – 6’ concrete trails 
o 10-20 space parking lot 
o Shade structure 
o Playgrounds 
o Active play equipment, exercise equipment, volleyball court, picnic tables 
o Benches and trash receptacles  

The revised PUD contains:  

• 175 50’ residential lots  
• 87 60’ residential lots  

o 262 total 
• 1 commercial lot 
• 1 public utility lot (water storage tanks) 
• 26.3 acres of open space and parks, which contain: 

o 8’ – 6’ concrete trails 
o 10-20 space parking lot 
o Shade structure 

91

Item 5.



Page 2 of 2 
 

o Playgrounds 
o Active play equipment, exercise equipment, volleyball court, picnic tables 
o Benches and trash receptacles  

The revised PUD has reduced the number of residential lots by nine and increased the open space and park 
acreage by 4.7 acres. There is no change to the park amenities, the commercial acreage, or the utility lot acreage. 
The street layout has also been revised and there is now more street visibility into the open space and park areas. 

The PUD is being revised because the proposed street is more cost-efficient for the developer due to the 
topography of the area and the grading work necessary during construction.  

P&Z voted 7-0 to approve with conditions: 

1. Parallel parking spaces on the roads adjacent to the ‘Nature Preserve’ and ‘Trail’ areas 
2. Installation of pedestrian safety measures at the intersection of the Primary Collector and 70’ ROW 

The City Council approved the first reading at the March 20th meeting with the additions recommended by P&Z 
of parallel parking spaces adjacent to the Nature Preserve and Trail areas and pedestrian safety measures at the 
intersection of the Primary Collector and 70’ ROW. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Ordinance No. 737 
• New Haven revised PUD 
• New Haven current PUD 
• PUD comparison 

 

• Conformance Letter 
• Ordinance 698 
• Public notice 
• Mailing labels 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The City Staff recommends that the City Council approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 737 amending 
Ordinance 698 to modify the Planned Unit Development (PUD) Site Plan for the New Haven Final Planned Unit 
Development rezoning from Planned Unit Development to Planned Unit Development, and being located near 
the corner of Gregg Ln and FM 973, Manor, TX with the additions of parallel parking spaces adjacent to the Nature 
Preserve and Trail areas and pedestrian safety measures at the intersection of the Primary Collector and 70’ ROW. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval 
X – with conditions 

 Disapproval  None 

 

92

Item 5.



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, 

AMENDING ORDINANCE 698 TO MODIFY THE PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN FOR THE NEW HAVEN FINAL 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT; REZONING FROM PLANNED 

UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

(PUD); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR 

RELATED MATTERS.  

Whereas, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested that 

the Property be rezoned;  

Whereas, Ordinance 698 was adopted by the City of Manor City Council (the “City Council”) 

on April 19, 2023; 

Whereas, the owner of the Property is requesting to amend Ordinance 698 in order to modify 

the Planned Unit Development Site Plan for the New Haven Final Planned Unit Development; 

Whereas, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred feet 

of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed rezoning 

and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; and 

Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date of 

such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of 

the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant 

a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are 

hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

Section 2. Amendment of Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 698 is hereby modified and amended 

by deleting Exhibit “B” in its entirety and replacing it with a new Exhibit “B” to include the modified 

planned unit development site plan for the New Haven Final PUD, attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as if fully set forth. 

Section 3. Severability. Any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any provision 

to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 

applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 

and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 4. Amendment of Conflicting Ordinances.  Exhibit “B” of the City’s Ordinance 

698 is hereby amended as provided in this Ordinance. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in 

conflict with this Ordinance are amended only to the extent of such conflict otherwise remaining in 

full force and effect. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this Ordinance and any code 

or ordinance of the city, the terms and provisions of this Ordinance shall govern. 

737

93

Item 5.



ORDINANCE NO. Page 2 

Section 5. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 

which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 

place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, 

Texas Government Code. 

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 20th day of March 2024. 

PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING on this the 3rd day of 

April 2024. 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 

____________________________ 

Dr. Christopher Harvey,  

Mayor  

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC

City Secretary  

737

94

Item 5.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 3 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT "B” 
 

Planned Unit Development Site Plan for the New Haven Final Planned Unit Development 

[attached]  

 

95

Item 5.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 4 

 

 

 

 

 
96

Item 5.



NATURE
PRESERVE

±12.5

FM
 9

7
3

 N

Manor Senior
High School

Willbarger Creek

Plugerville City Limits

Plugerville ETJ

COM
±2.5

STORAGE
TANK
±2.0

PARK A 
±0.7

O.S.
±0.7

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±0.1

O.S.
±0.1

O.S.
±0.4

O.S.
±0.4

O.S.
±0.1

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±0.5

O.S.
±1.2

O.S.
±0.3

O.S.
±0.3

O.S.
±0.6

TRAIL
±2.8

Manor City Limits

Manor ETJ

CI
TY

 O
F 

PF
LU

G
ER

VI
LL

E

Primary Trail

Primary Trail

30
0

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

70’ R.O.W.

70’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

64
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

Trail
Extension

Secondary Trail

Secondary
Trail

Secondary Trail

(Concrete)

(Concrete)

Playground and
Shade Structure

Landscape Buffer

10
0y

r F
loo

dp
lai

n

Landscape Buffer

P
R

O
P
O

S
E
D

C
O

L
L
E
C

TO
R

30
’

45
’

26
’

Landscape Buffer

R.O.W. Dedication

45
’

45
’

R.O.W. Dedication

PARK B
±3.8

L.S.

NATURE
PRESERVE

±12.5

COM
±2.5

STORAGE
TANK
±2.0

PARK A 
±0.7

O.S.
±0.7

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±0.1

O.S.
±0.1

O.S.
±0.4

O.S.
±0.4

O.S.
±0.1

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±0.5

O.S.
±1.2

O.S.
±0.3

O.S.
±0.3

O.S.
±0.6

TRAIL
±2.8

Manor Senior
High School

Willbarger Creek

Primary Trail
(Concrete)

(Concrete)

Playground and
Shade Structure

Landscape Buffer

10
0y

r F
loo

dp
lai

n

Landscape Buffer

Primary Trail

Trail
Extension

Secondary Trail

Secondary
Trail

Secondary Trail

Plugerville City Limits

Plugerville ETJ

P
R

O
P
O

S
E
D

C
O

L
L
E
C

TO
R

Manor City Limits

Manor ETJ

CI
TY

 O
F 

PF
LU

G
ER

VI
LL

E

30
0

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

70’ R.O.W.

70’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

70
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

Lorem ipsum

30
’

45
’

26
’

Landscape Buffer

R.O.W. Dedication

45
’

45
’

R.O.W. DedicationGREGG LN

(140’ ULTIMATE R.O.W)

PARK B
±3.8

L.S.

GENERAL NOTES:

1)    A MINIMUM FOUR(4) FOOT WIDE, CONCRETE SIDEWALK SHALL BE PRO-
VIDED WITHIN THE GREGG LANE LANDSCAPE BUFFER OR THE EXPANDED 
RIGHT OF WAY FOR GREGG LANE. LOCATION AND ALIGNMENT OF THE 
SIDEWALK SHALL BE COORDINATED DURING THE PRELIMINARY PLAN 
STAGE OF DEVELOPMENT. 

2)   THE CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL AND COMMER-
CIAL AREAS  NEED NOT BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL AND 
ACCEPTANCE OF A FINAL PLAT, BUT MUST BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO THE 
ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY OR WITHIN 2 YEARS FROM 
THE APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT. A COST ESTIMATE FOR THE CON-
STRUCTION OF ANY SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS NOT CONSTRUCT-
ED PRIOR TO THE FINAL APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE FINAL PLAT 
SHALL BE PREPARED AND A BOND FOR 110% OF SUCH COSTS SHALL BE 
POSTED WITH THE CITY. EACH YEAR THE DEVELOPER AND CITY MAY 
AGREE TO THE ADDITIONAL SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS THAT 
WERE COMPLETED DURING THE PREVIOUS YEAR AND REDUCE THE 
AMOUNT OF THE BOND TO REFLECT THE CONSTRUCTION COSTS OF THE 
SIDEWALKS THAT HAVE BEEN COMPLETED. SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL 
AREAS NOT COMPLETED PRIOR TO THE END OF THE 2-YEAR PERIOD 
SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE DEVELOPER OR BY THE CITY WITH THE 
BOND FUNDS. FAILURE TO PROVIDE SUFFICIENT BONDS OR COMPLETE 
THE SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS SHALL NOT OBLIGATE THE CITY 
TO BUILD SIDEWALKS. THE CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS IN NON-RESI-
DENTIAL AREAS SHALL BE COMPLETED DURING SUBDIVISION CONSTRUC-
TION.

3) MIN SETBACK ON COMMERICIAL IS 25’. PROPOSED LANDPLAN PROVIDES 
300 DEPTH WITH 275’ USABLE OUTSIDE BUILDING LINE.

APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZED FOR RECORD BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS.

DATED THIS ___ DAY OF ___________, 20__
BY: ________________________________
DR. CHRISTOPHER HARVEY
MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

THIS PLAT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO AND CONSIDERED BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AND IS HEREBY RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY THE CITY OF
COUNCIL.

DATED THIS ___ DAY OF ___________, 20__
BY: ________________________________
FELIX PAIZ, CHAIRPERSON

PUD DATA TABLES:
1)  APPROVED LAND USES - 

2)  MINIMUM LOT SIZE HEIGHT AND PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS

      
      * Corner lots will be required to have an additional 5’ of width when adjacent to right of way along the side yard.
3)  LOT COVERAGE

4)  PARKING LOT SCREENING
IN COMMERCIAL AREAS, OFF-STREET PARKING FOR MORE THAN FIVE VEHICLES AND LOADING AREAS 
SHALL BE EFFECTIVELY SCREENED BY A PRIVATE FENCE, HEDGE, PLANTING OR NATURAL VEGETATION 
OR TOPOGRAPHY ON EACH SIDE WHICH ADJOINS LAND DESIGNATED FOR A RESIDENTIAL USE OR A 
RESIDENTIAL USE.

5)  LANDSCAPING
THE FOLLOWING PERCENTAGE OF THE NET AREA OF EACH LOT SHALL BE LANDSCAPED. THE NET LOT 
AREA SHALL EQUAL THE TOTAL LOT AREA LESS THE AREA TO BE LEFT UNIMPROVED BECAUSE OF THE 
EXISTENCE OF NATURAL FEATURES THAT ARE WORTHY OF PRESERVATION OR THAT WOULD MAKE 
IMPROVEMENTS IMPRACTICAL.

     

NOTE: MINIMUM LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH LOT WITHIN A SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING 
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF TWO (2) THREE-INCH TREES, SIX (6) TWO-GALLON SHRUBS AND LAWN GRASS 
FROM THE PROPERTY LINE TO THE FRONT TWO (2) CORNERS OF THE STRUCTURE ON LOTS 50’ IN 
WIDTH OR GREATER. 

NOTE: MINIMUM FIFTEEN (15) FOOT LANDSCAPE BUFFER, MEASURED FROM THE EDGE OF THE GREGG 
LANE RIGHT OF WAY, SHALL BE PROVIDED. FOUR(4), MINIMUM THREE(3) INCH CALIPER, TYPE A LARGE 
OR TYPE B MEDIUM NATIVE TREES (AS DEFINED BY THE MANOR CODE OF ORDINANCES) AND 
FIFTEEN(15), MINIMUM THREE(3) GALLON, SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED PER 200 LINEAR FEET OF LAND-
SCAPE BUFFER. 
      
NOTE: FOR INTERNAL, UNLOADED COLLECTOR ROADWAYS, A MINIMUM TEN(10) FOOT LANDSCAPE 
BUFFER, MEASURED FROM THE EDGE OF THE COLLECTOR RIGHT OF WAY, SHALL BE PROVIDED. 
ONE(1), MINIMUM THREE(3) INCH CALLIPER, TYPE A LARGE OR TYPE B MEDIUM NATIVE TREE(AS 
DEFINED BY MANOR CODE OF ORDINANCES) AND FIVE(5), MINIMUM THREE(3) GALLON, SHRUBS SHALL 
BE PLANTED PER 50 LINEAR FEET OF LANDSCAPE BUFFER

6)  PARKLAND - 

PARKLAND WILL BE PROVIDED BY FEE-IN-LIEU ($550.00 PER LOT) OF DEDICATION PER APPLICABLE 
CITY ORDINANCES.

7)  AMENITIES 
NATURE PRESERVE 
1. 8’ Concrete Primary Trail (Site Connectivity)
2. 6‘ Concrete Secondary Trial (Site Connectivity)
3. Benches (300’ Approximate Spacing)
PARK A
1. (1) Shade Structure
2. (1) 2-5 yrs. Playground Structure
3. (1) 5-12 yrs. Playground Structure
4. (1) Swing Set
5. (2) Independent Play Equipment
6. 6‘ Concrete Sidewalk (Site Connectivity)
7. (1) Trash Receptacle 
8. (2) Picnic Tables
9. (2) Benches
10.(1) Pet Waste Station

TRAIL
1. 8’ Concrete Primary Trail (Site Connectivity)
2. Benches (300’ Approximate Spacing)

PARK B
1. 8‘ Concrete Primary Trail (Site Connectivity) 
2. 6’ Concrete Secondary Trail (Site Connectivity)
3. (1) Shade Structure
4. Benches (300’ Approximate Spacing)
5. Trash Receptacles (300’ Approximate Spacing)
6. 10-20 Parking Spaces
    a. Screening Elements (Planting or Fencing) to
        reduce Light Pollution from Vehicles
7. Amenities (Teen)
    a. Shade Trees
    b. Passive Spaces for Social Interaction (2-person 
        and 4-person Tables)
    c. Charging Station (Solar)
    d. Active Spaces for Sports Play
    e. Active Play Equipment (Table Tennis, Corn Hole, Etc.)
    f.  Exercise Equipment
    g. Volleyball Court
    h. Recreation Sports Area 
    i.  (2) Ping-Pong Table

    

                   
 

8)  TRAFFIC
The Traffic Volume will be 6,602 Trips generated to and from this site 

9)  UTILITIES
                                               

Water and Wastewater will be provided by City of Manor 

10) PERMITTED USES - COMMERCIAL C-1
A. ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE ESTABLISHMENT, BREWPUB, LIQUOR SALES, SMOKE SHOP
OR TOBACCO STORE. ALCOHOL SALES SHALL BE COMPLIANT WITH ARTICLE 4.02 ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES.
B. ANTIQUE SHOP, ART STUDIO OR GALLERY, BUSINESS SUPORT SERVICES, GENERAL
RETAIL SALES(CONVENIENCE), GENERAL RETAIL SALES (GENERAL), LAUNDRY SERVICES(SELF),
AND OFF-SITE ACCESSORY PARKING.
C. CHILDCARE CENTER, GOVERNMENT FACILITIES, OFFICES, GOVERMENT, SCHOOL, BOARD-
ING, SCHOOL, BUSINESS OR TRADE, SCHOOL, PRIVATE OR PAROCHIAL, AND SCHOOL, PUBLIC.
D. CLUB OR LODGE, ATHLETIC FACILITY, RESTAURANT, AND THEATER.
E. COMMUNICATION SERVICES OR FACILITIES, CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT SALES (MINOR), 
CONSUMER REPAIR SERVICES, PERSONAL IMPROVEMENT SERVICES, PERSONAL 
SERVICES, RELIGIOUS ASSEMBLIES AND UTILITY SERVICES, MINOR. 

11) CROSS SECTIONS
 

      

Land Use Main Building

Main and 
Accessory 
Building

SF-50' 50% 60%
SF-60' 50% 60%

Commercial 70% 70%

Item Standard Code Variance
Requested

Setback-Front

Setback-Side
Setback-Rear

Lot Width

25 Feet

7.5 Feet
20 Feet

70 Feet

25 feet

5 feet
10 feet

50 feet/60 feet

(20’ on cul-de-sac)

Lot Coverage-
Comm. Main
Lot Coverage-
Comm. Main + 
Accessory

Parkland

60%

70%

Non-floodplain

85%

85%

Within floodplain

Lot Coverage-
Res Main.

40% 60%

Lot Coverage-
Res Main + 
Accessory

50% 65%

Land Use Net Lot Area

SF-50' 20%
SF-60' 20%

Commercial
Open Space/Park

15%
20%

12.) LIST OF ALL REQUESTED VARIANCES

6 ’  M a s o n r y  Wa l l  w i t h
M a s o n r y  C o l u m n s

* M a s o n r y  C o l u m n s  s h a l l  b e  i n s t a l l e d  a p p r o m i x a t e l y  2 0 0 ’  a p a r t .

TOTALS
*calculat ion is approximate and includes adjacent r ight  of  way

Front Side Corner side Rear 
SF-50' 25'/20' on cul de sac 5' 15' 10' 5,750 50' 35' 6 du/ac
SF-60' 25'/20' on cul de sac 5' 15' 10' 7,200 60' 35' 5 du/ac

Commercial 25' 5' 15' 10' n/a 40' 35' n/a

Maximum 
DensityLand Use

Setbacks Minimum 
Lot SF

Minimum 
Lot Width

Maximum 
Height       

SF - 50'  35.6 Ac  175 Lots 175 LUES  
SF - 60' 19.2 Ac 87 Lots 87 LUES 
Commercial 2.5 Ac 1 Lot 50 LUES  

54.3 Ac
 

312 LUES     

Note: These values are intended for 
preliminary analysis only and may vary from 
values provided in the final site design 

 

SF RESIDENTIAL - TYP. 50’x120’
SF RESIDENTIAL - TYP. 60’x125’
COMMERCIAL
UTILITY
DETENTION / NATURE PRESERVE
PARK/OPEN SPACE
TRAILS
COLLECTOR / THOROUGHFARE

35.6 Ac.
19.2 Ac.

2.5 Ac.
2.0 Ac.

12.5 Ac.
10.8 Ac.
 3.0 Ac.
4.7 Ac.

40%
21%
3%
2%

14%
12%
3%
5%

100%90.3 Ac.

LAND USES ACRES*

175 LOTS
87 LOTS

262 LOTS

LOTS TOTAL %

SF

SF

COM

ST

DET

DU

TR

Vicinity Map
Scale: 1” = 2000’

Manor Senior
High School

Subject
Property

Stonewater

GREGG LN

F
M

 9
73

 N

F
U

C
H

S
 G

R
O

V
E

 R
D

.

S
C

H
M

ID
T
 L

O
O

P

Vicinity Map
Scale: 1” = 2000’

M E T A  P L A N
N

I N
G

 +
 D

E
S

I
G

N

© 2 0 2 4 ,  A L L  R I G H T S  R E S E R V E D

M
E

T
A

 P
L

A
N

N
I N G  +  D E S I G N

THIS DRAWING IS A GRAPHIC REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT FOR 
COMPUTATION OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS SUBJECT 
TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. META PLANNING + DESIGN MAY OR MAY NOT INTEGRATE ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHER CONSULTANTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT L IMITED TO THE TOPICS OF 
ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOODPLAINS, AND/OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AS THEY RELATE TO THIS 
DRAWING. NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE PHYSICAL DESIGN, LOCATION, AND 
CHARACTER OF THE FACILITIES SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE INTENDED. ADDITIONALLY, NO WARRANTY IS MADE 
TO THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

© 2024 META PLANNING + DESIGN, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

M TA - 7 8 0 0 7
F E B R U A R Y  1 6 ,  2 0 2 4

SCALE

0 400200100

SCALE

0 400200100

a  p l a n n e d  u n i t  d e v e l o p m e n t
fi n a l  s i t e  p l a n  f o r

p r e p a r e d  f o r

L A N D  P L A N N E R :

E N G I N E E R :

NEWHAVEN PUD
±90.3 ACRES OF LAND

ASHTON GRAY DEVELOPMENT

2 4 2 8 5  K a t y  F r e e w a y,  S t e .  5 2 5
K a t y ,  Te x a s  7 7 4 9 4
Te l :  2 8 1 - 8 1 0 - 1 4 2 2

D R E N N E R  G R O U P,  P C
2 0 0  L e e  B a r t o n  D r i v e ,  S U I T E  1 0 0
A u s t i n ,  Te x a s  7 8 7 0 4

NN

A P P L I C A N T:

3 1 0 0  A l v i n  D e v a n e  B l v d ,  S u i t e  1 5 0
A u s t i n ,  Te x a s  7 8 7 4 1

Te l :  5 1 2 . 4 4 1 . 9 4 9 3
w w w. q u i d d i t y . c o m

97

Item 5.



NATURE
PRESERVE

±12.5

FM
 9

7
3

 N

Manor Senior
High School

Willbarger Creek

Plugerville City Limits

Plugerville ETJ

COM
±2.5

STORAGE
TANK
±2.0

PARK A 
±0.7

O.S.
±0.7

O.S.
±0.3

O.S.
±0.1

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±1.2

O.S.
±0.3

O.S.
±0.5

TRAIL
±2.0

Manor City Limits

Manor ETJ

CI
TY

 O
F 

PF
LU

G
ER

VI
LL

E

Primary Trail

Primary Trail

30
0

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R
.O

.W
.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

70’ R.O.W.

70’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

64’ R
.O

.W
.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.50
’ R

.O
.W

.

Trail
Extension

Secondary Trail

Secondary
Trail

Secondary Trail

(Concrete)

(Concrete)

Playground and
Shade Structure

Landscape Buffer

10
0y

r F
loo

dp
lai

n

Landscape Buffer

P
R

O
P
O

S
E
D

C
O

L
L
E
C

TO
R

30
’

45
’

26
’

Landscape Buffer

R.O.W. Dedication

45
’

45
’

R.O.W. Dedication

PARK B
±2.9

NATURE
PRESERVE

±12.5

COM
±2.5

STORAGE
TANK
±2.0

PARK A 
±0.7

O.S.
±0.7

O.S.
±0.3

O.S.
±0.1

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±0.2

O.S.
±1.2

O.S.
±0.3

O.S.
±0.5

TRAIL
±2.0

Manor Senior
High School

Willbarger Creek

Primary Trail
(Concrete)

(Concrete)

Playground and
Shade Structure

Landscape Buffer

10
0y

r F
loo

dp
lai

n

Landscape Buffer

Primary Trail

Trail
Extension

Secondary Trail

Secondary
Trail

Secondary Trail

Plugerville City Limits

Plugerville ETJ

P
R

O
P
O

S
E
D

C
O

L
L
E
C

TO
R

Manor City Limits

Manor ETJ

CI
TY

 O
F 

PF
LU

G
ER

VI
LL

E

30
0

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R
.O

.W
.

50’ R.O.W.

50’ R.O.W.

70’ R.O.W.

70’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

70’ R
.O

.W
.

50’ R.O.W.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50
’ R

.O
.W

.

50’ R.O.W.50
’ R

.O
.W

.

Lorem ipsum

L.S.

30
’

45
’

26
’

Landscape Buffer

R.O.W. Dedication

45
’

45
’

R.O.W. DedicationGREGG LN

(140’ ULTIMATE R.O.W)

PARK B
±2.9

GENERAL NOTES:

1)    A MINIMUM FOUR(4) FOOT WIDE, CONCRETE SIDEWALK SHALL BE PRO-
VIDED WITHIN THE GREGG LANE LANDSCAPE BUFFER OR THE EXPANDED 
RIGHT OF WAY FOR GREGG LANE. LOCATION AND ALIGNMENT OF THE 
SIDEWALK SHALL BE COORDINATED DURING THE PRELIMINARY PLAN 
STAGE OF DEVELOPMENT. 

2)   THE CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL AND COMMER-
CIAL AREAS  NEED NOT BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO FINAL APPROVAL AND 
ACCEPTANCE OF A FINAL PLAT, BUT MUST BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO THE 
ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY OR WITHIN 2 YEARS FROM 
THE APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT. A COST ESTIMATE FOR THE CON-
STRUCTION OF ANY SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS NOT CONSTRUCT-
ED PRIOR TO THE FINAL APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE FINAL PLAT 
SHALL BE PREPARED AND A BOND FOR 110% OF SUCH COSTS SHALL BE 
POSTED WITH THE CITY. EACH YEAR THE DEVELOPER AND CITY MAY 
AGREE TO THE ADDITIONAL SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS THAT 
WERE COMPLETED DURING THE PREVIOUS YEAR AND REDUCE THE 
AMOUNT OF THE BOND TO REFLECT THE CONSTRUCTION COSTS OF THE 
SIDEWALKS THAT HAVE BEEN COMPLETED. SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL 
AREAS NOT COMPLETED PRIOR TO THE END OF THE 2-YEAR PERIOD 
SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE DEVELOPER OR BY THE CITY WITH THE 
BOND FUNDS. FAILURE TO PROVIDE SUFFICIENT BONDS OR COMPLETE 
THE SIDEWALKS IN RESIDENTIAL AREAS SHALL NOT OBLIGATE THE CITY 
TO BUILD SIDEWALKS. THE CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS IN NON-RESI-
DENTIAL AREAS SHALL BE COMPLETED DURING SUBDIVISION CONSTRUC-
TION.

3) MIN SETBACK ON COMMERICIAL IS 25’. PROPOSED LANDPLAN PROVIDES 
300 DEPTH WITH 275’ USABLE OUTSIDE BUILDING LINE.

APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZED FOR RECORD BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS.

DATED THIS ___ DAY OF ___________, 20__
BY: ________________________________
DR. CHRISTOPHER HARVEY
MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

THIS PLAT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO AND CONSIDERED BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AND IS HEREBY RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY THE CITY OF
COUNCIL.

DATED THIS ___ DAY OF ___________, 20__
BY: ________________________________
JULIE LEONARD, CHAIRPERSON

PUD DATA TABLES:
1)  APPROVED LAND USES - 

2)  MINIMUM LOT SIZE HEIGHT AND PLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS

      
      * Corner lots will be required to have an additional 5’ of width when adjacent to right of way along the side yard.
3)  LOT COVERAGE

4)  PARKING LOT SCREENING
IN COMMERCIAL AREAS, OFF-STREET PARKING FOR MORE THAN FIVE VEHICLES AND LOADING AREAS 
SHALL BE EFFECTIVELY SCREENED BY A PRIVATE FENCE, HEDGE, PLANTING OR NATURAL VEGETATION 
OR TOPOGRAPHY ON EACH SIDE WHICH ADJOINS LAND DESIGNATED FOR A RESIDENTIAL USE OR A 
RESIDENTIAL USE.

5)  LANDSCAPING
THE FOLLOWING PERCENTAGE OF THE NET AREA OF EACH LOT SHALL BE LANDSCAPED. THE NET LOT 
AREA SHALL EQUAL THE TOTAL LOT AREA LESS THE AREA TO BE LEFT UNIMPROVED BECAUSE OF THE 
EXISTENCE OF NATURAL FEATURES THAT ARE WORTHY OF PRESERVATION OR THAT WOULD MAKE 
IMPROVEMENTS IMPRACTICAL.

     

NOTE: MINIMUM LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH LOT WITHIN A SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING 
SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF TWO (2) TWO-INCH TREES, SIX (6) TWO-GALLON SHRUBS AND LAWN GRASS 
FROM THE PROPERTY LINE TO THE FRONT TWO (2) CORNERS OF THE STRUCTURE ON LOTS 50’ IN 
WIDTH OR GREATER. 

NOTE: MINIMUM FIFTEEN (15) FOOT LANDSCAPE BUFFER, MEASURED FROM THE EDGE OF THE GREGG 
LANE RIGHT OF WAY, SHALL BE PROVIDED. FOUR(4), MINIMUM THREE(3) INCH CALIPER, TYPE A LARGE 
OR TYPE B MEDIUM NATIVE TREES (AS DEFINED BY THE MANOR CODE OF ORDINANCES) AND 
FIFTEEN(15), MINIMUM THREE(3) GALLON, SHRUBS SHALL BE PLANTED PER 200 LINEAR FEET OF LAND-
SCAPE BUFFER. 
      
NOTE: FOR INTERNAL, UNLOADED COLLECTOR ROADWAYS, A MINIMUM TEN(10) FOOT LANDSCAPE 
BUFFER, MEASURED FROM THE EDGE OF THE COLLECTOR RIGHT OF WAY, SHALL BE PROVIDED. 
ONE(1), MINIMUM THREE(3) INCH CALLIPER, TYPE A LARGE OR TYPE B MEDIUM NATIVE TREE(AS 
DEFINED BY MANOR CODE OF ORDINANCES) AND FIVE(5), MINIMUM THREE(3) GALLON, SHRUBS SHALL 
BE PLANTED PER 50 LINEAR FEET OF LANDSCAPE BUFFER

6)  PARKLAND - 

PARKLAND WILL BE PROVIDED BY FEE-IN-LIEU ($550.00 PER LOT) OF DEDICATION PER APPLICABLE 
CITY ORDINANCES.

7)  AMENITIES 
NATURE PRESERVE 
1. 8’ Concrete Primary Trail (Site Connectivity)
2. 6‘ Concrete Secondary Trial (Site Connectivity)
3. Benches (300’ Approximate Spacing)
PARK A
1. (1) Shade Structure
2. (1) 2-5 yrs. Playground Structure
3. (1) 5-12 yrs. Playground Structure
4. (1) Swing Set
5. (2) Independent Play Equipment
6. 6‘ Concrete Sidewalk (Site Connectivity)
7. (1) Trash Receptacle 
8. (2) Picnic Tables
9. (2) Benches
10.(1) Pet Waste Station

TRAIL
1. 8’ Concrete Primary Trail (Site Connectivity)
2. Benches (300’ Approximate Spacing)

PARK B
1. 8‘ Concrete Primary Trail (Site Connectivity) 
2. 6’ Concrete Secondary Trail (Site Connectivity)
3. (1) Shade Structure
4. Benches (300’ Approximate Spacing)
5. Trash Receptacles (300’ Approximate Spacing)
6. 10-20 Parking Spaces
    a. Screening Elements (Planting or Fencing) to
        reduce Light Pollution from Vehicles
7. Amenities (Teen)
    a. Shade Trees
    b. Passive Spaces for Social Interaction (2-person 
        and 4-person Tables)
    c. Charging Station (Solar)
    d. Active Spaces for Sports Play
    e. Active Play Equipment (Table Tennis, Corn Hole, Etc.)
    f.  Exercise Equipment
    g. Volleyball Court
    h. Recreation Sports Area 

    

                   
 

8)  TRAFFIC
The Traffic Volume will be 4,000 Trips generated to and from this site 

9)  UTILITIES
                                               

Water and Wastewater will be provided by City of Manor 

10) PERMITTED USES - COMMERCIAL C-1
A. ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE ESTABLISHMENT, BREWPUB, LIQUOR SALES, SMOKE SHOP
OR TOBACCO STORE. 
 B. ANTIQUE SHOP, ART STUDIO OR GALLERY, BUSINESS SUPORT SERVICES, GENERAL
RETAIL SALES(CONVENIENCE), GENERAL RETAIL SALES (GENERAL), LAUNDRY SERVICES(SELF),
AND OFF-SITE ACCESSORY PARKING.
 C. CHILDCARE CENTER, GOVERNMENT FACILITIES, OFFICES, GOVERMENT, SCHOOL, 
BOARDING, SCHOOL, BUSINESS OR TRADE, SCHOOL, PRIVATE OR PAROCHIAL, AND SCHOOL, 
PUBLIC.
 D. CLUB OR LODGE, ATHLETIC FACILITY, RESTAURANT, AND THEATER.
 E. COMMUNICATION SERVICES OR FACILITIES, CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT SALES 
(MINOR), CONSUMER REPAIR SERVICES, PERSONAL IMPROVEMENT SERVICES, PERSONAL 
SERVICES, RELIGIOUS ASSEMBLIES AND UTILITY SERVICES, MINOR. 

11) CROSS SECTIONS
 

      

Land Use Main Building

Main and 
Accessory 
Building

SF-50' 50% 60%
SF-60' 50% 60%

Commercial 70% 70%

Item Standard Code Variance
Requested

Setback-Front

Setback-Side
Setback-Rear

Lot Width

25 Feet

7.5 Feet
20 Feet

70 Feet

25 feet

5 feet
10 feet

50 feet/60 feet

(20’ on cul-de-sac)

Lot Coverage-
Comm. Main
Lot Coverage-
Comm. Main + 
Accessory

Parkland

60%

70%

Non-floodplain

85%

85%

Within floodplain

Lot Coverage-
Res Main.

40% 60%

Lot Coverage-
Res Main + 
Accessory

50% 65%

Land Use Net Lot Area

SF-50' 20%
SF-60' 20%

Commercial
Open Space/Park

15%
20%

12.) LIST OF ALL REQUESTED VARIANCES

6 ’  M a s o n r y  Wa l l  w i t h
M a s o n r y  C o l u m n s

* M a s o n r y  C o l u m n s  s h a l l  b e  i n s t a l l e d  a p p r o m i x a t e l y  2 0 0 ’  a p a r t .

TOTALS
*calculat ion is approximate and includes adjacent r ight  of  way

Front Side Corner side Rear 
SF-50' 25'/20' on cul de sac 5' 15' 10' 5,750 50' 35' 6 du/ac
SF-60' 25'/20' on cul de sac 5' 15' 10' 7,200 60' 35' 5 du/ac

Commercial 25' 5' 15' 10' n/a 40' 35' n/a

Maximum 
DensityLand Use

Setbacks Minimum 
Lot SF

Minimum 
Lot Width

Maximum 
Height       

SF - 50'  36.3 Ac  190 Lots 190 LUES 
SF - 60' 23.3 Ac 82 Lots 82 LUES 
Commercial 2.5 Ac 1 Lot 50 LUES  

62.1 Ac
 

322 LUES     

Note: These values are intended for 
preliminary analysis only and may vary from 
values provided in the final site design 

 

SF RESIDENTIAL - TYP. 50’x120’
SF RESIDENTIAL - TYP. 60’x125’
COMMERCIAL
UTILITY
DETENTION/NATURE PRESERVE
PARK/OPEN SPACE
TRAILS
COLLECTOR

36.3 Ac.
23.1 Ac.

2.5 Ac.
2.0 Ac.

12.5 Ac.
7.1 Ac.

 2.0 Ac.
4.8 Ac.

40%
26%

3%
2%

14%
8%
2%
5%

100%90.3 Ac.

LAND USES ACRES*

190 LOTS
81 LOTS

271 LOTS

LOTS TOTAL %

SF

SF

COM

ST

DET

DU

TR

Vicinity Map
Scale: 1” = 2000’

Manor Senior
High School

Subject
Property

Stonewater

GREGG LN

F
M

 9
73

 N

F
U

C
H

S
 G

R
O

V
E

 R
D

.

S
C

H
M

ID
T
 L

O
O

P

Vicinity Map
Scale: 1” = 2000’

M E T A  P L A N
N

I N
G

 +
 D

E
S

I
G

N

© 2 0 2 2 ,  A L L  R I G H T S  R E S E R V E D

M
E

T
A

 P
L

A
N

N
I N G  +  D E S I G N

THIS DRAWING IS A GRAPHIC REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT FOR 
COMPUTATION OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE WITHOUT NOTICE. META PLANNING + DESIGN MAY OR MAY NOT INTEGRATE 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHER CONSULTANTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE 
TOPICS OF ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOODPLAINS, AND/OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AS THEY 
RELATE TO THIS DRAWING. NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE PHYSICAL DESIGN, 
LOCATION, AND CHARACTER OF THE FACILITIES SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE INTENDED. ADDITIONALLY, NO 
WARRANTY IS MADE TO THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

M TA - 7 8 0 0 7
D E C E M B E R  5 ,  2 0 2 2

SCALE

0 400200100

SCALE

0 400200100

a  p l a n n e d  u n i t  d e v e l o p m e n t
fi n a l  s i t e  p l a n  f o r

p r e p a r e d  f o r

L A N D  P L A N N E R :

E N G I N E E R :

NEWHAVEN PUD
±90.3 ACRES OF LAND

ASHTON GRAY DEVELOPMENT

2 4 2 7 5  K a t y  F r e e w a y,  S t e .  2 0 0
K a t y ,  Te x a s  7 7 4 9 4
Te l :  2 8 1 - 8 1 0 - 1 4 2 2

D R E N N E R  G R O U P,  P C
2 0 0  L e e  B a r t o n  D r i v e ,  S U I T E  1 0 0
A u s t i n ,  Te x a s  7 8 7 0 4

NN

A P P L I C A N T:

3 1 0 0  A l v i n  D e v a n e  B l v d ,  S u i t e  1 5 0
A u s t i n ,  Te x a s  7 8 7 4 1

Te l :  5 1 2 . 4 4 1 . 9 4 9 3
w w w. q u i d d i t y . c o m

98

Item 5.



                                                                                     PROPOSED               CURRENT

                  

99

Item 5.



Date: Tuesday, February 20, 2024

Brad Carabajal
Quiddity Engineering

 TX 
bcarabajal@quiddity.com

Permit Number 2024-P-1617-ZO
Job Address: ,  

Dear Brad Carabajal,

The submittal of the revised New Haven PUD Update Site Plans submitted by Quiddity Engineering 
and received by our office on 2/20/2024, has been reviewed for compliance with the City of Manor 
Zoning Ordinance 185.  The Plans appear to be in general compliance with City Ordinance 
requirements and we therefore take no exception to their approval as presented.

Please submit a hard copy of the cover sheet to Scott Dunlop at the City of Manor for 
signatures.  A copy of the signed cover sheet will be uploaded under project files on the my 
permit now website.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations 
supplied by the applicant are accurate, complete, or adequate for the intended purpose.  The 
engineer of record is solely responsible for the completeness, accuracy, and adequacy of his/her 
submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for Ordinance compliance.  Please 
call if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Pauline Gray, P.E.
Lead AES
GBA

1500 County Road 269 
Leander, TX 78641 

P.O. Box 2029 
Leander, TX 78646-2029 

100

Item 5.



101

Item 5.



102

Item 5.



103

Item 5.



104

Item 5.



105

Item 5.



106

Item 5.



107

Item 5.



108

Item 5.



109

Item 5.



110

Item 5.



111

Item 5.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 
(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 
 

 

2/28/2024 
 

City of Manor Development Services 
 

Notification for a PUD Amendment 
 
Project Name: New Haven PUD Update 
Case Number: 2024-P-1617-ZO 
Case Manager: Michael Burrell 
Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov – 512-215-8158 
  
The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a 
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) amendment for the New Haven Subdivision being located at the corner of 
Gregg Ln and FM 973, Manor, Tx. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 
 
Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
amendment for the New Haven Subdivision being located at the corner of Gregg Ln and FM 
973, Manor, Tx 
 
Applicant: Quiddity Engineering  
Owner: Gregg Lane Dev., LLC 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on March 13, 2024 at 105 East 
Eggleston Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.   
 
Th City of Manor City Council will meet at 7:00PM on March 20, 2024 at 105 East Eggleston 
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.  
 
The purpose of this amendment is to alter the number of residential lots, increase park/openspace 
acreage, and change the street layout within the subdivision.  
 
You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) amendment has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the 
email address or phone number above. Any communications received will be made available to 
the Commissioners during the discussion of this item.  

112

Item 5.

mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov


RUST CREEK LLC 
9606 OLD MANOR RD #1  

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78724-1114 
 

 

  
15701 ANDERSON ROAD MANOR LLC 

109 GROSEBECK LN 
LEANDER, TEXAS 78641-4036 

 

  
PFLUGERVILLE ISD 

PO BOX 589  
PFLUGERVILLE, TEXAS 78691-0589 

 

 
AQUA WATER SUPPLY CORP 

PO BOX P 
BASTROP, TEXAS 78602-1989 

 

  
FORTUNE LAND INVESTMENTS LLC 

223 DAKOTA DR 
CEDAR PARK, TEXAS 78613-7826 

  
LUTZ JAMES T & ALEXANDRA CARRILLO 

14812 N F M RD 973  
MANOR, TEXAS 78653 

 

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MANOR 

533 HIWASEE ROAD  
WAXAHACHIE, TEXAS 75165-6448 

  
57 ACRES ANDERSON RD MANOR LLC 

109 GROSEBECK LN 
LEANDER, TEXAS 78641-4036 

 

  
MONARCH RANCH AT MANOR LLC 

310 ENTERPRISE DR  
OXFORD, MISSISSIPPI 38655-2762 

 

 
GAB MANOR LLC 

4517 THREE ARROWS CT 
CEDAR PARK, TEXAS 78613-4838 

  
MANOR INDEPENDENT SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 
PO BOX 359 

MANOR, TEXAS 78653-0359 
 
 

  

     

     

     

     

     

     

113

Item 5.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Development Agreement establishing development standards 
for Exxon Price Sign. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Our sign code (Section 15.04.018(15)) only permits electronic signs by development agreement, and with that 
development agreement, any non-conforming outdoor lighting needs to be brought into compliance with current 
codes, or if it’s a new development, then the outdoor lighting must remain in compliance with our outdoor lighting 
code. 

This property is existing and has non-conforming outdoor light fixtures. The electronic sign was allowed to be 
installed while this agreement was completed and the plan for how the lighting would be brought into compliance 
was reviewed. Under the agreement, the total lumen count for the property is 61,000, but they propose 38,580. 
Some fixtures on the front of the building have already been modified to fully shielded ones so they no longer 
project light above a horizontal plane and into oncoming traffic on US 290. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Deron Henry, Associate Attorney 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Agreement 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The City Staff recommends that the City Council approve a Development Agreement establishing development 
standards for Exxon Price Sign and authorize the City Manager to execute. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

114

Item 6.



1 
 

 DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 ESTABLISHING DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  

FOR EXXON PRICE SIGN DEVELOPMENT 
 
 This Development Agreement Establishing Development Standards for the EXXON PRICE 
SIGN Development (the "Agreement") is made and entered into, effective as of the ___ day of 
___________, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home 
rule municipal corporation (the "City"), and V&S Enterprises, LC (the “Developer”).  The City and 
the Developer are sometimes referred to herein as the "Parties."  The Parties agree as follows. 
 
Section 1.  Purpose; Consideration. 

(a) The Developer owns that certain 0.610 acre tract located in Travis County, Texas, being more 
particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes 
(the “Property”) and wishes to develop the Property for the EXXON PRICE SIGN (the 
“Development”).  The Developer desires that the City allow for the placement and installation 
of an EXXON PRICE SIGN more particularly described in Exhibit B attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes (the “Electronic Sign”) on the Property in accordance 
with the development standards set forth herein regarding the Electronic Sign and for the City 
to be able to enforce the development standards set forth herein through its sign permit and 
inspection processes by this Agreement. 

 
(b) The Developer will benefit from the placement and installation of the Electronic Sign for the 

Development; and the City enforcing the development standards as set forth herein.  The City 
will benefit from this Agreement by having assurance regarding certain development 
standards for the Electronic Sign being placed and installed as part of the Development, 
having certainty that such development standards may be enforced by the City, and 
preservation of property values within the City. 

 
(c) The benefits to the Parties set forth in this Section 1, plus the mutual promises expressed 

herein, are good and valuable consideration for this Agreement, the sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged by both Parties.  

 
Section 2.  Term; Termination.   

(a) The term of this Agreement shall be in full force and effect from the Effective Date hereof, 
subject to earlier termination as provided in this Agreement.  Unless earlier terminated as 
provided in this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate upon the removal of the 
Electronic Sign described in Exhibit B.  
 

(b) The Parties further mutually agree that this Agreement shall be in full force and effect upon 
the date above first written, provided that the City may terminate this Agreement if Developer 
defaults under the terms of this Agreement, subject to the notice and cure provisions in 
Section 6 herein. 
 

Section 3.  Development Standards.  
 

(a) Development Requirements.  The Sign shall be placed and installed on the Property as 

115

Item 6.



2 
 

described in Exhibit B and in accordance with the development standards set out in the 
City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 15, Site Development, Section 15.04.018. 
 

(b) Sign Permit.  The Developer acknowledges and agrees that compliance with Section 3(a) 
above will be a condition of issuance of the sign permit. Developer further agrees that the 
City may use its permitting, inspection, and enforcement processes and procedures to 
enforce the requirements of Section 3(a) above, including but not limited to rejection of 
the sign application and plans, stop work orders, and disapproval of inspections for the 
sign application and/or work that does not comply with this Agreement. The Application 
and plans for a sign permit must demonstrate compliance with this Agreement in order for 
a sign permit to be issued.  The application for the sign permit must be in compliance with 
this Agreement, as well as the Applicable Regulations, as herein defined, in order for such 
application to be approved and the sign permit issued.  Plans demonstrating compliance with 
this Agreement must accompany the sign permit application and will become a part of the 
approved permit. The Electronic Sign constructed on the Property must comply with this 
Agreement and the Applicable Regulations for a sign permit to be issued. 

 
Section 4.  Placement and Installation of the Electronic Sign.  Except as modified by this 
Agreement, the placement and installation of the Electronic Sign will be done in accordance with all 
applicable local, state, and federal regulations, including but not limited to the City’s ordinances and 
the site plan regulations applicable to the Electronic Sign, and such amendments to City ordinances 
and regulations that that may be applied to the Electronic Sign under Chapter 245, Texas Local 
Government Code, and good engineering practices (the “Applicable Regulations”).  If there is a 
conflict between the Applicable Regulations and the Development Standards, the Development 
Standards shall control.   
 
Section 5.  Assignment of Commitments and Obligations; Covenant Running with the Land.   

(a) Developer’s rights and obligations under this Agreement may be assigned by Developer 
to one (1) or more purchasers of all or part of the Property; provided the City Council must 
first approve and consent to any such assignment by Developer of this Agreement or of 
any right or duty of Developer pursuant to this Agreement, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed. 
 

(b) This Agreement shall constitute a covenant that runs with the Property and is binding on 
future owners of the Property.  The Developer and the City acknowledge and agree that 
this Agreement is binding upon the City and the Developer and their respective successors, 
executors, heirs, and assigns, as applicable, for the term of this Agreement.  

 
Section 6.  Default.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no party shall be deemed to 
be in default hereunder until the passage of fourteen (14) business days after receipt by such party 
of notice of default from the other party. Upon the passage of fourteen (14) business days without 
cure of the default, such party shall be deemed to have defaulted for purposes of this Agreement; 
provided that if the nature of the default is that it cannot reasonably be cured within the fourteen 
(14) business day period, the defaulting party shall have a longer period of time as may be 
reasonably necessary to cure the default in question; but in no event more than sixty (60) days.  In 
the event of default, the non-defaulting party to this Agreement may pursue the remedy of specific 

116

Item 6.



3 
 

performance, equitable legal remedy not inconsistent with this Agreement or remedies provided 
by City Ordinances.  All remedies will be cumulative and the pursuit of one authorized remedy 
will not constitute an election of remedies or a waiver of the right to pursue any other authorized 
remedy.  In addition to the other remedies set forth herein, the City may withhold approval of a 
building permit application or a certificate of occupancy for a structure that does not comply with 
the Development Standards. 
 
Section 7.  Reservation of Rights.  To the extent not inconsistent with this Agreement, each party 
reserves all rights, privileges, and immunities under applicable laws, and neither party waives any 
legal right or defense available under law or in equity. 
 
Section 8.  Attorneys Fees.  In the event of action pursued in court to enforce rights under this 
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to its costs and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, incurred in connection with such action. 
 
Section 9.  Waiver.  Any failure by a party to insist upon strict performance by the other party of 
any provision of this Agreement will not, regardless of length of time during which that failure 
continues, be deemed a waiver of that party’s right to insist upon strict compliance with all terms 
of this Agreement.  In order to be effective as to a party, any waiver of default under this Agreement 
must be in writing, and a written waiver will only be effective as to the specific default and as to 
the specific period of time set forth in the written waiver.  A written waiver will not constitute a 
waiver of any subsequent default, or of the right to require performance of the same or any other 
provision of this Agreement in the future. 
 
Section 10.  Force Majeure.   

(a) The term "force majeure" as employed herein shall mean and refer to acts of God; strikes, 
lockouts, or other industrial disturbances: acts of public enemies, orders of any kind of the 
government of the United States, the State of Texas or any civil or military authority; 
insurrections; riots; epidemic; landslides; lightning, earthquakes; fires, hurricanes; storms, 
floods; washouts; droughts; arrests; restraint of government and people; civil disturbances; 
explosions; breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines, or canals; or other causes not 
reasonably within the control of the party claiming such inability. 

 
(b) If, by reason of force majeure, any party hereto shall be rendered wholly or partially unable 

to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, then such party shall give written notice of 
the full particulars of such force majeure to the other party within ten (10) days after the 
occurrence thereof.  The obligations of the party giving such notice, to the extent effected by 
the force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability claimed, except 
as hereinafter provided, but for no longer period, and the party shall endeavor to remove or 
overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch. 

 
(c) It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes and lockouts shall be entirely within 

the discretion of the party having the difficulty, and that the above requirement that any force 
majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require that the settlement be 
unfavorable in the judgment of the party having the difficulty. 

  

117

Item 6.



4 
 

Section 11.  Notices.  Any notice to be given hereunder by any party to another party shall be in 
writing and may be effected by personal delivery or by sending said notices by registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, to the address set forth below.  Notice shall be deemed given when 
deposited with the United States Postal Service with sufficient postage affixed. 
 
 Any notice mailed to the City shall be addressed: 

 City of Manor    
 Attn: City Manager    
 105 E. Eggleston Street    
 Manor, Texas 78653 
   

 with copy to: 
  The Knight Law Firm, LLP 
  Attn: Paige H. Saenz 
  223 West Anderson Lane, #A105 
  Austin, Texas 78752 
  
 Any notice mailed to the Developer shall be addressed: 
 

V&S Enterprises, LC 
3267 Bee Cave Rd 
Suite 107 PMB 92 
Austin, TX 78746 

 
Any party may change the address for notice to it by giving notice of such change in accordance with 
the provisions of this section. 
 
Section 12.  Waiver of Alternative Benefits.  The Parties acknowledge the mutual promises and 
obligations of the Parties expressed herein are good, valuable and sufficient consideration for this 
Agreement. Therefore, save and except the right to enforce the obligations of the City to perform 
each and all of the City’s duties and obligations under this Agreement, Developer hereby waives 
any and all claims or causes of action against the City Developer may have for or with respect to 
any duty or obligation undertaken by Developer pursuant to this Agreement, including any benefits 
that may have been otherwise available to Developer but for this Agreement.  
 
Section 13.  Severability.  Should any court declare or determine that any provisions of this 
Agreement is invalid or unenforceable under present or future laws, that provision shall be fully 
severable; this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of this Agreement and the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected by the 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision or by its severance from this Agreement. Furthermore, 
in place of each such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision, there shall be added automatically 
as a part of this Agreement a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable 
provision as may be possible and be legal, valid, and enforceable. Texas law shall govern the 
validity and interpretation of this Agreement.  
  

118

Item 6.



5 
 

Section 14. Agreement and Amendment.  This Agreement, together with any exhibits attached 
hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between Parties and may not be amended except by a 
writing approved by the City Council of the City that is signed by all Parties and dated subsequent 
to the date hereof. 
 
Section 15.  No Joint Venture. The terms of this Agreement are not intended to and shall not be 
deemed to create any partnership or joint venture among the parties.  The City, its past, present 
and future officers, elected officials, employees and agents, do not assume any responsibilities or 
liabilities to any third party in connection with the development of the Property.  The City enters 
into this Agreement in the exercise of its public duties and authority to provide for development 
of property within the city pursuant to its police powers and for the benefit and protection of the 
public health, safety, and welfare. 
 
Section 16.  No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not intended, nor will it be 
construed, to create any third-party beneficiary rights in any person or entity who is not a party, 
unless expressly provided otherwise herein, or in a written instrument executed by both the City 
and the third party.  Absent a written agreement between the City and third party providing 
otherwise, if a default occurs with respect to an obligation of the City under this Agreement, any 
notice of default or action seeking a remedy for such default must be made by the Owner. 
 
Section 17.  Effective Date.  The Effective Date of this Agreement is the defined date set forth in 
the first paragraph. 

 
Section 18.  Texas Law Governs.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Texas and shall be performable in Travis County, Texas.  Venue shall lie 
exclusively in Travis County, Texas. 
 
Section 19. Captions.  The captions preceding the text of each section and paragraph hereof, if 
any, are included only for convenience of reference and shall be disregarded in the construction 
and interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
Section 20. Interpretation. This Agreement has been jointly negotiated by the Parties and shall 
not be construed against a party because that party may have primarily assumed responsibility for 
the drafting of this Agreement. 
 
Section 21. Authority. Each party hereto warrants that each has the full legal authority to execute 
and deliver this Agreement.  In addition, the individual who executes this Agreement on behalf of 
each party hereto is authorized to act for and on behalf of such party and to bind such party to the 
terms and provisions hereof. 
 
Section 22. Anti-Boycott Verification.  To the extent this Agreement constitutes a contract for 
goods or services within the meaning of Section 2270.002 of the Texas Government Code, as 
amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government Code, 
and subject to applicable Federal law, the Developer represents that neither the Developer nor any 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Developer (i) 
boycotts Israel or (ii) will boycott Israel through the term of this  Agreement. The terms “boycotts 

119

Item 6.



6 
 

Israel” and “boycott Israel” as used in this paragraph have the meanings assigned to the term 
“boycott Israel” in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. 

 
Section 23. Iran, Sudan and Foreign Terrorist Organizations.  To the extent this Agreement 
constitute a governmental contract within the meaning of Section 2252.151 of the Texas 
Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2252 of the Texas 
Government Code, and except to the extent otherwise required by applicable federal 
law, Developer represents that Developer nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned 
subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Developer is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller 
of Public Accounts under Sections 2270.0201, or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Section 24. Anti-Boycott Verification – Energy Companies.  The Developer hereby verifies 
that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, 
do not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies during the term of this 
Second Amendment.  The foregoing verification is made solely to comply with Section 2274.002, 
Texas Government Code, and to the extent such Section is not inconsistent with a governmental 
entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 
debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds.  As used 
in the foregoing verification, “boycott energy company” means, without an ordinary business 
purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action 
that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with a 
company because the company: (A) engages in the exploration, production, utilization, 
transportation, sale, or manufacturing of fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge 
to meet environmental standards beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business 
with a company described by the preceding statement in (A). 
 
Section 25. Anti-Discrimination Verification – Firearm Entities and Firearm Trade 
Associations.  The Developer hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-
owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not have a practice, policy, guidance, or 
directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association and will not have 
a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade 
association during the term of this Second Amendment.  The foregoing verification is made solely 
to comply with Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code.  As used in the foregoing verification, 
“discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association” means: (i)  refuse to engage in 
the trade of any goods or services with the entity or association based solely on its status as a 
firearm entity or firearm trade association; (ii)  refrain from continuing an existing business 
relationship with the entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm 
trade association; or (iii)  terminate an existing business relationship with the entity or association 
based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; but does not include (a)  
the established policies of a merchant, retail seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing 
or selling of ammunition, firearms, or firearm accessories; or (b)  a company's refusal to engage 
in the trade of any goods or services, decision to refrain from continuing an existing business 
relationship, or decision to terminate an existing business relationship to comply with federal, 
state, or local law, policy, or regulations or a directive by a regulatory agency; or for any 
traditional business reason that is specific to the customer or potential customer and not based 
solely on an entity's or association's status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

120

Item 6.



7 
 

 
 
Section 26.  Time is of the Essence.  It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that time is of the 
essence in the performance of this Agreement. 
 
Section 27.  Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement, and made a part hereof 
for all purposes: 
  
 Exhibit A – Property Description 
 Exhibit B – Sign Description 
  
  
Section 28. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 
which will be deemed original, and all of which will constitute one and the same agreement. Each 
such executed copy shall have the full force and effect of an original executed instrument. 
 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 
 
 
 
  

121

Item 6.



8 
 

EXECUTED in multiple originals as of the Effective Date. 
       

CITY: 
      City of Manor, Texas 

 a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
Attest: 
 
By:       By:      
Name: Lluvia T. Almaraz   Name:  Scott Moore 
Title:  City Secretary    Title: City Manager   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2024, by 
Scott Moore, City Manager of the City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation, 
on behalf of said corporation.  

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
  

122

Item 6.



9 
 

 
       
      
  

123

Item 6.



10 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 

[Attached hereto] 
 

124

Item 6.



Exhibit A page 1 

 
125

Item 6.



12 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
 

[Attached hereto] 
 

126

Item 6.



 

 
Exhibit B page 2 

 

127

Item 6.



 

 
Exhibit B page 3 

 
 

128

Item 6.



Page 1 of 2 
 

  AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas amending Manor Code 
of Ordinances Chapter 13 Utilities by amending the chapter title, amending definitions, declaring stormwater 
drainage to be a public utility, establishing a municipal stormwater utility system, providing for the establishment 
and calculations of stormwater drainage utility charges and credits, providing for penalties and appeals, providing 
a severability clause, providing savings, effective date, and open meetings clauses, and providing for related 
matters.  

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Phase 1 of the city’s proposed stormwater utility was approved in April 2022. Phase 1 included an assessment of 
the city’s needs, the feasibility of a stormwater utility, and a draft rate model. Phase 2 was approved in July 2023 
and it included finalizing the rate model and data necessary to implement the fee, if approved, and assisting with 
public outreach, when conducted. Phase 3 was approved in February 2024 and included the consultant, Raftelis, 
implementing the fee into our billing system. 

As was provided for in the rate model, the proposed drainage fee per single-family home is $6.50 per month, with 
non-single family properties paying based on the amount of impervious cover on the property. At the July 19, 
2023 City Council meeting, staff was provided direction from the City Council to proceed with a starting rate of 
$6.50 per ERU. 

This draft ordinance is presented to the City Council for review prior to its publication as required by state law. 
The ordinance is planned to be published on April 12th, April 19th, and April 26th in the Manor Journal. It will come 
back to the City Council for approval at the May 15th meeting. 

The draft ordinance adds the drainage utility to the city’s code of ordinances and includes: creation of a utility 
fund, billing procedures, appeals, penalties, and exemptions. It does not set the rate, as that will be done by a 
separate ordinance through an amendment to the city’s fee schedule at the May 15th City Council meeting. 

This ordinance exempts all allowable properties under the State code. Section 552.053 Texas Local Gov’t Code 
provides that a municipality MAY exempt a governmental entity and their property including: the state, a county, 
a municipality, a school district and open-enrollment charter school, and religious organizations. Furthermore, 
the ordinance SHALL exempt property with proper construction and maintenance of a wholly sufficient and 
privately owned drainage system; property held and maintained in its natural state until such time that the 
property is developed and all the public infrastructure constructed has been accepted by the municipality in which 
the property is located for maintenance; and a subdivided lot until a structure has been built on the lot and a 

129

Item 7.



Page 2 of 2 
 

certificate of occupancy has been issued by the municipality in which the property is located. This ordinance 
exempts the State, Travis County, MISD and charter schools, the City, and religious organizations along with the 
other required exemptions. 

• Would the City Council like to maintain all allowable exemptions? 
 

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Yes, will create new revenue dedicated to the city’s stormwater system 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Draft Ordinance 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The City Staff recommends that the City Council discuss and provide direction to city staff regarding the proposed 
Stormwater Drainage Utility Ordinance.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

130

Item 7.



 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 13, UTILITIES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, BY AMENDING THE TITLE FOR ARTICLE 
13.02; ADDING DIVISION 6 TO ARTICLE 13.02; AMENDING 
DEFINITIONS; DECLARING STORMWATER DRAINAGE TO BE A 
PUBLIC UTILITY; ESTABLISHING A MUNICIPAL STORMWATER 
UTILITY SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT AND 
CALCULATIONS OF STORMWATER DRAINAGE UTILITY CHARGES 
AND CREDITS; PROVIDING PENALTIES AND APPEALS; PROVIDING 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, PROVIDING SAVINGS, EFFECTIVE DATE 
AND OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS. 

Whereas, the City of Manor, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having the full 
power of local self-government pursuant to its Charter, Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas 
Constitution, and Chapter 9 of the Texas Local Government Code; and  

Whereas, the City manages stormwater runoff through the provision of public works 
services related to street maintenance and drainage, and service provision previously have been 
insufficient, at times allowing flooding on streets and private properties, and threatening public 
health and safety; and  

Whereas, inadequate management of accelerated runoff of stormwater resulting from 
development throughout a watershed increases flows and velocities, threatens public health and 
safety, contributes to erosion and sedimentation, overtaxes the carrying capacity of streams and 
storm sewers, greatly increases the cost of public facilities to carry and control stormwater, 
undermines floodplain management and flood control efforts in downstream communities, reduces 
groundwater recharge, and increases non-point source pollution of water resources; and  

Whereas, a comprehensive program of stormwater management, including reasonable 
regulation of development and activities causing accelerated runoff, is fundamental to the public 
health, safety and welfare and the protection of people of the state, their resources and the 
environment; and  

Whereas, stormwater is an important water resource, which provides groundwater 
recharge for water supplies and base flow of streams, which also protects and maintains surface 
water quality; and 

Whereas, federal and state regulations require jurisdictions to implement a program of 
stormwater controls, and these jurisdictions are required to obtain a permit for stormwater 
discharges from their separate storm sewer systems under the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES); and 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Manor (the “City Council”) finds that an 
adequate, sustainable source of revenue for stormwater management is needed to protect the 

131

Item 7.



2 
 

general health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City; and further, the City Council finds 
that higher amounts of impervious surface area contribute to greater amounts of stormwater and 
associated pollutants to the stormwater management system; and  

Whereas, the City is authorized by Texas Local Government Code Chapter 552, 
Subchapter C, “Municipal Drainage Utility Systems,” as amended, (the “Act”) to impose a 
drainage charge with the established service area; and 

Whereas, in accordance with the Act, notices of a public hearing regarding the ordinance 
were published and a public hearing on this ordinance held concerning matters set forth herein; 
and  

Whereas, as set forth herein, the City Council declares that the stormwater drainage 
infrastructure and services of the City is a public utility within the meaning of the Act and imposes 
a charge for such services that allocates stormwater management program costs to benefitted 
properties based on impervious surface area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS, THAT; 

SECTION 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and incorporated herein for all purposes as findings of fact. 

SECTION 2. Amendment of Code of Ordinances. The City Council hereby amends 
Chapter 13, Utilities of the Manor Code of Ordinances to amend the title for Article 13.02, add 
Division 6 to Article 13.02, amend definitions, declare stormwater drainage to be a public utility, 
establish a municipal stormwater utility system, provide the establishment and calculations of 
stormwater drainage utility charges and credits, and provide penalties and appeals as provided for 
in Sections 3 through 5 of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 3. Amendment of Article 13.02 title. The title for Article 13.02 is hereby 
amended in its entirety to read as follows:  

“Article 13.02 – Water, Wastewater, Solid Waste, and Stormwater Rates and Services 
Policies”. 

 SECTION 4. Amendment of Section 13.02.003 Definitions. Section 13.02.003 of Article 
13.02 is hereby amended as follows: 

(a) The following definitions are hereby added in alphabetical order to read as follows: 

“Adjustment Factor means a number established by ordinance to be used in the drainage 
charge calculation to account for the percent of impervious cover on a benefitted property.  

Benefitted property or property means a lot or tract of real property to which drainage service 
is made available under this article and which is located within the service area.  

Cost of service as applied to stormwater utility system service to any benefitted property, 
means:  

132

Item 7.



3 
 

(1) The prorated cost of the acquisition, whether by eminent domain or otherwise, of land, 
rights-of-way, options to purchase land, easements, and interests in land relating to 
structures, equipment, and facilities used in stormwater quality treatment and draining 
the benefitted property;  

(2) The prorated cost of the acquisition, construction, repair, and maintenance of structures, 
equipment, and facilities used in stormwater quality treatment and draining the 
benefitted property;  

(3) The prorated cost of architectural, engineering, legal, and related services, plans and 
specifications, studies, surveys, estimates of cost and of revenue, and all other expenses 
necessary or incident to planning, providing, or determining the feasibility and 
practicability of structures, equipment, and facilities used in stormwater quality 
treatment and draining the benefitted property;  

(4) The prorated cost of all machinery, equipment, furniture, and facilities necessary or 
incident to the provision and operation of stormwater quality treatment and draining the 
benefitted property;  

(5) The prorated cost of funding and financing charges and interest arising from construction 
projects and the start-up cost of a stormwater facility used in stormwater quality 
treatment and draining the benefitted property;  

(6) The prorated cost of debt service and reserve requirements of structures, equipment, and 
facilities provided by revenue bonds or other stormwater utility revenue-pledge 
securities or obligations issued by the city; and  

(7) The prorated administrative costs of a stormwater utility system.  
Customer class means the land use, single family residential (SFR) or non-single family 

residential (NSFR), that the property is assigned to be based on the predominant use of the parcel.  
Drainage means bridges, catch basins, channels, conduits, creeks, culverts, detention ponds, 

ditches, draws, flumes, pipes, pumps, sloughs, treatment works, and appurtenances to those items, 
whether natural or artificial, or using force or gravity, that are used to draw off surface water from 
land, carry the water away, collect, store, or treat the water, or divert the water into natural or 
artificial watercourses.  

Director means the director of the Public Works Department, or their designees.  
Equivalent residential unit (ERU) means the basic billing unit for the stormwater charge.  
Facilities means the property, either real, personal, or mixed, that is used in providing 

stormwater service and included in the stormwater system.  
Impervious cover means roads, streets, parking areas, buildings, sidewalks and other 

construction covering the natural land surface that is impenetrable to stormwater. Compacted dirt 
or gravel used for vehicular traffic, parking, and other uses is considered impervious cover for the 
purposes of this section.  

Improved lot or tract means a lot or tract that has a structure or other improvement on it that 
causes an impervious coverage of the soil under the structure or improvement.  

133

Item 7.



4 
 

Public utility means a stormwater service that is regularly provided by the city through 
municipal property dedicated to that service to the users of benefitted property within the service 
area and that is based on:  

(1) An established schedule of charges;  
(2) The use of the police power to implement the service; and  
(3) Nondiscriminatory, reasonable, and equitable terms as declared under this chapter.  
Service area means the geographic area that will be served by the city's stormwater utility, 

established in section 13.02.302.  
Stormwater charge means:  

(1) The levy imposed to recover the cost of service to the city in furnishing stormwater 
service for any benefitted property; and  

(2) If specifically provided by ordinance, an amount made in contribution to funding of 
future stormwater system construction by the city.  

Stormwater Code means the specific stormwater code applied to any benefitted property 
within the service area. The codes are as follows: Single Family Residential (SFR), Non-Single 
Family Residential (NSFR), and Exempt (EX).  

Stormwater facilities means bridges, catch basins, channels, conduits, creeks, culverts, 
detention ponds, ditches, draws, flumes, pipes, pumps, sloughs, treatment works, and 
appurtenances to those items, whether natural or artificial, or using force or gravity, that are used 
to draw off surface water from land, carry the water away, collect, store, or treat the water, or 
divert the water into natural or artificial watercourses.  

Stormwater system means the stormwater utility system owned or controlled, in whole or in 
part by the city, including the city's existing stormwater facilities, materials, and supplies and 
any stormwater facilities, materials, and supplies hereafter constructed or utilized, and dedicated 
to the service of benefitted property, and including provision for additions to the system. The 
drainage system is also known as a municipal separate storm sewer system, or MS4, meaning that 
the storm sewers are a separate system not connected with the sanitary sewer system.  

Utility Customer means the person or entity receiving the benefit of, or responsible for 
payment for, City utility service, such as water, wastewater, solid waste, and drainage.   

User means the person who owns or occupies a benefitted property.  
Wholly sufficient and privately owned stormwater system means land owned and operated by 

a person other than a municipal stormwater utility system the drainage of which does not discharge 
into a creek, river, slough, culvert, or other channel that is part of a municipal stormwater utility 
system.”  
(b) the definition for “Customer” is deleted in its entirety. 

 

 SECTION 5. Amendment of Article 13.02 – Water, Wastewater, Solid Waste, and 
Stormwater Rates and Services Policies. Article 13.02 is hereby amended to add Division 6. – 
Stormwater Utility as follows:   

134

Item 7.



5 
 

“Division 6. – Stormwater Utility  

Sec. 13.02.300 Establishment and dedication of utility assets. 

The city council establishes the city stormwater utility as a public utility and dedicates to 
the utility all city-owned property, real and personal, facilities, materials and supplies constituting 
the city's drainage system as constituted on the effective date of this article and as may be acquired 
in the future, to be used for the purpose of the stormwater utility. 

Sec. 13.02.301. Establishment and revisions to stormwater utility service area. 

(a) The city council establishes the stormwater utility service area as the city limits of the city, 
as presently configured and as the same may be amended from time to time.  
 

(b) Except as affected by amendments to the city limits, revisions to the service area will be 
made only after the publication of notice and a public hearing as required by state law.  

Sec. 13.02.302. Establishment and revision of stormwater charges; credits. 

(a) The city council establishes stormwater charges to be paid by users of benefitted property 
in the service area. The determination of the stormwater charges is deemed 
nondiscriminatory, reasonable and equitable to provide for the creation, operation, 
planning, engineering, inspection, construction, repair, maintenance, improvement, 
reconstruction and administration of the stormwater utility.  
 

(b) The stormwater charges will be set by separate ordinance based on the following factors: 
 

(1) The amount of impervious cover on the benefitted property;  

(2) The predominant developed use of the benefitted property; and  

(3) The number of equivalent residential units (ERUs) on the benefitted property.  

 
(c) The category that applies to each benefitted property will be determined within the 

guidelines set forth herein and set the charge in accordance with the category of use and 
the following factors: 
 
(1) Customer class. Each benefitted property will be placed in a specific category of land 

use, also known as customer class, based upon the actual use of the property. These 
customer class categories will include single family residential, non-single family 
residential, and exempt. The stormwater codes associated with these customer classes 
are single family residential (SFR), non- single family residential (NSFR), and 
exempt (EX). The single family residential customer class is billed based impervious 
cover it falls within, the non-single family residential customer class is billed based 
on calculated impervious cover on the site, and exempt customer class is a use that 

135

Item 7.



6 
 

falls into an exempt category per V.T.C.A., Local Government Code, § 552.053 and 
sec. 13.02.309. 

(2) Impervious cover. The amount of impervious cover existing on each benefitted 
property. Impervious area for parcels shall be inventoried from information 
established by the Travis County Appraisal District, from geographic information 
system records, from aerial photography and from site plans or plats available for 
properties within the city. The impervious area measured in square feet as obtained 
from these database sources, site plans or other survey or engineering calculations 
shall be used to establish the relative stormwater runoff potential for each customer 
class and among parcels within each customer class. 

(3) Residential units. The number of residential units existing on a particular benefitted 
property. For the purposes of the drainage utility, residential structures with one to 
four residential units are in the single family residential customer class and residential 
structures with more than four units are in the non-single family residential customer 
class.  

(4) Stormwater Code. Based on the customer class and impervious cover on a benefitted 
property, a stormwater code is assigned to the account.  

(A) Residential class accounts are all Single Family Residential (SFR) units. (1 
ERU) 

(B) Non-single family residential properties (NSFR) are all remaining non-
residential properties such as commercial, industrial, retail, government, multi-
family with more than four units, religious, non-profit, and the like.  

(C) Exempt properties (EX) are those that are exempted from paying a drainage fee 
based on the criteria outlined in this division.  

 
(d) The monthly charge for each lot or parcel will be calculated equitably and proportionally 

using an ERU impervious-based billing structure. One ERU is established as 2,730 square 
feet based on a review of all existing single-family residential properties within the service 
area. Each residential account is billed according to its stormwater code. A non-single 
family residential property is billed based on the total amount of impervious cover 
associated with the non-single family residential use divided by the ERU value of 2,730 
square feet. (i.e. NSFR bill charge = total impervious cover/2,730* current stormwater 
utility fee).   
 

(e) The monthly charge per ERU is established in a separate ordinance and is based on the 
revenue required to support the stormwater utility divided by the total number of ERUs to 
be billed.  
 

136

Item 7.



7 
 

(f) The city council reserves the right to adjust the stormwater charges by separate ordinance 
from time to time.  
 

(g) Billing of the stormwater charge against each benefitted property within the service area 
will be accomplished by a stormwater utility charge listing in the monthly city utility bill. 
Multi-family properties with more than four units on a single parcel will have a stormwater 
utility bill mailed to the owner of record. These bills will become due and payable, and will 
be subject to late payment penalties, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the 
city pertaining to the collection of water and wastewater fees and charges.  
 

(h) No utility deposit will be required as a precondition to accepting surface flow from a 
benefitted property in the drainage utility.  
 

(i) Billing of stormwater charges will occur even when other utilities are disconnected to 
reflect the on-going discharge from the impervious cover of the benefitted property to the 
stormwater system.  

Sec. 13.02.303 Billing 

(a) The stormwater fee shall be shown as a separate listing on the monthly utility bill from the 
City. Bills become due in accordance with the provisions of this chapter. If no utility meter 
serves the benefitted property, the City may establish a non-metered utility account using 
the utility billing system and shall bill the drainage charge to the utility customer for the 
non-metered utility account.   
 

(b) Order of Billing. If more than one utility customer is associated with a benefitted property, 
the City shall bill the fee to the owner of the benefitted property unless:   

 
(1) The benefitted property is a single family, duplex, triplex, or fourplex residence, in 

which case the City shall divide the fee equally among the utility customers and bill 
the utility customers accordingly;   

 
(2) The benefitted property includes a utility customer at a secondary residence, in which 

case the City shall bill the utility customer associated with the primary residence;   
 
(3) The owner of the benefitted property cannot reasonably be determined or located, in 

which case the City shall determine an equitable method to allocate the fee among 
the utility customers based upon information available and bill the utility customers 
accordingly; or   

 
(4) The owner of the benefitted property is exempt under this chapter or state law, in 

which case the City shall determine an equitable method to allocate the fee among 
the other utility customers based upon information available and bill the utility 
customers accordingly.   

137

Item 7.



8 
 

Sec. 13.02.304. Stormwater Utility Fund. 

(a) A separate fund is established, known as the stormwater utility fund, for the purpose of 
identifying and controlling all revenues and expenses attributable to the stormwater utility. 
All drainage charges collected by the city and other monies available to the city for the 
purpose of drainage will be deposited in the stormwater utility fund. The revenues will be 
used for the purposes of the creation, operation, planning, engineering, inspection, 
construction, repair, maintenance, improvement, reconstruction, administration and other 
reasonable and customary charges associated with the operation of the stormwater utility. 
It is not necessary that the expenses from the stormwater utility fund, for any authorized 
purpose, specifically relate to any particular benefitted property from which the revenues 
were collected.  

(b) All drainage charges collected under this article will be used solely for creation, operation, 
planning, engineering, inspection, construction, repair, maintenance, improvement, 
reconstruction, administration and other reasonable and customary charges associated with 
the operation of the stormwater utility. In the event a portion of the drainage revenues is 
pledged to retire any outstanding indebtedness or obligation incurred, or as a reserve or 
amount in any contribution for future construction, repair or extension or maintenance of 
the utility assets, then the pledged portion of revenues may not be transferred to the general 
fund.  

(c) The city manager, or their designee, will provide an annual report of the stormwater utility's 
revenues, expenses and programs to the city council.  

Sec. 13.02.305. Delinquent stormwater charges; enforcement. 

Any stormwater charge which is not paid when due may be recovered in an action at law by the 
city. In addition to other remedies or penalties provided by this chapter, article, or state law, failure 
of a user of any utility within the service area to pay the stormwater charges when due will subject 
the user to discontinuance of any other utility services provided by the city. In the event an owner 
does not pay the charge, a lien can be placed on the property. Furthermore, property that is 
developed but vacant does not qualify for an exemption and the burden of stormwater utility fees 
ultimately lies with the property owner, whether a tenant is in place or not. In the event a 
stormwater utility fee is assessed to a tenant and the tenant moves out, the stormwater utility fee 
will be assessed to the property owner. In the event a property has no other utilities turned on or is 
presently vacant but qualifies as a benefitted property, the stormwater utility fee will be assessed 
to the property owner.  

Sec. 13.02.306. Administration; rules and regulations 

(a) The Director of Public Works will be responsible for the administration of this article. The 
director will develop rules, regulations and procedures for the administration of stormwater 
charges, develop maintenance programs, and establish criteria and standards for operation 
of the stormwater utility system.  

Sec. 13.02.307 Appeals. 

138

Item 7.



9 
 

(a) Appeal of stormwater utility fees to the director. A utility customer or user who has been 
charged a stormwater utility fee and believes that the calculation or determination of the 
stormwater utility fee is incorrect may appeal the fee determination to the director. The 
director shall evaluate all appeals based on the methodologies for calculating the 
stormwater utility fee set forth in the stormwater utility fee ordinance. 

(b) Process. 

(1) The appeal shall be in writing and set forth in detail the grounds upon which relief is 
sought. The director shall decide the appeal based upon a preponderance of the 
evidence. The director shall issue a written decision on the appeal within 30 days 
from the date that the director receives the appeal.  

(2) An adjustment resulting from such a request shall be prospective and applied to future 
billings and may also be retroactive for no more than three months prior to the receipt 
of the appeal. 

(c) Supporting information for appeal. The person filing the appeal may be required, at the 
person's cost, to provide supplemental information to the director, including but not limited 
to survey data sealed by a Texas licensed professional land surveyor, engineering reports 
sealed by a Texas licensed professional engineer qualified in civil engineering, or other 
documentation that the director deems necessary to properly evaluate the appeal. Failure 
to provide requested information in a timely manner may result in the denial of the appeal. 

(d) Appeal of stormwater utility fees to the city council. 

(1) A utility customer or user may appeal the following decisions of the director to the 
city council: 

(A) The applicability of a stormwater utility fee to a parcel; 

(B) The calculation of applicable stormwater runoff potential for a parcel; 

(C) The calculation of the stormwater utility fee for a parcel; or 

(D) The discontinuance of utility service, filing of a lien or other legal actions for non-
payment of stormwater utility fees. 

(2) The utility customer or user shall file a written appeal to the city council with the city 
secretary within 30 days following receipt of the director's decision. The city council 
shall hear the appeal within 60 days of receipt of the appeal by the city secretary. 
Notice of the hearing shall be mailed to the address given in the appeal form or, if no 
address is given, to the address on the utility billing statement at least 14 days prior 
to the hearing. 

(3) The burden of proof shall be on the utility customer or user to demonstrate that the 
fee is not applicable or that the determination of the value of the fee was not 
calculated according to the applicable stormwater fee schedule or the methodologies 
established in the stormwater utility fee ordinance. If applicable, and if not previously 
submitted to the director, the owner or customer shall submit, with the appeal, a report 
describing the basis for the appeal. The report shall be prepared by a Texas licensed 
professional engineer qualified in civil engineering. The failure to submit such a 

139

Item 7.



10 
 

report shall be considered in determining whether the applicant has met the burden 
of proof. 

(4) If the appeal is accompanied by a bond or other sufficient security satisfactory to the 
city attorney in an amount equal to the original determination of the stormwater utility 
fee due, any discontinued utility services may be reinstated while the appeal is 
pending. 

(5) At the hearing, the city council shall allow testimony from the applicant, city 
employees and other interested persons relevant to the appeal. The hearing may be 
continued from time to time. 

(6) Following the hearing, the city council shall consider all evidence and determine 
whether the appeal should be granted (in whole or in part) or denied. 

(7) The city council shall complete its review and make a decision about the appeal 
within thirty (30) days of the hearing. The city council shall apply the standards and 
review criteria contained in this section. 

(8) The city council's decision shall be final. 

Sec. 13.02.308. Exemptions. 

(a) The following properties will be exempt from the provisions of this article:  
 

(1) A benefitted property described in Section 552.053 of the Texas Local Government 
Code is exempt from the drainage charge established by this chapter, including: 
(A) A state agency and property owned by the state;  
(B) Travis County; 
(C) Manor Independent School District and open-enrollment charter schools; 
(D) Emergency Services District 12; 
(E) The city and property owned by the city; or 
(F) A religious organization that is exempt from taxation pursuant to Section 11.20, 

Tax Code. 
 
(2) Property with proper construction and maintenance of a wholly sufficient and privately 

owned drainage system;  
 
(3) Property held and maintained in its natural state, until the time that the property is 

developed and all of the public infrastructure constructed has been accepted by the 
municipality in which the property is located for maintenance; or 

 
(4) A subdivided lot, until a structure has been built on the lot and a certificate of occupancy 

has been issued by the municipality in which the property is located. 
 

(b) The user has the burden of proof when claiming an exemption under this article and must 
provide the director with information reasonably required by the director to make a 

140

Item 7.



11 
 

determination. Failure to timely provide information requested by the director is a sufficient 
reason to deny a requested exemption.  

Sec. 13.02.309. Flood; nonpoint source pollution control; liability. 

Floods from drainage runoff may occur which exceed the drainage system's capacity. In addition, 
surface water stagnation and pollution arising from nonpoint source runoff may occasionally occur 
which exceeds the capacity of the drainage system. This article does not imply that benefitted 
properties will always be free from flooding or flood damage, surface water stagnation or nonpoint 
source pollution or that all possible flood control and water treatment projects to control the 
quantity and quality of runoff can be constructed cost-effectively. Nothing whatsoever in this 
article should be construed or be deemed to create additional duties or liability on the part of the 
city for any damage incurred in any flood or from adverse water quality due to drainage runoff. 
Nothing in this article should be deemed to waive the city's immunity under state law or affect the 
need for flood insurance.” 

 SECTION 6. Conflicting Ordinances.  The Manor Code of Ordinances is amended as 
provided herein.  All ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this 
ordinance as adopted herein, are hereby amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a 
conflict or inconsistency between this ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City, the terms 
and provisions of this ordinance shall govern. 

 SECTION 7. Savings Clause.  All rights and remedies of the City of Manor are expressly 
saved as to any and all violations of the provisions of any ordinances affecting subdivision within the 
City which have accrued at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and, as to such accrued 
violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under 
such ordinances, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 
disposition by the courts. 

 SECTION 8. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after 
its passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local Government Code 
and the City Charter. 

 SECTION 9. Severability.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that 
the sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this ordinance of any such 
invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.  If any provision of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision, 
and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 SECTION 10. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code. 

141

Item 7.



12 
 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on this ____ day of ______ 2024. 

 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 

 

       

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

 

 

142

Item 7.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution accepting the petition for voluntary annexation of 
1.273 acres, more or less, being located in Travis County, Texas, and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits, 
providing for an open meeting, and other related matters. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property was initially annexed by Ordinance 345 in April 2008. The property owner at the time received 
disannexation by Ordinance 369 in September 2009 for the 1.273-acre tract where their home is/was located. 
Their remaining acreage, 11.354, was annexed a second time by Ordinance 368 in September 2009. 

The property has since been sold and the current property owner desires to have the entire property (12.627 
acres) within the city limits. They have also applied for zoning to C-2 Medium Commercial and a Specific Use 
Permit for gas station and related improvements. The zoning and SUP applications will come before the City 
Council at your April 17th meeting.  

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Resolution No. 2024-08
• Petition
• Survey

• Draft Post Annexation Provision of Services
Agreement

• Schedule

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The City Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2024-08 accepting the petition for 
voluntary annexation of 1.273 acres, more or less, being located in Travis County, Texas, and adjacent and 
contiguous to the city limits, providing for an open meeting, and other related matters. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None 

143

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, ACCEPTING 
THE PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF 1.273 ACRES OF LAND, 
MORE OR LESS; BEING LOCATED IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
AND ADJACENT AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE CITY LIMITS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR OPEN MEETINGS AND OTHER RELATED 
MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, the owner(s) of certain property located within Travis County, Texas 
have petitioned the City of Manor, Texas (herein the “City”) a Texas home-rule city, for 
annexation of said property, more particularly described herein (the “Subject Property”) into 
the corporate limits of the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Subject Property is contiguous and adjacent to the corporate limits 
of the City, within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City and the owner(s) have made 
application for annexation; 
 
 WHEREAS, after review and consideration of such requests and petition for 
annexation from the owner(s) of the Subject Property, the City Council of the City of Manor, 
Texas (the “City Council”) finds that the Subject Property may be annexed pursuant to 
§43.0671 of the Texas Local Government Code;  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to §43.0672, Texas Local Government Code, the City and the 
undersigned have negotiated and entered into a written agreement for the provision of services 
to the Subject Property, said agreement being attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and is 
incorporated herein for all purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the petitioner has agreed and consented to the annexation of the Subject 
Property by the City and further agreed to be bound by all acts, ordinances, and all other legal 
action now in force and effect within the corporate limits of the City and all those which may 
be hereafter adopted; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of 
fact.  

  
 SECTION TWO:  The petition for annexation of the following described Subject 
Property, including abutting streets, roadways, and rights of way, not previously annexed into 
the City and the draft agreement for the provision of services shown in Exhibit “B”, are hereby 
accepted: 
 
 

144

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 Page 2 

 

Page 2 of 9 

 Being 1.273 acres of land, more or less, out of the A.C. Caldwell Survey No. 52, 
Abstract No. 154, in Travis County, Texas, and being a portion of that certain (2.00 acre) tract 
of land as described by metes and bounds in instrument recorded in Volume 5800, Page 700 
of the Deed Records of Travis County, Texas, said (2.00 acre) tract, being a portion of the 
certain (4.16 acre) tract of land as conveyed to Herbert Guy Purtle by Deed recorded in 
Volume 5834, Page 1670 of the Deed Records of Travis County, Texas, also being a portion 
of that certain (14.16 acre) tract of land as conveyed to Herbert Guy Purtle by Deed recorded 
in Volume 12892, Page 74 of the Real Property Records of Travis County, Texas; said 1.273 
acre tract being more particularly described in Exhibit “A.” 
 
 A public hearing is set for the date of April 17, 2024. Notice of such hearing shall be 
published and posted in accordance with §43.0673, Texas Local Government Code, and the 
hearing shall be open to the public to accept public comment on the annexation request. In the 
event of a conflict between the Subject Property description contained herein, Exhibit “A” 
shall control. 
  
 SECTION THREE: Should any section or part of this Resolution be held 
unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness 
of such section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or 
portions thereof; but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in 
full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are declared severable.  
 
 SECTION FOUR:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that the public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 
  

145

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 Page 3 

 

Page 3 of 9 

 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the 3rd day of April 2024.  

 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 

 

       
Dr. Christopher Harvey 
Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

 
 
      
Lluvia T. Almaraz 
City Secretary 
 
 
  

146

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 Page 4 

 

Page 4 of 9 

Exhibit “A” 
Subject Property Description 

+/- 1.273 Acres 
  

147

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 Page 5 

 

Page 5 of 9 

 
  

148

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 Page 6 

 

Page 6 of 9 

  

149

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 Page 7 

 

Page 7 of 9 

  

150

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 Page 8 

 

Page 8 of 9 

 

151

Item 8.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 Page 9 

 

Page 9 of 9 

Exhibit “B” 
Agreement Regarding Post-Annexation Provision of Services 

For Property to be Annexed into the City of Manor 
 
 

 
 
 

152

Item 8.



AGREEMENT REGARDING POST-ANNEXATION PROVISION OF SERVICES 
FOR PROPERTY TO BE ANNEXED INTO THE CITY OF MANOR 

 
 This Agreement Regarding Post-Annexation Provision of Services for Property to be 
Annexed into the City of Manor (the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of Manor, 
Texas, a municipal corporation (“City”), and __Najib Wehbe a  (“Landowner”), both of which may 
be referred to herein singularly as “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, upon the request of the Landowner, the City intends to institute annexation 
proceedings for an area of land described more fully hereinafter and attached hereto (the “subject 
property”); 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 43.0672, Loc. Gov't. Code, requires the Parties to enter into a written 
agreement identifying a list of public services to be provided to the subject property and a schedule 
for the provision of those services that are not otherwise provided on the effective date of the 
annexation;  
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement is being entered into by and between the Parties to comply with 
Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 43, Sub-Chapter C-3, Section 43.0672, prior to the City’s 
consideration of an ordinance annexing the subject property, it being understood, acknowledged and 
agreed by the Parties that annexation of the subject property is a condition precedent to this Agreement 
becoming effective; 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement shall be deemed effective on the effective date of an ordinance 
approved by the City annexing the subject property (the “Effective Date”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the subject property is not included in the municipal annexation plan and is 
exempt from the requirements thereof; 
 
 WHEREAS, infrastructure provided for herein and that existing are sufficient to service the 
subject property on the same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties currently 
within the City limits and no capital improvements are required to offer municipal services on the 
same terms and conditions as other similarly situated properties within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is found that all statutory requirements have been satisfied and the City is 
authorized by Chapter 43, Loc. Gov't. Code, to annex the subject property into the City;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained 
herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:  
 
 The following services and schedule represent the provision of services agreed to between the 
Landowner of the subject property and the City establishing a program under which the City will 
provide municipal services to the subject property, as required by section 43.0672 of the Texas Local 

153

Item 8.



2 
 

Government Code.   The services detailed herein will be provided at a level consistent with service 
levels provided to other similarly situated areas within the City.  
 
The following services will be provided for the subject property on the Effective Date of annexation: 
 
(1) General Municipal Services.  Pursuant to the requests of the owner and this Agreement, 
the following services shall be provided immediately from the effective date of the annexation: 
 
 A. Police protection as follows: 
 
 Routine patrols of areas, radio response to calls for police service and all other police services 

now being offered to the citizens of the City. Upon annexation, police protection will be 
provided to the subject property at a level consistent with the service to other areas of the City 
with similar population density and characteristics. The City’s police services include 
neighborhood patrols, criminal investigations, crime prevention, community services and 
school programs. 

 
 B. Fire protection and Emergency Medical Services as follows: 
 
 Fire protection by agreement between the City and the ESD’s present personnel and 

equipment of the ESD fire fighting force and the volunteer fire fighting force with the 
limitations of water available.  Radio response for Emergency Medical Services with the 
present contract personnel and equipment of the ESD. 

 
 C. Solid waste collection services as follows: 
 
 Solid waste collection and services as now being offered to the citizens of the City. The City 

provides residential solid waste collection services within the City limits for a fee under a 
contract between the City and private refuse collection operator. The residential solid waste 
collection services include garbage collection, recycling, bulky item collection and yard waste 
collection. Commercial solid waste collection services are also available. This service will be 
provided for a fee to any person within the subject property requesting the service after the 
Effective Date of annexation, provided that a privately owned solid waste management 
service provider is unavailable. If the subject property is already receiving service, the City 
may not prohibit solid waste collection by the privately owned solid waste management 
service provider, nor may the City offer solid waste collection services for a period of two (2) 
years following the Effective Date of the annexation unless a privately owned solid waste 
management service provider is or becomes unavailable, as established by Texas Local 
Government Code section 43.0661.  If a landowner uses the services of a privately owned 
solid waste management service provider or services are available from a privately owned 
solid waste management service provider during the two (2) years following annexation, the 
City will not provide solid waste collection services to that landowner. 

 
 D. Animal control as follows: 
 
 Service by present personnel, equipment and facilities or by contract with a third party, as 

154

Item 8.



3 
 

provided within the City. 
 
 E. Maintenance of City-owned parks and playgrounds within the City. 
 
 F. Inspection services in conjunction with building permits and routine City code 

enforcement services by present personnel, equipment and facilities. Municipal Court and 
General Administration services will also be available to property owners and residents in the 
subject property on the same basis those facilities are available to current City property owners 
and residents. 

 
 G. Maintenance of other City facilities, buildings and service. 
 
 H. Land use regulation as follows: 
 
 On the effective date of annexation, the zoning jurisdiction of the City shall be extended to 

include the annexed area, and the use of all property therein shall be grandfathered; and shall 
be temporarily zoned “Agricultural District “A”” with the intent to rezone the subject property 
upon request of the landowner or staff.  The Planning & Zoning Commission and the City 
Council will consider rezoning the subject property at future times in response to requests 
submitted by the landowner(s) or authorized city staff.  The City will impose and enforce its 
adopted ordinances, including but not limited to, zoning, subdivision development, site 
development and building code regulations within the subject property upon the Effective 
Date of the annexation. Enforcement will be in accordance with City ordinances. 
Development plans and plats for projects within the subject property will be reviewed for 
compliance with City standards. 

 
(2) Scheduled Municipal Services.  Due to the size and vacancy of the subject property, the 
plans and schedule for the development of the subject property, the following municipal services 
will be provided on a schedule and at increasing levels of service as provided herein:  
 
 A. Water service and maintenance of water facilities as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of water distribution lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of water 

service, water service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a water certificate of convenience and necessity (“CCN”) for 
the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, or absent a water CCN, by the utility 
in whose jurisdiction the subject properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in 
accordance with all the ordinances, regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to 
time for the extension of water service.  If connected to the City’s water utility system, the 
subject properties’ owner shall construct the internal water lines and pay the costs of line 
extension and construction of such facilities necessary to provide water service to the subject 
properties as required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the water lines within the 
subject properties and any off-site improvements, water service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 

155

Item 8.



4 
 

similarly situated areas and customers of the City; subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The system will be accepted and 
maintained by the City in accordance with its usual acceptance and maintenance policies.  
New water line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs 
and terms as with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances of the City 
in effect at the time a request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for 
service.  The continued use of a water well that is in use on the effective date of the 
annexation and is in compliance with applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted 
and such use may continue until the subject properties’ owner requests and is able to 
connect to the City’s water utility system. 

 
 B. Wastewater service and maintenance of wastewater service as follows: 
 
 (i) Inspection of sewer lines as provided by statutes of the State of Texas. 
 
 (ii) In accordance with the applicable rules and regulations for the provision of wastewater 

service, wastewater service will be provided to the subjects properties, or applicable portions 
thereof, by the utility holding a wastewater CCN for the subject properties, or portions thereof 
as applicable, or absent a wastewater CCN, by the utility in whose jurisdiction the subject 
properties, or portions thereof as applicable, are located, in accordance with all the ordinances, 
regulations, and policies of the City in effect from time to time for the extension of wastewater 
service.  If connected to the City’s wastewater utility system, the subject properties’ owner 
shall construct the internal wastewater lines and pay the costs of line extension and 
construction of facilities necessary to provide wastewater service to the subject properties as 
required in City ordinances.  Upon acceptance of the wastewater lines within the subject 
properties and any off-site improvements, wastewater service will be provided by the City 
utility department on the same terms, conditions and requirements as are applied to all 
similarly situated areas and customers of the City, subject to all the ordinances, regulations 
and policies of the City in effect from time to time.  The wastewater system will be accepted 
and maintained by the City in accordance with its usual policies.  Requests for new wastewater 
line extensions will be installed and extended upon request under the same costs and terms as 
with other similarly situated customers of the City.  The ordinances in effect at the time a 
request for service is submitted shall govern the costs and request for service.  The continued 
use of a septic system that is in use on the effective date of the annexation and is in 
compliance with all applicable rules and regulations shall be permitted and such use may 
continue until the subject property owner requests and is able to connect to the City’s 
wastewater utility system. 

 
 C. Maintenance of streets and rights-of-way as appropriate as follows: 
 

(i) Provide maintenance services on existing public streets within the subject property 
and other streets that are hereafter constructed and finally accepted by the City.  The 
maintenance of the streets and roads will be limited as follows:  

 
  (A) Emergency maintenance of streets, repair of hazardous potholes, measures 

necessary for traffic flow, etc.; and 

156

Item 8.



5 
 

 
  (B) Routine maintenance as presently performed by the City. 
 

(ii) The City will maintain existing public streets within the subject property, and 
following installation and acceptance of new roadways by the City as provided by city 
ordinance, including any required traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings, other traffic 
control devices and street lighting, the City will maintain such newly constructed public 
streets, roadways and rights-of-way within the boundaries of the subject property, as 
follows: 

 
(A) As provided in C(i)(A)&(B) above; 

 
  (B) Reconstruction and resurfacing of streets, installation of drainage facilities, 

construction of curbs, gutters and other such major improvements as the need 
therefore is determined by the governing body under City policies;  

 
  (C) Installation and maintenance of traffic signals, traffic signs, street markings 

and other traffic control devices as the need therefore is established by appropriate 
study and traffic standards; and 

 
  (D) Installation and maintenance of street lighting in accordance with 

established policies of the City; 
 

(iii)   The outer boundaries of the subject property abut existing roadways.  The 
Landowner agrees that no improvements are required on such roadways to service 
the subject property.    

 
(3) Capital Improvements.  Construction of the following capital improvements shall be 
initiated after the effective date of the annexation:  None.  Upon development of the subject property 
or redevelopment, the landowner will be responsible for the development costs the same as a 
developer in a similarly situated area under the ordinances in effect at the time of development or 
redevelopment.  No additional capital improvements are necessary at this time to service the subject 
property the same as similarly situated properties. When deemed necessary, capital improvement 
acquisition or construction will occur in accordance with applicable ordinances and regulations and 
the adopted capital improvement plans of the City, as applicable and amended, which are incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
(4) Term.  If not previously expired, this agreement expires at the end of ten (10) years. 
 
(5)        Property Description.  The legal description of the subject property is as set forth in the 
Annexation Ordinance and exhibits attached to the Annexation Ordinance to which this Agreement 
is attached. 
 
(6)        Binding Effect/Authority. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the Parties and 
their respective heirs, successors, and permitted assigns. Each Party further warrants that each 
signatory to this Agreement is legally authorized to bind the respective individual or entity for the 

157

Item 8.



6 
 

purposes established herein. 
 
(7)         Choice of Law. This Agreement will be construed under the laws of the State of Texas, 
without regard to choice-of-law rules of any jurisdiction. Venue for any dispute shall lie exclusively 
in Travis County, Texas. 
 
(8)           Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the 
same effect as if all signatory Parties had signed the same document. All counterparts will be 
construed together and will constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
(9)              Legal Construction. If any provision in this Agreement is for any reason found to be 
unenforceable, to the extent the unenforceability does not destroy the basis of the bargain among the 
Parties, the unenforceability will not affect any other provision hereof, and this Agreement will be 
construed as if the unenforceable provision had never been a part of the Agreement. Whenever context 
requires, the singular will include the plural and neuter include the masculine or feminine gender, and 
vice versa. Headings in this Agreement are for reference only and are not intended to restrict or define 
the text of any section. This Agreement will not be construed more or less favorably between the 
Parties by reason of authorship or origin of language. 
 
(10)        Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Parties 
relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein assumed and cannot be varied except 
by written agreement of the Parties. Any oral representation or modification concerning this 
instrument shall be of no force and effect except for any subsequent modification in writing, signed 
by the Party to be charged. 
 

[signature pages follow] 

  

158

Item 8.



159

Item 8.



8 
 

 

LANDOWNER(S):  

   NAJIB WEHBE________________________________ 

By: ______________________________________ 

Name (print): NAJIB WEHBE____________________________ 

Title: _OWNER___________________________________ 

Date: 03-25-2024__________________ 

  

160

Item 8.



9 
 

Subject Property Description 

 

161

Item 8.



162

Item 8.



163

Item 8.



164

Item 8.



165

Item 8.

PSCEInc
Polygon



166

Item 8.



167

Item 8.



168

Item 8.

PSCEInc
Polygon



169

Item 8.



170

Item 8.



171

Item 8.



SCHEDULE FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION  
Wehbe 13105 FM 1100 +/- 1.273 Acre Tract 

DATE ACTION/EVENT LEGAL AUTHORITY 
April 3, 2024 
 
 

COUNCIL CONSIDERS ACCEPTANCE OF 
ANNEXATION PETITION REQUEST FROM 
LANDOWNER(S) AND INITIATION OF 
ANNEXATION - and sets a PUBLIC HEARING for April 
17, 2024 

Loc. Gov’t Code, §§ 43.067 & 43.0671;  

April 5, 2024** 
Publish notice of 
Public Hearing (Notify 
paper by 5pm Monday 
April 1st) and send 
school district notice 
and public entity 
notice(s)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

NEWSPAPER NOTICE RE: FIRST PUBLIC 
HEARING; (If applicable, certified Notice to Railroad). 
POST NOTICE OF HEARING ON CITY’S WEBSITE 
AND MAINTAIN UNTIL HEARINGS COMPLETE 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NOTICE (notify each school 
district of possible impact w/in the period prescribed for 
publishing the notice of the Public Hearing.)  
 
PUBLIC ENTITY NOTICES (notify each public entity -
includes a county, fire protection service provider, 
including a volunteer fire department, emergency medical 
services provider, including a volunteer emergency 
medical services provider, or special district - of possible 
impact w/in the period prescribed for publishing the notice 
of the Public Hearing.) 

Not less than 10 days nor more than 20 days 
before public hearing.  Loc. Gov’t Code, 
§43.0673 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Loc. Gov’t Code §§43.905 & 43.9051; send 
notice to school district and to each public 
entity not less than 10 days nor more than 20 
days before the Public Hearing. 
 

April 17, 2024* PUBLIC HEARING – REGULAR MEETING The governing body must provide persons 
interested in the annexation the opportunity to 
be heard. Loc. Gov’t Code, §43.0673  

April 17, 2024* FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 
REGULAR MEETING 

Loc. Gov’t Code, §43.0673 

May 1, 2024; 
Or at a special called 
meeting after the 1st 
First Reading (City 
Charter, Section 4.06 
(d)) 

SECOND-FINAL READING OF ORDINANCE  
REGULAR MEETING 

Second reading of annexation Ordinance – 
City Charter, Section 4.06(c) 

Within 30 days of 
Second Reading  

CITY SENDS COPY OF MAP showing boundary 
changes to County Voter Registrar in a format that is 
compatible with mapping format used by registrar 

Elec. Code §42.0615 

Within 60 days of 
Second Reading 

CITY PROVIDES CERTIFIED COPY OF 
ORDINANCE AND MAPS TO:  
 

1. County Clerk 
2. County Appraisal District 
3. County Tax Assessor Collector 
4. 911 Addressing 
5. Sheriff’s Office 
6. City Department Heads 
7. State Comptroller 
8. Franchise Holders     
9. ESD, if annexed area located in district and city 

intends to remove the area from the district and 
be the sole provider of emergency services; See 
Health and Safety Code, Section 775.022 

 

   
*Dates in BOLD are MANDATORY dates to follow this schedule.  Please advise if deviation. 
**Newspaper notice to paper by 5p.m. Monday for publication on Friday of same week. 
 

172

Item 8.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Assignment of Easement Rights between the City of Manor 
and the Texas Department of Transportation, on behalf of the State of Texas. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This easement was originally established as part of the Wildhorse Creek Commercial plat in August 2005. The lot 
on which the easement is located was replated in May 2023, and the drainage easement was removed from the 
plat and dedicated by a separate instrument. The separate drainage easement was approved by the City Council 
on May 3, 2023. It is that separate drainage easement that is being assigned to TxDOT.  

The drainage easement contemplated assignment to a political subdivision of the State of Texas, such as TxDOT, 
in provision #4 of the easement. TxDOT has requested from the Grantor that this easement be assigned to them, 
but the City, as the Grantee, has to approve the assignment. TxDOT has requested assignment be granted to them 
because the easement is adjacent to their right-of-way and existing drainage. The Grantor, under section #2 of 
the easement, is responsible for the maintenance, repair, replacement, and restoration of the easement. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Assignment of Easement Rights 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

The City Staff recommends that the City Council approve an Assignment of Easement Rights between the City of 
Manor and the Texas Department of Transportation, on behalf of the State of Texas. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

173

Item 9.



 
 
 
ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT RIGHTS Page 1 Wildhorse Creek Commercial 
39444287v.1 

ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT RIGHTS 

THIS ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT RIGHTS (this “Assignment”) is made by and between The 
City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home rule municipal corporation (“Assignor”) and the Texas 
Department of Transportation, on behalf of the State of Texas (“Assignee”). 

RECITALS: 

A. Assignor, as Grantee, and Peter A. Dwyer, as Grantor, executed that certain 
Drainage Easement dated April 11, 2023, recorded under Document No. 2023058703, Official 
Public Records of Travis County, Texas (the “Drainage Easement”), a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference. 

B. Assignor desires to assign to Assignee, and Assignee desires to assume, all of 
Assignor’s rights, title, and interest in, to, and under the Drainage Easement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged and confessed, Assignor and Assignee agree as follows: 

1. Assignor does hereby assign and transfer to Assignee all of Assignor’s rights, title, 
and interest in and to the Drainage Easement, free and clear of any liens, security interests, and 
encumbrances.   

2. Assignee, by its execution and acceptance hereof, does hereby assume and agree to 
perform all obligations required to be performed by Assignor in connection with the Drainage 
Easement.  As a result of this Assignment, Assignee and Assignee’s employees, agents, and 
contractors shall have the right to use the Drainage Easement in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Drainage Easement.  

3. Each party agrees that it will without further consideration, execute and deliver 
such other documents and take such other action as may be reasonably requested by the other party 
to consummate more effectively the purposes or subject matter of this Assignment. 

4. All of the covenants, terms and conditions set forth in this Assignment shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties to this Assignment and their respective 
successors and assigns. 

5. To facilitate execution, this Assignment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and it will not be necessary that the signatures of all parties be contained on any one 
counterpart.  All executed counterparts of this Assignment will be deemed to be originals, but all 
such counterparts, when taken together, will constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

[ R E M A I N D E R  O F  T H I S  P A G E  I N T E N T I O N A L L Y  L E F T  B L A N K ]   

174

Item 9.



 
 
 
ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT RIGHTS Page 2 Wildhorse Creek Commercial 
39444287v.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment, on the dates set 
forth below. 

ASSIGNOR: 
 
City of Manor, 
a Texas municipal corporation 
 
 
 
By:        
      Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS   § 
 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, on this 
the ______ day of __________, 2024, personally appeared Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor, on behalf of 
the City of Manor, as Assignor herein, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration 
therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated. 

[SEAL] 

       
Notary Public  State of Texas 
 
 
 
 

[ A S S I G N E E ’ S  S I G N A T U R E  O N  F O L L O W I N G  P A G E ]  
 
 

[ R E M A I N D E R  O F  T H I S  P A G E  I N T E N T I O N A L L Y  L E F T  B L A N K ]  
 

  

175

Item 9.



 
 
 
ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT RIGHTS Page 3 Wildhorse Creek Commercial 
39444287v.1 

ASSIGNEE: 
 
Texas Department of Transportation 
(on behalf of the State of Texas) 

 
 
 
 By:       
       Marc D. Williams, Executive Director 
 

STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS   § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me, the undersigned authority, on this the ____ day of 
____________, 2024, by Marc D. Williams, Executive Director of the Texas Department of 
Transportation, in the capacity stated and as the act and deed of the Texas Department of Transportation 
on behalf of the State of Texas.  

[SEAL] 

       
Notary Public  State of Texas 
 
 
 

After Recording, Please Return To: 
 
City of Manor, Texas 
ATTN: CITY SECRETARY 
105 E. Eggleton Street 
Manor, Texas  78653 

 
 

176

Item 9.



 
 
 Exhibit “A” 
ASSIGNMENT OF EASEMENT RIGHTS Page 1 Wildhorse Creek Commercial 
39444287v.1 

EXHIBIT “A” 

[Attached]  

177

Item 9.



178

Item 9.



179

Item 9.



180

Item 9.



181

Item 9.



182

Item 9.



183

Item 9.



184

Item 9.



185

Item 9.



186

Item 9.



187

Item 9.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on reimbursement of project management fees and services for 
the Bell Farms and Carriage Ills Lift Station.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

During GBA internal review of city projects and associated fees for authorized under Statement of Work No. 10, 
it was discovered that following two projects Project Fees were assessed incorrectly, which caused an 
overpayment of $173,513.90 for project management and administration fees charged to the city.   

 

Projects Approved Under SOW #10  Project Cost Project Cost 

o Bell Farms and Carriage Ills Lift Station  $1,976,503 o Gregg Manor Ground 
Storage Tank (GST) 

$3,678,319 

o Total Project Fee less ROW 
        Acquisition/Appraisal Services  

 $239,156.91 o Total Project Fee $445,076.60 

Periodic review of city projects are scheduled between GBA team and the city’s team.  Their review of projects 
and project balances identified the overpayment.  Instead of utilizing a credit statement approach, GBA decided 
to reimburse the city for the overpayment of project fees stemming from the Gregg Manor GST Construction Cost 
of $3,678,319 being calculated for the Bell Farms & Carriage Lift Station Project $1,976,503.  The additional 
internal payment request and verification protocol will avoid future overpayment processing in the future. 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Yes - Funds will be deposited back into the Community Impact Fund Account 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  No 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The city staff recommends that the City Council accept reimbursement of project management fees and services 
for the Bell Farms and Carriage Ills Lift Station from George Butler Associates, Inc. in the amount of $173,513.90. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

188

Item 10.



AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: April 3, 2024 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution of the City of Manor, Texas approving and 
authorizing the Mustang Valley Public Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

The city, on October 2, 2021, entered into a development Agreement with KB Homes (the “Developer”) for the 
development of a residential community. In June 2023, the city authorized the creation of the Mustang Valley 
Public Improvement District (the “District”).  The district consists of approximately 137 acres, will have 
approximately 363 homes, and will be developed by KB Homes.  Many of the public improvements that are needed 
for the development of the initial phase of the development are expected to be accepted soon by the city.  The 
Developer wishes for the City to 1) approve and sign the reimbursement Agreement that this the subject of this 
item (the “Agreement”), 2) accept the improvements, 3) levy PID assessments against the property in the district, 
and 4) issue PID bonds to reimburse the Developer.   

This item is to do the first item and approve the Agreement.  By signing the Agreement before accepting the 
improvements, the City establishes its intent to reimburse the Developer for the improvements in a manner that 
is sufficient for the Attorney General as it reviews any PID bonds that may be issued. It is expected that the 
Developer will request that the City levy PID assessments against property in the district at a subsequent meeting 
in the near term. The Developer will want the City to levy assessments before it sells homes to end users to ensure 
that the assessments will be an effective lien against each parcel that is sold.  

 The Agreement provides that the city will reimburse the Developer for the costs of constructing improvements 
that benefit particular phases of the Mustang Valley PID. Such reimbursements will come from assessments levied 
against properties, or from bonds paid from by the assessments.   If the City does levy assessments before issuing 
bonds, as is likely the case, the City will begin reimbursing the Developer over time from the assessments that are 
collected. 
LEGAL REVIEW: YES Yes, Gregory Miller, Bond Counsel  
FISCAL IMPACT:  The amounts to be paid under this Agreement will be funded from 

assessment revenues and not from the City’s general or operating fund.  
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes (If YES, please list below in order to be presented) 

• Resolution No. 2024-07
• Reimbursement Agreement

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 2024-07 authorizing the Mustang Valley Public Improvement District 
Reimbursement Agreement. 189

Item 11.



  

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MUSTANG VALLEY PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT  

 
WHEREAS, the City entered into a Development Agreement with KB Home Lone Star 

Inc., a Texas corporation ("Developer"), effective as of October 2, 2021, that stated the intent and 
expectation of the parties that the City would reimburse Developer, or their successors in interest, 
for the costs of the construction of certain public improvements constructed for the benefit of the 
District; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Manor, Texas (the "City"), pursuant to and in accordance with the 
terms, provisions and requirements of the Public Improvement District Assessment Act, Chapter 
372, Texas Local Government Code (the "PID Act"), authorized the creation of the "Mustang 
Valley Public Improvement District" (the "District") pursuant to Resolution No. 2023-22, adopted 
by the Manor City Council (the "City Council") on June 7, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the development of the property within the District and 
the planned issuance of special assessment revenue bonds for the Mustang Valley Public 
Improvement District, the City Council intends to approve the forms, terms, and/or provisions of 
a Reimbursement Agreement to be by and between the City and Developer; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution and the Reimbursement Agreement approved by it, are in 
furtherance of the intentions of the parties to the Development Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Resolution is considered is open to the public as 
required by law, and the public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MANOR, TEXAS: 

Section l. Findings. The findings and determinations set forth in the preamble hereof are 
hereby incorporated by reference for all purposes as if set forth in full herein. Capitalized terms 
used in this Resolution and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them 
in the Service and Assessment Plan. 

Section 2. Approval of Reimbursement Agreement. The Mustang Valley Public 
Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement (the "Reimbursement Agreement"), between the 
City of Manor, Texas and Developer, is hereby approved in substantially the form attached hereto 
as Exhibit A, and the Mayor of the City (the “Mayor”) is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
and deliver the Reimbursement Agreement, with such changes as may be required by the Mayor 
to carry out the purposes of this Resolution, such approval to be evidenced by the execution 
thereof. The Mayor's signature on the Reimbursement Agreement may be attested to by the City 
Secretary. 

Section 3. Additional Actions. The Mayor, City Manager, Interim Finance Director, and 
City Secretary of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions on behalf of the 

190

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-07 Page 2 

 

 -2- 

 

City necessary or desirable to carry out the intent and purposes of this Resolution. The Mayor, 
City Manager, Interim Finance Director, and City Secretary of the City, or any designee serving 
in the absence of the aforementioned officials, are hereby directed to execute and deliver any and 
all certificates, agreements, notices, instruction letters, requisitions, and other documents which 
may be necessary or advisable in the carrying out of the purposes and intent of this Resolution. 

Section 4. Governing Law. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

Section 5. Effect of Headings. The section headings herein are for convenience only and 
shall not affect the construction hereof. 

Section 6. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution or the application thereof 
to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and this governing body hereby declares that 
this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

Section 7. Construction of Terms. If appropriate in the context of this Resolution, words of 
the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural number shall be 
considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender shall be 
considered to include the other genders.  
 
 Section 8. Effective Date. This resolution shall be effective as of the date of its approval..  
 
 

[Execution page follows] 
 

191

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-07 Page 3 

 

  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on the 3rd day of April 2024.  

 

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 

 

       
Dr. Christopher Harvey 
Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

 
 
      
Lluvia T. Almaraz 
City Secretary 
 
 

  

 

192

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-07 Page 4 

 

  

EXHIBIT A  

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT  
MUSTANG VALLEY PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

 
 

 

193

Item 11.



 

 Page 1 

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
Mustang Valley Public Improvement District 

 
This Reimbursement Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by KB HOME LONE STAR 
INC., a Texas corporation (“Developer”), and the CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS (the “City”), 
effective as of ______, 2024 (the “Effective Date”) in relation to the Mustang Valley Public 
Improvement District (the “PID”).  Developer and the City are individually referred to herein as a 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

SECTION 1. 
RECITALS 

1.1 WHEREAS, capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings 
given to them in Section 2; 

1.2 WHEREAS, unless otherwise defined: (1) all references to “sections” shall mean 
sections of this Agreement; (2) all references to “exhibits” shall mean exhibits to this Agreement 
which are incorporated as part of this Agreement for all purposes; and (3) all references to 
“ordinances” or “resolutions” shall mean ordinances or resolutions adopted by the City Council; 

1.3 WHEREAS, Developer and the City have entered into a Development Agreement, 
effective as of October 2, 2021, relating to the development of the property within the PID and the 
financing of public improvements within the PID; 

1.4 WHEREAS, on June 7, 2023, the City Council passed and approved the PID 
Creation Resolution No. 2023-22 authorizing the creation of the PID pursuant to the Act, covering 
approximately 136.904 contiguous acres within the City's corporate limits, which land is described 
in the PID Creation Resolution; 

1.5 WHEREAS, prior to the issuance of PID Bonds, Developer has paid and may 
continue to pay for the Actual Costs of the PID Projects benefitting the property within the PID; 

1.6 WHEREAS, this Agreement is a “reimbursement agreement” authorized by 
Section 372.023(d)(1) of the Act;  

1.7 WHEREAS, the recitals: (a) are part of this Agreement for all purposes; (b) are true 
and correct; and (c) each Party has relied upon such recitals in entering into this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual obligations of the Parties set 
forth herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 2. 
DEFINITIONS 

“Act” means Chapter 372, Texas Local Government Code, as amended. 

“Actual Costs” means with respect to PID Projects, the actual costs paid or incurred by or 
on behalf of the Developer, including: (1) the costs incurred by the Developer, or on behalf of the 

194

Item 11.



 

 Page 2 

Developer (either directly or through affiliates) or the City for the design, planning, financing, 
administration/management, acquisition, installation, construction and/or implementation of such 
PID Projects; (2) the fees paid for obtaining permits, licenses, or other governmental approvals for 
such PID Projects; (3) the costs incurred by or on behalf of the Developer for external professional 
costs, such as engineering, geotechnical, surveying, land planning, architectural landscapes, 
appraisals, legal, accounting, and similar professional services; (4) all labor, bonds, and materials, 
including equipment and fixtures, by contractors, builders, and materialmen in connection with the 
acquisition, construction, or implementation of the PID Projects; (5) all related permitting, and 
public approval expenses, architectural, engineering, legal and consulting fees, and governmental 
fees and charges; and (6) costs to implement, administer, and manage the above-described 
activities. Actual Costs refers to the PID Project costs actually incurred. 

“Annual Collection Costs” means the actual or budgeted costs and expenses related to the 
operation of the PID, including, but not limited to, costs and expenses for: (1) the PID 
administrator; (2) legal counsel, engineers, accountants, financial advisors, and other consultants 
engaged by the City; (3) calculating, collecting, and maintaining records with respect to 
Assessments and Annual Installments; (4) preparing and maintaining records with respect to 
Assessment Rolls and annual service plan updates; (5) paying and redeeming PID Bonds; 
(6) investing or depositing Assessments and Annual Installments; (7) complying with the Service 
and Assessment Plan and the Act with respect to the PID Bonds, including the City’s continuing 
disclosure and arbitrage rebate requirements; and (8) the paying agent/registrar and Trustee in 
connection with PID Bonds, including their respective legal counsel. Annual Collection Costs 
collected but not expended in any year shall be carried forward and applied to reduce Annual 
Collection Costs for subsequent years. 

“Annual Installment” means the annual installment payment of an Assessment, as 
calculated by the PID administrator and approved by the City Council, that includes: (1) principal; 
(2) interest; and (3) Annual Collection Costs, as may be further defined in the SAP. 

“Assessed Parcels” means any parcel within the PID against which an Assessment is 
levied. 

“Assessment(s)” means an assessment levied against Assessed Parcels pursuant to the 
provisions of the Act for payment of PID Project Costs, including the payment of PID Bonds and 
obligations under this Agreement, as may be further defined in the SAP. 

“Assessment Ordinance” means the ordinance(s) adopted by the City Council levying 
Assessments on one or more Assessed Parcels within the PID to pay PID Project Costs, PID Bonds, 
and obligations under this Agreement, as may be further defined in the SAP. 

“Assessment Revenues” means the revenues received by the City from the collection of 
Assessments, including Prepayments, Annual Installments, and Foreclosure Proceeds, as may be 
further defined in the SAP, as authorized by and collected pursuant to each applicable Assessment 
Ordinance 

“Assessment Roll” means any assessment roll for the Assessed Parcel within the District, 
as updated, modified or amended from time to time in accordance with the procedures set forth 

195

Item 11.



 

 Page 3 

herein and in the PID act, including updates prepared in connection with the issuance of PID Bonds 
or any annual service plan update, as may be further defined in the SAP. 

“Authorized Improvement Costs” means the actual costs of the Authorized Improvements. 

“Authorized Improvements” means (1) improvements authorized by Section 372.003 of 
the PID Act, (2) the costs of issuance of the PID Bonds, and (3) the costs of the formation of the 
PID, as may be further defined in the SAP. 

“Bond Indenture” means the indenture of trust pursuant to which a series of PID Bonds is 
issued. 

“Bond Proceeds” means the proceeds derived from the issuance and sale of PID Bonds that 
are deposited into a PID Project Fund and made available to pay PID Project Costs including 
design, engineering, construction, and inspection costs in accordance with this Agreement and any 
Bond Indenture or SAP. 

“Budgeted Cost” means the estimated cost for an Authorized Improvement as provided for 
in the SAP. 

“Certificate for Payment” means a certificate (substantially in the form of Exhibit A or as 
attached to the Bond Indenture or as otherwise approved by Developer and the City 
Representative) executed by a representative of Developer and approved by the City 
Representative, delivered to the City Representative (and/or, if applicable, to the Trustee named 
in the Bond Indenture), specifying the work performed and the amount charged (including 
materials and labor costs) for PID Project Costs, and requesting payment of such amount from the 
appropriate fund or funds.  Each certificate shall include supporting documentation in the standard 
form for City construction projects and evidence that the PID Projects (or their completed 
segment(s)) covered by the certificate have been inspected by the City. 

“City Council” means the governing body of the City. 

“City Representative” means the Mayor or City Manager of the City, who are hereby 
authorized by the City Council to undertake the actions referenced herein. 

“Closing Disbursement Request” means a request in the form of Exhibit B or as otherwise 
approved by the Parties and the trustee named in the Bond Indenture. 

"Cost Overrun" means, with respect to each Authorized Improvement, the amount of the 
Actual Cost paid for the Authorized Improvement in excess of the Budgeted Cost for such 
Authorized Improvement as provided for in the SAP. 

“Default” is defined in Section 4.6.1. 

“Delinquent Collection Costs” means costs related to the foreclosure on an Assessed Parcel 
and the costs of collection of delinquent Assessments, delinquent Annual Installments, or any other 
delinquent amounts due under the Service and Assessment Plan, including penalties and 
 

196

Item 11.



 

 Page 4 

reasonable attorney's fees actually paid, but excluding amounts representing interest and penalty 
interest, as may be further defined in the SAP. 

“Developer Advances” means monetary advances made by Developer to pay PID Project 
Costs. 

“Developer Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement of Developer executed contemporaneously with the issuance and sale of PID Bonds. 

“Development Agreement” means that certain Development Agreement, effective as of 
October 2, 2021, by and between the Developer and the City. 

“Failure” is defined in Section 4.6.1. 

“Final Completion” means completion of an Authorized Improvement in compliance with 
existing City standards for dedication under the City’s ordinances and the Development 
Agreement. 

“Maturity Date” is the date one year after the final scheduled and non-delinquent Annual 
Installment is collected. 

“PID” means the Mustang Valley Public Improvement District created by the PID Creation 
Resolution. 

“PID Bonds” means the bonds issued pursuant to the provisions of the Act in one or more 
series to fund PID Project Costs or to reimburse Developer for PID Project Costs. 

“PID Creation Resolution” means Resolution No. 2023-22 passed and approved by the 
City Council on June 7, 2023, authorizing the creation of the PID. 

“PID Pledged Revenue Fund” means the Pledged Revenue Fund, as defined in the Bond 
Indenture, established or to be established by the City (and segregated from all other funds of the 
City) into which the City deposits Assessment Revenue securing PID Bonds issued and still 
outstanding, as described in the Bond Indenture. 

“PID Project Fund” means the Project Fund, as defined in a Bond Indenture, including all 
accounts created within such fund, established or to be established by the City (and segregated 
from all other funds of the City) into which the City deposits Bond Proceeds in the amounts and 
as described in the Bond Indenture. 

“PID Projects” means the public improvements or services to be constructed or acquired 
by or on behalf of the Developer within the PID, as may be further defined in the SAP, whether 
the SAP defines such public improvements or services as PID Projects or utilizes another term. 

“PID Reimbursement Fund(s)” means a fund established by the City under this Agreement 
(and segregated from all other funds of the City) into which the City deposits Assessment Revenue 
until such revenue is required to be deposited into a PID Pledged Revenue Fund. 

197

Item 11.



 

 Page 5 

“Reimbursement Agreement Balance” is defined in Section 3.3.1. 

“Service and Assessment Plan” or “SAP” means the service and assessment plan and any 
updates thereto approved by the City Council, prepared in relation to the property within the PID. 

“Trustee” is defined in Section 3.5.2. 

SECTION 3. 
FUNDING PROJECT COSTS 

3.1 Fund Deposits.   

3.1.1 The City, upon the adoption of each Assessment Ordinance, shall cause to be 
created and established a Reimbursement Fund (each a “PID Reimbursement Fund”) for the 
deposit of Assessment Revenue authorized by and collected pursuant to such Assessment 
Ordinance. Each PID Reimbursement Fund so created and established shall consist solely of the 
Assessment Revenue authorized by and collected pursuant to the applicable Assessment 
Ordinance.  

3.1.2 Unless and until PID Bonds are issued, and subject to the following Section 3.1.3 
of this Agreement, the City shall bill, collect, and immediately deposit all Assessment Revenue 
into the applicable PID Reimbursement Fund.  After the issuance and delivery of PID Bonds, the 
City shall bill, collect, and immediately deposit all Assessment Revenue in the manner set forth in 
the applicable Bond Indenture.  The City shall also deposit Bond Proceeds in the manner set forth 
in the applicable Bond Indenture.  Annual Installments shall be billed and collected by the City (or 
on behalf of the City by any person, entity, or governmental agency permitted by law) in the same 
manner and at the same time as the City ad valorem taxes are billed and collected.  The funds in 
each applicable PID Project Fund shall only be used in accordance with the applicable Bond 
Indenture.  The funds in each applicable PID Reimbursement Fund shall only be used to pay all or 
any portion of the applicable Reimbursement Agreement Balance in accordance with this 
Agreement.   

3.1.3 The City hereby confirms, covenants, and agrees that for so long as amounts are 
due to Developer under this Agreement either, or both, before PID Bonds are issued or for so long 
as PID Bonds are outstanding, that the City will do the following in the manner and to the 
maximum extent permitted by applicable law, subject to any conflicting provisions in any 
applicable Bond Indenture: (a) take and pursue all actions necessary to cause the Assessments to 
be levied and collected; (b) take and pursue all actions necessary to cause the liens related to the 
Assessments to be enforced continuously, including diligently prosecuting an action in district 
court to foreclose for delinquent or nonpayment of Assessments, including Annual Installments; 
and (c) take and pursue all actions necessary to cause no reduction, abatement or exemption of the 
Assessments.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall not be required under any 
circumstances to purchase or make payment for the purchase of the delinquent Assessments or the 
corresponding Assessed Parcel.  The City shall not be required under any circumstances to expend 
any funds for Delinquent Collection Costs or Annual Collection Costs in connection with its 
covenants and agreements under this Section or otherwise other than funds for such purpose on 
deposit in the PID Reimbursement Fund. Notwithstanding its collection efforts, if the City fails to 

198

Item 11.



 

 Page 6 

receive all or any part of the Assessment Revenue and, as a result, is unable to make transfers from 
the applicable PID Reimbursement Fund for payments to the Developer as required under this 
Agreement, such failure and inability shall not constitute a Failure or Default by the City under 
this Agreement. The applicable Bond Indenture shall control in the event of any conflicts with this 
Agreement. 

3.2 Payment of PID Project Costs.   

3.2.1 Unless or until PID Bonds are issued to pay PID Project Costs, Developer 
may elect to make Developer Advances to pay such PID Project Costs.  Prior to the City’s adoption 
of an ordinance authorizing the issuance of a series of PID Bonds, Developer shall provide 
evidence of available funds of the Developer or of financial security from the project lender 
evidencing that sufficient funds are available and reserved for completion of the PID Projects or 
portion thereof to be funded by PID Bonds.  If such evidence of financial security is not available, 
Developer shall deposit into the applicable PID Project Fund an amount equal to the remaining 
costs not funded by the PID Bonds necessary to pay PID Project Costs. 

3.2.2 Bond Proceeds (i) may be used to construct PID Projects and directly pay 
PID Project Costs in lieu of Developer Advances and reimbursement and (ii) shall be used in the 
manner provided in the applicable Bond Indenture.  Developer may, but shall not have the 
obligation, to make Developer Advances, unless the Bond Proceeds on deposit in the applicable 
PID Project Fund, are insufficient to pay any remaining PID Project Costs, in which case 
Developer shall make Developer Advances to pay the deficit.   

3.2.3 As evidence of Developer Advances required in connection with the 
issuance of PID Bonds, Developer shall submit to the City for approval all information related to 
such costs that would be required by a Closing Disbursement Request at least fifteen (15) business 
days prior to the closing of the PID Bonds.  The Developer shall also make Developer Advances 
to pay for Cost Overruns (after applying cost savings or reallocation of budget line items to reflect 
actual costs) in accordance with the Development Agreement. An individual line item exceeding 
its estimated cost shall not be construed as a Cost Overrun; rather, the cost for each phase within 
the PID shall be viewed in its entirety. Upon the Final Completion of an Authorized Improvement 
and payment of all outstanding invoices for such Authorized Improvement, if the Actual Costs of 
such Authorized Improvement are less than the Budgeted Cost (a "Cost Underrun"), any remaining 
budgeted cost, as shown in the Service and Assessment Plan, will be available to pay Cost 
Overruns on any other Authorized Improvement that may otherwise be financed with the proceeds 
of the applicable PID Bonds. The City Representative shall promptly confirm that such remaining 
amounts are available to pay such Cost Overruns, and the Developer, the Administrator, and the 
City Representative will agree how to use such moneys to secure the payment and performance of 
the work for other Authorized Improvements. Any Cost Underrun for any Authorized 
Improvement is available to pay Cost Overruns on any other Authorized Improvement that may 
otherwise be financed with the proceeds of the applicable PID Bonds. The lack of Bond Proceeds 
or other funds in the applicable PID Project Fund shall not diminish the obligation of Developer 
to pay PID Project Costs.  

 

199

Item 11.



 

 Page 7 

3.3 Payment of Reimbursement Agreement Balance.   

3.3.1 Unless or until PID Bonds are issued, the City agrees to pay Developer 
solely from funds on deposit in the applicable PID Reimbursement Fund, and Developer shall be 
entitled to receive payments from the City, from such source for amounts shown on each 
Certificate for Payment (which amounts include only PID Project Costs paid by or at the direction 
of Developer) (any unpaid amount owed Developer for all Certificates of Payment is referred to 
as the “Reimbursement Agreement Balance”).  Upon the issuance of PID Bonds, the City agrees 
to pay Developer first from funds on deposit in the applicable PID Project Fund and then from 
funds on deposit in the applicable PID Reimbursement Fund, if any; and, notwithstanding anything 
in this Agreement to the contrary, the maximum amount that Developer may be reimbursed under 
this Agreement shall be equal to the amount of Bond Proceeds on deposit in the applicable PID 
Project Fund plus amounts in the applicable PID Reimbursement Fund, if any, plus simple interest 
on the unpaid principal balance of the applicable Reimbursement Agreement Balance at a rate not 
to exceed the rates permitted under subsections (e)(1) and (e)(2) of Section 372.023 of the Act, as 
may be further defined in the SAP, or if PID Bonds are issued, then the interest rate on the 
applicable PID Bonds; provided, however, that the interest rate for the unpaid balance of the 
Reimbursement Agreement Balance as set forth in this paragraph shall not exceed the rates 
permitted under subsections (e)(1) and (e)(2) of Section 372.023 of the Act, as may be further 
defined in the SAP.  Interest on the unpaid principal balance of each Reimbursement Agreement 
Balance shall begin to accrue at the City acceptance of the applicable PID Projects. 

3.3.2 The obligation of the City to pay each Reimbursement Agreement Balance 
is payable solely from the applicable PID Reimbursement Fund or from Bond Proceeds on deposit 
in the applicable PID Project Fund.  No other City funds, revenue, taxes, income, or property shall 
be used.  Payments from a PID Reimbursement Fund shall be applied in accordance with this 
Agreement.  Each payment from a PID Reimbursement Fund shall be accompanied by an 
accounting that certifies the applicable Reimbursement Agreement Balance as of the date of the 
payment and that itemizes all deposits to and disbursements from the fund since the last payment.  
If there is a dispute over the amount of any payment, the City shall nevertheless pay the undisputed 
amount, and the Parties shall use all reasonable efforts to resolve the disputed amount before the 
next payment is made. 

 3.4 PID Bonds.  The City, in its sole, legislative discretion, may issue PID Bonds, in 
one or more series, when and if the City Council determines it is financially feasible for the 
purposes of: (a) paying all or a portion of a Reimbursement Agreement Balance; or (b) paying PID 
Project Costs directly.  PID Bonds issued for such purpose will be secured by and paid solely as 
authorized by the applicable Bond Indenture.  Upon the issuance of PID Bonds for such purpose, 
Developer’s right to receive payments each year in accordance herewith shall be subordinate to 
the deposits required under the applicable Bond Indenture related to any outstanding PID Bonds.  
The failure of the City to issue PID Bonds shall not constitute a Failure by the City or otherwise 
result in a Default by the City.  Upon the issuance of PID Bonds, Developer has a duty to construct 
the related PID Projects and shall not be relieved of such duty even if there are insufficient funds 
in the applicable PID Project Fund to pay PID Project Costs. 

 

200

Item 11.



 

 Page 8 

 3.5 Disbursements and Transfers at and after Bond Closing.   

  3.5.1 If PID Bonds are issued, the City will cause the Trustee under the applicable 
Bond Indenture to pay from the Bond Proceeds at closing of the PID Bonds approved amounts 
from the appropriate account to the City, Developer, or their designees, as applicable, which costs 
may include payment for costs of issuance and payment of costs incurred in the establishment, 
administration, and operation of the PID and any other eligible items for which funds have been 
expended by Developer and the City as of the time of the delivery of such PID Bonds.  In order to 
receive such a disbursement, Developer shall execute a Closing Disbursement Request 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B to be delivered to the City no less than fifteen 
(15) business days prior to the scheduled closing date for the PID Bonds for payment in accordance 
with the provisions of the Bond Indenture.  In order to receive additional disbursements from the 
applicable fund under the Bond Indenture, if PID Bonds are issued, or from the PID 
Reimbursement Fund, Developer shall execute a Certificate for Payment, no more frequently than 
monthly, to be delivered to the City for payment in accordance with the provisions of either, or 
both of, the applicable Bond Indenture or this Agreement.   

  3.5.2 Upon receipt of a Certificate for Payment (along with all accompanying 
documentation reasonably required by the City) from Developer, the City shall conduct a review 
in order to confirm that such request is complete, confirm that the work for which payment is 
requested was performed in accordance with all applicable governmental laws, rules and 
regulations and applicable plans therefor with the terms of this Agreement and any other agreement 
between the Parties related to property in the PID, and to verify and approve PID Project Costs of 
such work specified in such Certificate for Payment.  The City shall also conduct such review as 
is required to confirm the matters certified in the Certificate for Payment.  The Developer agrees 
to cooperate with the City in conducting each such review and to provide the City with such 
additional information and documentation as is reasonably necessary for the City to conclude each 
such review.  Within fifteen (15) business days following receipt of any Certificate for Payment, 
the City shall either: (a) approve the Certificate for Payment and (i) forward it to the trustee bank 
named in the Bond Indenture (the “Trustee”) for payment or (ii) pay such amount from the PID 
Reimbursement Fund; or, (b) provide Developer with written notification of disapproval of all or 
part of a Certificate for Payment, specifying in detail the basis for any such disapproval.  Any 
disputes shall be resolved as required by Section 3.3.2 herein.  If PID Bonds are issued, the City 
shall deliver the approved or partially approved Certificate for Payment to the Trustee for payment. 

3.6 Obligations Limited.  The obligations of the City under this Agreement shall not, 
under any circumstances, give rise to or create a charge against the general credit or taxing power 
of the City or constitute a debt or other obligation of the City payable from any source other than 
the PID Reimbursement Fund or the PID Project Fund.  Unless approved by the City, no other 
City funds, revenues, taxes, or income of any kind other than the funds on deposit in the applicable 
PID Reimbursement Fund or PID Project Fund shall be used to pay: (a) PID Project Costs; (b) the 
Reimbursement Agreement Balance, even if the Reimbursement Agreement Balance is not paid-
in-full on or before the Maturity Date; or (c) debt service on the applicable PID Bonds.  None of 
the City or any of its elected or appointed officials or any of its officers, employees, consultants, 
or representatives shall incur any liability hereunder to Developer or any other party in their 
individual capacities by reason of this Agreement or their acts or omissions under this Agreement. 

201

Item 11.



 

 Page 9 

3.7 Obligation to Pay.  If Developer is then in current compliance with its obligations 
under the Development Agreement, the Developer Continuing Disclosure Agreement if 
applicable, and this Agreement, and is not delinquent in payment of the Special Assessments and 
paying property taxes, then following the inspection and approval of any portion of the PID 
Projects for which Developer seeks reimbursement of the PID Project Costs by submission of a 
Certificate for Payment or City approval of a Closing Disbursement Request, the obligations of 
the City under this Agreement to pay disbursements (whether to Developer or to any person 
designated by Developer) identified in any Closing Disbursement Request or in any Certificate for 
Payment are unconditional and not subject to any defenses or rights of offset except as may be 
provided in any Bond Indenture. 

 3.8 City Delegation of Authority.  All PID Projects shall be constructed by or at the 
direction of Developer in accordance with the Development Agreement and this Agreement and 
any other applicable agreement between the Parties related to property in the PID.  Developer shall 
perform, or cause to be performed, all of its obligations and shall conduct, or cause to be conducted, 
all operations with respect to the construction of PID Projects in a good and workmanlike manner, 
with the standard of diligence and care normally employed by duly qualified persons utilizing their 
commercially reasonable efforts in the performance of comparable work and in accordance with 
generally accepted practices appropriate to the activities undertaken.  Developer has sole 
responsibility of ensuring that all PID Projects are constructed in a good and workmanlike manner, 
with the standard of diligence and care normally employed by duly qualified persons utilizing their 
reasonable efforts in the performance of comparable work and in accordance with generally 
accepted practices appropriate to the activities undertaken.  Developer shall, at all time, employ 
adequate staff or consultants with the requisite experience necessary to administer and coordinate 
all work related to the design, engineering, acquisition, construction, and installation of all PID 
Projects to be acquired and accepted by the City from Developer.  If any PID Projects are or will 
be on land owned by the City, the City hereby grants to Developer a license to enter upon such 
land for purposes related to construction (and maintenance pending acquisition and acceptance) 
thereof.  Inspection and acceptance of PID Projects will be in accordance with applicable City 
ordinances and regulations. 

3.9 Security for PID Projects.  The Developer shall provide or cause to be provided a 
two (2) year maintenance bond for each of the PID Projects.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to prohibit Developer or the City from contesting in good faith the validity or amount of 
any mechanics or materialman’s lien and/or judgment nor limit the remedies available to 
Developer or the City with respect thereto so long as such delay in performance shall not subject 
the PID Projects to foreclosure, forfeiture, or sale.  In the event that any such lien and/or judgment 
with respect to the PID Projects is contested, Developer shall be required to post or cause the 
delivery of a surety bond or letter of credit, whichever is preferred by the City, in an amount 
reasonably determined by the City, not to exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the disputed 
amount. 

3.10 Ownership and Transfer of PID Projects.  The Developer shall furnish to the City a 
preliminary title report for land related to the PID Projects to be acquired and accepted by the City 
from Developer and not previously dedicated or otherwise conveyed to the City.  The report shall 
be made available for City review and approval at least fifteen (15) business days prior to the 
scheduled transfer of title.  The City shall approve the preliminary title report unless it reveals a 

202

Item 11.



 

 Page 10 

matter which, in the reasonable judgment of the City, would materially affect the common use and 
enjoyment subscribed to such PID Projects.  If the City objects to any preliminary title report, the 
City shall not be obligated to accept title to the applicable PID Projects until Developer has cured 
the objections to the reasonable satisfaction of the City.  

SECTION 4. 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

4.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall 
continue until the earliest to occur of: (i) the latest applicable Maturity Date, (ii) the date on which 
each and every Reimbursement Agreement Balance has been paid in full, or (iii) the date on which 
all of the PID Bonds are fully retired. 

4.2 No Competitive Bidding.  Construction of the PID Projects shall not require 
competitive bidding pursuant to Section 252.022(a)(9), Texas Local Government Code, as 
amended.  All plans and specifications, but not construction contracts, shall be reviewed and 
approved, in writing, by the City prior to Developer selecting the contractor.   

4.3 Independent Contractor.  In performing this Agreement, Developer is an 
independent contractor and not the agent or employee of the City. 

4.4 Audit.  The City Representative shall have the right, during normal business hours 
and upon three (3) business days’ prior written notice to Developer, to review all books and records 
of Developer pertaining to costs and expenses incurred by Developer with respect to any of the 
PID Projects.  For a period of two (2) years after completion of the PID Projects, books shall be 
maintained in accordance with customary real estate accounting principles. 

4.5 Representations and Warranties. 

4.5.1 The Developer represents and warrants to the City that: (a) Developer has 
the authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement; (b) Developer has the 
financial resources, or the ability to obtain sufficient financial resources, to meet its obligations 
under this Agreement; (c) the person executing this Agreement on behalf  of the  Developer has 
been duly authorized to do so; (d) this Agreement is binding upon Developer in accordance with 
its terms; (e) the Developer is current on all taxes, assessments, fees and obligations to the City; 
(f) the Developer is not in default under the Development Agreement or any other agreement with 
the City related to the PID; and (g) the execution of this Agreement and the performance by 
Developer of its obligations under this Agreement do not constitute a breach or event of default by 
Developer under any other agreement, instrument, or order to which Developer is a party or by 
which Developer is bound. 

4.5.2 The City represents and warrants to Developer that: (a) the City has the 
authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement; (b) the person executing 
this Agreement on behalf of the City has been duly authorized to do so; (c) this Agreement is 
binding upon the City in accordance with its terms; and (d) the execution of this Agreement and 
the performance by the City of its obligations under this Agreement do not constitute a breach or 
event of default by the City under any other agreement, instrument, or order to which the City is a 
party or by which the City is bound. 

203

Item 11.



 

 Page 11 

 4.6 Default/Remedies. 

4.6.1 If either Party fails to perform an obligation imposed on such Party by this 
Agreement (a “Failure”) and such Failure is not cured after written notice and the expiration of the 
cure periods provided in this section, then such Failure shall constitute a “Default.”  If a Failure is 
monetary, the non-performing Party shall have ten (10) business days within which to cure.  If the 
Failure is non-monetary, the non-performing Party shall have thirty (30) days within which to cure.  
However, if the non-monetary Failure is of such a nature that it cannot reasonably be expected to 
be cured within thirty (30) days, then the Party who failed to perform shall have such time as is 
necessary to cure the default, so long as the failing Party commences the cure within thirty (30) 
days and diligently pursues such cure to completion.  

4.6.2 If Developer is in Default, the City shall have available all remedies at law 
or in equity; provided, however, no default by Developer shall entitle the City to terminate this 
Agreement, cease collection of the Assessments and deposit of the Assessment Revenues, or to 
withhold properly due payments to Developer from the PID Reimbursement Fund or the PID 
Project Fund in accordance with this Agreement and the Bond Indenture or on deposit in the PID 
Reimbursement Fund. 

4.6.3 Subject to Section 3.7, if the City is in Default, Developer shall have 
available all remedies at law or in equity; provided, however, that: (a) the City does not by this 
Agreement waive its sovereign immunity from suit or sovereign immunity from liability, and (b)no 
Default by the City shall entitle Developer to terminate this Agreement and that any financial 
obligation of the City will only be payable from monies available under an applicable  Bond 
Indenture or under this Agreement. 

4.7 Remedies Outside the Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement constitutes a waiver 
by the City its sovereign immunity from suit or sovereign immunity from liability, or of any 
remedy the City may have outside this Agreement against Developer or any other person or entity 
involved in the design, construction, or installation of the PID Projects.  The obligations of 
Developer hereunder shall be those of a Party hereto and not as an owner of property in the PID.  
Nothing herein shall be construed as affecting the City’s or Developer’s rights or duties to perform 
their respective obligations under other agreements, use regulations, or subdivision requirements 
relating to the development property in the PID. 

4.8 Applicable Law; Venue.  This Agreement is being executed and delivered and is 
intended to be performed in the State of Texas.  Except to the extent that the laws of the United 
States may apply, the substantive laws of the State of Texas shall govern the interpretation and 
enforcement of this Agreement.  In the event of a dispute involving this Agreement, venue shall 
lie in any court of competent jurisdiction in Travis County, Texas. 

4.9 Notice.  Any notice referenced in this Agreement must be in writing and shall be 
deemed given at the addresses shown below: (a) when delivered by a nationally recognized 
delivery service such as FedEx or UPS with evidence of delivery signed by any person at the 
delivery address regardless of whether such person is the named addressee; or (b) 72 hours after 
deposited with the United States Postal Service, Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested. 

204

Item 11.



 

 Page 12 

To the City: 
 

 
 
 
With a copy to: 

City of Manor, Texas  
Attn: City Manager 
105 E. Eggleston Street 
Manor, Texas 78653 
 
The Knight Law Firm, LLP 
Attn: Veronica Rivera 
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
Austin, Texas 78752 

To Developer: 
 
 
 
 
With a copy to: 

KB Home Lone Star, Inc. 
Attn: John Zinsmeyer 
10800 Pecan Park Blvd, Suite 200 
Austin, Texas 78750I 
 
Winstead PC 
Attn: Ross Martin 
2728 N. Harwood St. 
500 Winstead Building 
Dallas, Texas 75201 

 

Any Party may change its address by delivering notice of the change in accordance with this 
section. 

4.11 Conflicts; Amendment.  In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and 
any other instrument, document, or agreement by which either Party is bound, the provisions and 
intent of the Bond Indenture controls.  This Agreement may only be amended by written agreement 
of the Parties. 

4.12 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid by any court, such 
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions. 

4.13 Non-Waiver.  The failure by a Party to insist upon the strict performance of any 
provision of this Agreement by the other Party, or the failure by a Party to exercise its rights upon 
a Default by the other Party, shall not constitute a waiver of such Party’s right to insist and demand 
strict compliance by such other Party with the provisions of this Agreement. 

4.14 Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall be 
construed to confer upon any person or entity other than the City and Developer, any rights under 
or by reason of this Agreement.  All provisions of this Agreement shall be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of the City and Developer. 

4.15 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, which, 
when taken together, shall be deemed one original. 

4.16 Employment of Undocumented Workers.  During the term of this Agreement, 
Developer agrees not to knowingly employ any undocumented workers and if convicted of a 

205

Item 11.



 

 Page 13 

violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a (f), Developer shall repay the amount of any 
Reimbursement Payment or other funds received by Developer from City from the date of this 
Agreement to the date of such violation within 120 days after the date Developer is notified by 
City of such violation, plus interest at the rate of 4% compounded annually from the date of  
violation until paid.   Developer is not liable for a violation of this section by a subsidiary, affiliate, 
or franchisee of Developer or by a person with whom Developer contracts. 

4.17   No Boycott of Israel.  The Developer hereby verifies that it and its parent company, 
wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not boycott Israel and will 
not boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement.  As used in the foregoing verification, 
“boycott Israel” means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise 
taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial 
relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-
controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business purposes. The 
Developer understands “affiliate” to mean an entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under 
common control with the Developer and exists to make a profit. Notwithstanding anything 
contained herein, the representations and covenants contained in this Section 4.17 shall survive 
termination of the Agreement until the statute of limitations has run. 

4.18   Contracts With Companies Engaged in Business With Iran, Sudan or Foreign 
Terrorist Organizations Prohibited. The Developer represents that neither it nor any of its parent 
company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates is a company identified on 
a list prepared and maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Section 
2252.153 or Section 2270.0201, Texas Government Code. 

The foregoing representation excludes the Developer and each of its parent company, 
wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, that the United States 
government has affirmatively declared to be excluded from its federal sanctions regime relating to 
Sudan or Iran or any federal sanctions regime relating to a foreign terrorist organization. The 
Developer understands "affiliate" to mean any entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under 
common control with the Developer and exists to make a profit. Notwithstanding anything 
contained herein, the representations and covenants contained in this Section 4.18 shall survive 
termination of the Agreement until the statute of limitations has run. 

4.19    Verification Regarding Energy Company Boycotts.  Pursuant Developer hereby 
verifies that it and its parent companies, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other 
affiliates, if any, do not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies during 
the term of this Agreement. As used in the foregoing verification, “boycott energy companies” 
shall have the meaning assigned to the term “boycott energy company” in Section 809.001, Texas 
Government Code. The Developer understands “affiliate” to mean an entity that controls, is 
controlled by, or is under common control with the Developer and exists to make a profit. 
Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the representations and covenants contained in this 
Section 4.19 shall survive termination of the Agreement until the statute of limitations has run. 

4.20   Verification Regarding Firearm Entities and Firearm Trade Associations.   The 
Developer hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, 
and other affiliates, if any, do not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates 

206

Item 11.



 

 Page 14 

against a firearm entity or firearm trade association and will not have a practice, policy, guidance, 
or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association during the term 
of this Agreement.  As used in the foregoing verification, “discriminate against a firearm entity or 
firearm trade association” means: (i)  refuse to engage in the trade of any goods or services with 
the entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; 
(ii)  refrain from continuing an existing business relationship with the entity or association based 
solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; or (iii)  terminate an existing 
business relationship with the entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or 
firearm trade association; but does not include (a)  the established policies of a merchant, retail 
seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing or selling of ammunition, firearms, or firearm 
accessories; or (b)  a company's refusal to engage in the trade of any goods or services, decision 
to refrain from continuing an existing business relationship, or decision to terminate an existing 
business relationship to comply with federal, state, or local law, policy, or regulations or a directive 
by a regulatory agency; or for any traditional business reason that is specific to the customer or 
potential customer and not based solely on an entity's or association's status as a firearm entity or 
firearm trade association. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the representations and 
covenants contained in this Section 4.20 shall survive termination of the Agreement until the 
statute of limitations has run. 

4.21 Recitals. Recitals. The recitals contained in this Agreement: (a) contain 
legislative findings by the City Council; (b) are true and correct as of the Effective Date; (c) 
contribute to the basis upon which the Parties negotiated and entered into this Agreement; and (d) 
reflect the final intent of the Parties as stated therein. In the event it becomes necessary to interpret 
any provision of this Agreement, the intent of the Parties, as evidenced by the recitals, shall be 
taken into consideration and, to the maximum extent possible, given full effect. The Parties have 
relied upon the recitals as part of the consideration for entering into this Agreement and, but for 
the intent of the Parties reflected by the recitals, would not have entered into this Agreement. 

4.22 Form 1295. Submitted herewith is a completed Form 1295 in connection with 
the Developer’s participation in the execution of this Agreement generated by the Texas Ethics 
Commission’s (the “TEC”) electronic filing application in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 2252.908 of the Texas Government Code and the rules promulgated by the TEC (the 
“Form 1295”).  The City hereby confirms receipt of the Form 1295 from the Developer, and the 
City agrees to acknowledge such form with the TEC through its electronic filing application not 
later than the 30th day after the receipt of such form.  The Developer and the City understand and 
agree that, with the exception of information identifying the City and the contract identification 
number, neither the City nor its consultants are responsible for the information contained in the 
Form 1295; that the information contained in the Form 1295 has been provided solely by the 
Developer; and, neither the City nor its consultants have verified such information. 

4.22 Assignment. The Developer may, in its sole discretion, assign this Agreement with 
respect to all or part of the property within the PID from time to time to any party in connection 
with the sale of the property within the PID or any portion thereof so long as: (a) the assigned 
rights and obligations are assumed without modifications to this Agreement; and (b)the Developer 
provides the City thirty (30) days prior written notice of any such assignment which shall include 
(i) the name and address of the assignee and (ii) a representation by the Developer that the 
assignment does not and will not result in the issuance of municipal securities by any other state 

207

Item 11.



 

 Page 15 

of the United States or political subdivision thereof. The Developer hereby represents that the City 
may rely conclusively on any written notice of an assignment provided by the Developer without 
any obligation of the City to investigate or confirm the assignment or any aspects thereof. Upon 
such assignment or partial assignment, the Developer shall be fully released from any and all 
obligations under this Agreement and shall have no further liability with respect to this Agreement 
for the part of the property within the PID so assigned save and except that if a Failure occurs prior 
to or contemporaneously with an assignment described in this Section 4.22. Developer shall be 
obligated to cure such Failure in accordance with Sections 4.6 and 4.7 of this Agreement as if 
Developer owned all of the property so assigned in fee, and City shall have all rights and remedies 
that would otherwise be available to it at law and under Sections 4.6 and 4.7 of this Agreement if 
Developer owned all such property in fee. 

[Execution pages follow.] 

208

Item 11.



 

 

CITY: 
 
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 
 
 
By:   
 Dr. Christoher Harvey  

Mayor 
 
Date:   
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
By:    
 Lluvia T. Almaraz 
 City Secretary 
  

209

Item 11.



 

 

 
DEVELOPER: 
 
KB HOME LONE STAR INC., 
a Texas corporation 
  
          
            By:                                                                   
            Name:                                                              
            Its:                                                                    
  

210

Item 11.



 

 

Exhibit A 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT  

The undersigned is an agent for KB Home Lone Star Inc., a Texas corporation 
(“Developer”), and requests payment from the City of Manor, Texas (the “City”) out of the [PID 
Project Fund (as defined in the Bond Indenture) / PID Reimbursement Fund] in the amount of 
$_____ for labor, materials, fees, and/or other general costs related to the creation, acquisition, or 
construction of certain PID Projects providing a special benefit to property within the Mustang 
Valley Public Improvement District.  Unless otherwise defined, any capitalized terms used herein 
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the PID Reimbursement Agreement, Mustang Valley 
Public Improvement District, effective ________ (the “Reimbursement Agreement”).  In 
connection with the above referenced payment, Developer represents and warrants to the City as 
follows: 

1. The undersigned is a duly authorized officer of Developer, is qualified to execute this 
Certificate for Payment Form on behalf of Developer, and is knowledgeable as to the matters set 
forth herein. 

2. The payment requested for the below referenced PID Projects has not been the subject of 
any prior payment request submitted for the same work to the City or, if previously requested, no 
disbursement was made with respect thereto. 

3. The amount listed below is a true and accurate representation of the PID Project Costs 
associated with the creation, acquisition, or construction of said PID Projects and such costs: 
(a) are in compliance with the Reimbursement Agreement; and (b) are consistent with the Service 
and Assessment Plan. 

4. Developer is in compliance with the terms and provisions of the Development Agreement, 
Developer Continuing Disclosure Agreement, Reimbursement Agreement and the Service and 
Assessment Plan. 

5. Developer has timely paid all ad valorem taxes and annual installments of special 
assessments it owes or an entity Developer controls owes, located in the Mustang Valley Public 
Improvement District and has no outstanding delinquencies for such assessments. 

6. All conditions set forth in the Bond Indenture for the payment hereby requested have been 
satisfied. 

7. The work with respect to the PID Projects referenced below (or its completed segment, 
section, or portion thereof) has been completed, and the City has inspected such PID Projects. 

8. Developer agrees to cooperate with the City in conducting its review of the requested 
payment, and agrees to provide additional information and documentation as is reasonably 
necessary for the City to complete said review. 

9. No more than ninety-five percent (95%) of the budgeted or contracted hard costs for PID 
Project Costs identified may be paid until the work with respect to such PID Project Costs (or 

211

Item 11.



 

 

segment) has been completed and the City has accepted such PID Project Costs (or segment). One 
hundred percent (100%) of soft costs (e.g., engineering costs, inspection fees and the like) may be 
paid prior to City acceptance of such PID Projects Costs (or segment) 

10. The Developer confirms that based on all prior amounts paid to Developer from the PID 
Reimbursement Fund as of the date of this Certification for Payment and based on the percentage 
of completion of the PID Project Costs as of the date of this Certification for Payment as verified 
by the City payment of the amounts requested in this Certification for Payment, taking into account 
all prior payments for the PID Project Costs and the amount of work related to the PID Project 
Costs remaining to be completed as of the date of this Certification for Payment will not cause the 
amounts on deposit in the PID Reimbursement Fund to fall below the amount necessary to 
complete the remaining PID Project Costs taking into account the amounts available to the 
Developer under its private loan, a line of credit and/or any other form acceptable to the City. 

Payments requested are as follows: 

a. X amount to Person or Account Y for Z goods or services. 
b. Payment / Wire Instructions 

Attached hereto are invoices, cancelled checks, receipts, purchase orders, change orders, and 
similar instruments which support and validate the above requested payments. Also attached hereto 
are “bills paid” affidavits and supporting documentation in the standard form for City 
construction projects.  

Pursuant to the Reimbursement Agreement, after receiving this payment request, the City has 
inspected the Authorized Improvements (or completed segment) and confirmed that said work has 
been completed in accordance with approved plans and all applicable governmental laws, rules, 
and regulations. 

I hereby declare that the above representations and warranties are true and correct. 

[remainder of page left blank intentionally] 

  

212

Item 11.



 

 

DEVELOPER: 
 
KB HOME LONE STAR INC., 
a Texas corporation 
  
          
            By:                                                                   
            Name:                                                              
            Its:                                                                    

213

Item 11.



 

 

APPROVAL OF REQUEST BY CITY 

The City is in receipt of the attached Certificate for Payment, acknowledges the Certificate 
for Payment, acknowledges that the PID Projects (or its completed segment) covered by the 
certificate have been inspected by the City, and otherwise finds the Certificate for Payment to be 
in order.  After reviewing the Certificate for Payment, the City approves the Certificate for 
Payment and directs _____________ to make such payments from the PID Project Fund to 
Developer or to any person designated by Developer. 

 

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 
 
 
By:   
Name:   
Title:   
Date:   
 

 

 

 

214

Item 11.



 

 

Exhibit B 

FORM OF CLOSING DISBURSEMENT REQUEST 

The undersigned is an agent for KB Home Lone Star Inc., a Texas corporation 
(“Developer”) and requests payment to Developer (or to the person designated by Developer) from 
the applicable account of the PID Project Fund from __________ (the “Trustee”) in the amount of 
_______________ ($__________) to be transferred from the applicable account of the PID Project 
Fund upon the delivery of the PID Bonds for costs incurred in the establishment, administration, 
and operation of Mustang Valley Public Improvement District (the “District”) and costs associated 
with the issuance of PID Bonds, as follows.   

Unless otherwise defined, any capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to 
them in the Indenture of Trust by and between the City and the Trustee dated as of ________ (the 
“Indenture”) relating to the [________________________] (the “PID Bonds”). 

In connection with the above referenced payment, Developer represents and warrants to the City 
as follows: 

1. The undersigned is a duly authorized officer of Developer, is qualified to execute 
this Closing Disbursement Request on behalf of Developer, and is knowledgeable as to the matters 
set forth herein. 

2. The payment requested for the below referenced establishment, administration, and 
operation of the District at the time of the delivery of the PID Bonds have not been the subject of 
any prior payment request submitted to the City. 

3. The amount listed for the below costs is a true and accurate representation of the 
PID Project Costs associated with the establishment, administration and operation of the District 
at the time of the delivery of the PID Bonds, and such costs are in compliance with the Service 
and Assessment Plan. 

4. The Developer is in compliance with the terms and provisions of the 
Reimbursement Agreement, the Indenture, and the Service and Assessment Plan. 

5. All conditions set forth in the Indenture and the Reimbursement Agreement for the 
payment hereby requested have been satisfied. 

6. The Developer agrees to cooperate with the City in conducting its review of the 
requested payment, and agrees to provide additional information and documentation as is 
reasonably necessary for the City to complete said review. 

Payments requested hereunder shall be made as directed below: 

 [Information regarding Payee, amount, and deposit instructions attached] 

I hereby declare that the above representations and warranties are true and correct. 

215

Item 11.



 

 

DEVELOPER: 
 
KB HOME LONE STAR INC., 
a Texas corporation 
  
          
            By:                                                                   
            Name:                                                              
            Its:                                                                    
  

216

Item 11.



 

 

APPROVAL OF REQUEST BY CITY 

The City is in receipt of the attached Closing Disbursement Request, acknowledges the 
Closing Disbursement Request, and finds the Closing Disbursement Request to be in order.  After 
reviewing the Closing Disbursement Request, the City approves the Closing Disbursement 
Request and directs payment to be made from Costs of Issuance Account upon delivery of the PID 
Bonds. 

 

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS 
 
 
By:   
Name:   
Title:   
Date:   
 
 

217

Item 11.


	Top
	Item A.	Proclamation: Earth Day 2024
	a. Earth Day - April 2024

	Item A.	Event: Community Shred Day 2024
	a. shred for a cause - community shred day flyer 2024

	Item B.	Events: KMB Downtown Cleanup 2024
	b. KMB Downtown cleanup flyer 2024

	Item 1.	Minutes: March 20, 2024, Regular Meeting
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2024 03 20 CC Draft Minutes

	Item 2.	Purchase Agreement - Cube HHF Limited Partnership
	a. Summary Form
	b. Cube HHF Purchase Agreement

	Item 3.	Purchase Agreement: Tuan V. Nguyen and Nhieu T. Nguyen
	a. Summary Form
	b. Nguyen Purchase Agreement

	Item 4.	First Reading: Manor Crossing SUP
	a. Summary Form
	b. Manor Crossing - Medical Office SUP LOI
	c. SUP Map
	d. tax map
	e. Manor Crossing SUP Notice
	f. Mailing list

	Item 5.	Ordinance No. 737 - New Haven PUD
	a. Summary Form
	b. Ordinance No. 737 - New Haven PUD Amendment
	c. Newhaven_REVISED_PUD_APPROVED
	d. New_Haven_final_pud - APPROVED 12-9-2022
	e. PUD_Comparison
	f. Conformance Letter
	g. 698 New Haven Final PUD Rezoning
	h. New Haven PUD Amendment public notice
	i. Mailing Labels

	Item 6.	Development Agreement - 10555 US HWY 290 Electronic Sign
	a. Summary Form
	b. Development Agreement - VS Enterprises with exhibits

	Item 7.	Drainage Fee Draft Ordinance
	a. Summary Form
	b. Draft Drainage Fee Ordinance

	Item 8.	Resolution No. 2024-08 - 13105 FM 1100 Annexation
	a. Summary Form
	b. Resolution No. 2024-08 - Wehbe FM 1100 Tract Annexation Petition
	c. Exhibit B - Post Annexation Provision Services Agreement SIGNED_03.25.2024
	d. Signed 13105 FM 1100 Annexation petition
	e. Survey_FM1100_01.13.22
	f. 1.273 Acres Metes and Bounds_FM 1100_01.13.22
	g. Wehbe FM 1100 Tract Annexation Schedule

	Item 9.	Assignment of Easement Rights with the Texas Department of Transportation for a drainage easement
	a. Summary Form
	b. TXDOT Wildhorse Creek Assignment of Easement Rights Drainage Easement
	c. Exhibit_A_2023058703_Drainage_Easement

	Item 10.	Bell Farms and Carriage Hills Lift Station - Reimbursement
	a. Summary Form

	Item 11.	Resolution No. 2024-07 - Mustang Valley Reimbursement Agreement
	a. Summary Form
	b. Resolution No. 2024-07  Reimbursement Agreement - Manor Mustang Valley PID  2
	c. Reimbursement Agreement - Mustang Ridge 31724  4

	Bottom



